TorrANCE CounTy
CoMMISSION MEETING
June 23, 2021
9:00 AM.

For Public View
Do Not Remove



Torrance County
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (BCOC)
Ryan Schwebach, Chair, District 2
Kevin McCall, Vice Chair, District 1
LeRoy M. Candelaria, District 3

Janice Y. Barela, County Manager

ADMINISTRATIVE MEETING
AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, June 23, @ 9:00 AM

1. Call to Order

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
3. Changes to the Agenda

4. PROCLAMATIONS

5. CERTIFICATES AND AWARDS

A, MANAGER: Announcement of Employee of the Quarter: Operations Manager Nick
Sedillo.

6. BOARD AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS
7. PUBLIC COMMENT and COMMUNICATIONS
8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A, COMMISSION: Motion to approve the June 9, 2021 Torrance County Commission
Minutes. :

9. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A, FINANCE: Motion to approve payables.
10.  ADOPTION OF ORDINAN CE/AMENDMENT TO COUNTY CODE
1. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION

A, CLERK: Motion to approve splitting of 3 existing Torrance County Precincts and
creating 3 new Torrance County Precincts, Resolution No.

Torrance County Page 1



Administrative Meeting Agenda June 23, 2021

B. CLERK: Motion to approve Designating the Location of Polling Places for 2021
local Election and all statewide Elections in 2022-2023 and Appointing Board of Registration
Members, Resolution No. '

12, APPROVALS
A. PURCHASING: Motion to approve contract between Torrance County and Gilbert
A, Ortiz as Teen Court Coordinator/Prevention Specialist,
B. DWI: Motion to approve contract between Torrance County and John Steiner for
Evaluation Services.
C. DISPATCH: Motion to approve FY22 annual maintenance contract for 911 phone
system with ConvergeOne, ' ' ’
D. HUMAN RESOURCES: Motion to approve the Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan (EEOP).
E. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: Motion to approve Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) between Torrance County and New Mexico Department of Health
(DOH) for Cities Readiness Initiative (CRI) award for $10,000.
F. MANAGER: Motion to approve three-month extension of Torrance County’s current
contract with Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority (EVSWA).
13. DISCUSSION
A, MANAGER: Discuss the process and options for getting Torrance County buildings
on a self-sustained electric solar system,
B. MANAGER’S REPORT
C. COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS
1) Commissioner McCall, District 1
2) Commissioner Schwebach, District 2
3) Commissioner Candelaria, District 3
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION
15. Announcement of the next Board of County Commissioners Meeting: July 14, 2021 @
9:00AM.
16.  SIGNING OF OFFICIAL DOCUMEN TS
~17. ADJOURN

Torrance County

Page 2



Agenda Item

1

No.



Agenda Item
No. 2



Agenda Item
No. 3



Agenda Item
No. 4



Agenda Item
No. 5-A



Agenda Item
No. 6



Agenda Item
No. 7



Agenda Item
No. 8-A4



DRAFT COPY
Torrance County Board of Commissioners
Regular Commission Meeting
June 9, 2021
9:00 AM
Commissioners Present:

RYAN SCHWEBACH - CHAIR
KEVIN MCCALL - VICE CHAIR
LEROY CANDELARIA - MEMBER

Others Present:
JANICE BARELA - COUNTY MANAGER
PHILIP TENORIO - DEPUTY COUNTY MANAGER
JOHN BUTRICK - COUNTY ATTORNEY
YVONNE OTERO - COUNTY CLERK
VALERIE SMITH —~ ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
Meeting called to order by: Chairman Schwebach.
At: 9:05 a.m.

2.  PLEDGE: Lead by Chairman Schwebach
INVOCATION: Lead by Commissioner Candelaria

3. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA:
Madam County Manager: Request to change the agenda item 13-A
between items 11-A and 12-A.



4.  PROCLAMATIONS: None

5. CERTIFICATES AND AWARDS: None

6.  BOARD and COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS: N one
7. PUBLIC COMMENT and COMMUNICATIONS:

A. Commissioner McCall: Announced that his grandfather has passed. The
elder Mr. McCall passed away last Saturday, June 5, 2021. He was a large
part of the community and will be missed greatly.

B. Tracey Master, DWI Coordinator and Resident of Torrance County,
District 2: Requests that the Torrance County Board of Commissioners
consider creating a noise ordinance for the County. Tracey lives with
someone who has the rare condition of hyperacusis, or extremely sensitive
hearing. She also understands that the residents of Torrance County enjoy
their privacy, but her housemate is hearing noise from a mile away that is
loud enough to hurt them. She only asks that they consider and discuss a
noise ordinance.

C. Danielle Johnston, Torrance County Resident; District 1: Spoke on
behalf of the Torrance County Community in giving thanks to
Commissioner McCall’s grandparents, and to say how sorry she is for the
Commissioner and his family’s loss.

Mrs. Johnston also wanted to remark on how grateful she is for Fire Chief
Don Dirks, and tells the Commission that he is very deserving, in her eyes,
of the title “Fire Chief.” Her husband has been seriously ill for the last 20
years. Many times, when the ambulance was called, it was Chief Dirks who
showed up. She claims that he has a very comforting presence and is
appreciative of the attention and care that he has shown her family.

D. Charlene Guffy, Torrance County Resident; District 1: Ms. Gufty spoke
up to say that she believes it is in the best interest of the community to keep



3

the Estancia Valley Solid Waste Association as part of the community. It is a
non-profit and saves the people in the County money, and that the County is
only responsible for the tipping fees. It has been working well for the last 25
years.

PUBLIC COMMENT OPENED TO THE FLOOR AND ZOOM
AUDIENCE. NO PARTICIPANTS CAME FORWARD TO SPEAK.
8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

COMMISSION: Motion to approve the May 26, 2021, Torrance County
Commission Minutes.

ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve the minutes from the
May 26, 2021, Regular Board of Commission Meeting.

Commissioner McCall: Seconded the Motion.

Roll Call Vote:

Commissioner Candelaria: Yes; Commissioner McCall: Yes; Chairman
Schwebach: Yes

Motion Passed

9. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA:

A. FINANCE: Motion to approve payables.

ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve payables.
Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded the motion.

Roll Call Vote:

Commissioner Candelaria: Yes; Commissioner McCall: Yes; Chairman
Schwebach: Yes



MOTION PASSED.

10. ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE/AMENDMENT TO COUNTY CODE;:
None

11. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION:

A. FINANCE: Motion to approve Budget Increase, Resolution
2021-21

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve Budget Increase, Resolution
2021-21.

Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.

Jeremy Oliver, Finance Director: Presented the Budget Increase Resolution for
FY 2020-2021 Budget. Table hereto attached.

First on list is $1,501,559.00 from the American Rescue Act. No intention of
spending this money this year but requesting for budgetary and recording purposes.

There is a $1 increase for the State Animal Care Fund, which is so we can spend
the remaining 41¢ from a rounding error made last year.

Also, on the list is $6,000 for dispatch training that was not put in the budget for
last year as well.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner McCall: Yes; Chairman Schwebach: Yes;
Commissioner Candelaria: Yes.

MOTION APPROVED.

(Previously 13-A. ) DISCUSSION:

Manager: Provisional plan to use portion of the funds allocated to Torrance
County from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 toward EMWT projects.



Chairman Schwebach: Asked for EMWT to be present during the meeting. This
is pertaining to funds coming in from American Rescue Plan Act. Water delivery
within the county has been an issue, and the Chairman believes this is one avenue
where we can make big changes within the community.

Bobby Ortiz, Chairman, EMWT Water Committee: Thanked the Commission
for the opportunity to speak. Mr. Ortiz told the Committee that there was $4MIL
funding available from the State last year, but they were not able to raise the
required $2MIL match at that time.

Mr. Ortiz gave the Commission a quick rundown of the projects in the works:

EMWT is working to obtain Homestead Water. The discussion at this point is that
the owners want to divest it, so they would donate the system and lease some water
rights. The water rights would be purchased sometime in the future when they are
ready to sell them.

There is a water system NW of Moriarty called Sunset Acres. The owner has been
trying to divest it for many years. Members of Bohannan Huston have done an
inspection on it, and only minor repairs are needed. They are working to obtain
funding once again through the USDA.

In 2017, EMWT developed a long-range master plan, identifying 4 projects that
needed to be worked on. The first project is the McIntosh area, where wells are
drying up and the water table has dropped immensely. They want to work on
water rights acquisition, developing a well, and getting gravity feed down to the
Highway 41/Otero Road corridor. EMWT also wants to purchase 10 acres to put
up a water tank. The distribution can begin from there.

The second project is a trunk line from Willard to Moriarty, which would add
redundancy and a bigger water supply. As far as Mr. Ortiz knows, Moriarty also
has water rights that they may be willing to lease as well.

The third project focuses on getting land grants included again. When the bylaws
were rewritten, and they were no longer included.

The fourth project is a bulk water station in McIntosh. The civil design could be
completed for approximately $750K (2017 quote price, subject to change). EMWT
is trying to get funding from federal level.



Donzil Worthington, Bohannan Huston: There are 1,012 lots total, 161 are
occupied. (A map was shown at this point of McIntosh.) To provide complete fire
flow at 5,000 gal/min, they had to put in main lines in front of all the full lots.

Bobby Ortiz: Fire flow hydrants positively affect homeowner’s insurance.

Chairman Schwebach: The numbers were taken back in 2017, and refer to
numbers of cost, not what the system would run. Has any direct questioning been
done of the community?

Bobby Ortiz: Bohannan Huston surveys of the area in 2008.

Donzil Worthington: The Catholic Church did an outreach, starting in 2008. The
individuals conducting the outreach and employees of Bohannan Huston went door
to door to see how well received a water system would be. We also got calls

requesting a water system. There has not been a concerted door to door outreach
since 2017.

Chairman Schwebach: A question for the County about Rancho Grande: How
many abandoned homes are in this subdivision?

Steve Guetschow: There are several properties where people have abandoned their
mobile homes. This is West of 41. This general area is approximately 2 miles from
North to South and 2.5 miles from East to West. There are a lot of people living in
the area, some new and living in the old mobile homes, but for the most part is
abandoned.

Commissioner McCall: It is no surprise that a water delivery system for the
Mclntosh area is desperately needed. Looking to Edgewood and the Entranosa
Water system, and how it has impacted Edgewood, it has only been good.
Commissioner McCall asked about the $4Mil USDA funds, and if it was still
available.

Bobby Ortiz: The funding would have to be reapplied for. There is only a certain
time frame where the $2MIL matching funds need to be allocated. If we were able
to secure the funds, the first step would be to design the project. This would be an
in-kind match. If the Civil Engineering were completed on it, we could use the
$750K and then go look for other funding to begin the project.

Commissioner McCall: The USDA identified Mclntosh as one of the areas that
needed water the worst. There must have been other areas in the County that need
improvement as well.



Bobby Ortiz: The USDA looked at the necessity of water, and the demographics
in the area. This made the USDA see how badly a water system is needed.

Donzil Worthington: It is always easier to improve an already-existing system,
rather than build a system from scratch. Having a water system makes you eligible
for much more funding. They were encouraged by the USDA to look at which
community met their socio-economic need requirements. The USDA approved
Torrance County in 2009 for a $9.5MIL grant, but never came through because of
the economic crisis. There were many well failures in McIntosh. They looked at
building an 187, $19 MIL pipeline in the Highway 41 corridor from Willard to
Moriarty, providing water to Willard, Estancia, Moriarty. This was called Phase 1
of the Transmission System. Portions A, B and C were laterals to take care of the
water needs in the Mountain Communities (Mountainair, Tajique and Torreon.)
This was a $60MIL project, with $31MIL allotted to take those lines to the West
and provide water to the mountain communities if they were interested.

John Jones of Entranosa was willing to take water as a secondary source, as well as
some folks in Stanley.

$130-$135MIL is the estimate for the whole system, broken down into increments
as follows: $10MIL for the McIntosh system, the Corridor at $20MIL and the
Corridor and Main Development areas in the towns around $60MIL.

The well was going to be developed to a size that could be paid for through the
USDA, but also provide a source to feed the pipeline.

The PER has mapped every lot according to 2018 statistics, labelling who owned
and who is occupying which lot. Many large sections are owned by one person.

Chairman Schwebach: What projections do we have for operating costs?

Bobby Ortiz: We only have low-level operational plan. We have a committee
looking into that now. We are thinking about $11 per 1,000 gallons would be a fair
cost to the consumers. We would also like to hire an operator. Compared to other
water systems, Moriarty is the lowest in the state.

Commissioner McCall: How many thousands of gallons can you provide and
what sort of consumer households would be hooked up in phase one.

Bobby Ortiz: Phase one would serve 400 households with 2.5-3 people per
household.



Donzil Worthington: When the USDA came in with their offer of grant/loan
funding, they were subsidizing it beyond what the community could afford. We
could not exceed $75 per connection, but we could not go as low as we wanted, at
competitive rates of $30-40. $75 is what was deemed acceptable by the USDA.

Commissioner McCall: Expressed that he appreciates them making it affordable.

Bobby Ortiz: We are quasi-municipal. We are not-for-profit. We keep things bare
bones. When speaking about economic development, we could see some growth
because it is sustainable. Thanks to everyone at the County that can help.

Commissioner McCall: The Commissioner wants to get moving and is happy
about the opportunity to use the American Rescue Plan Act funds. He believes that
the reason that we have not grown as much as Los Lunas and Belen is due to not
having enough water, and that getting water will help.

Bobby Ortiz: Explained that they are not a municipality, so it has been difficult to
get traction. They like to serve the County and are not here to steal everyone’s
water. They want to keep the water here for local use.

Deputy County Manager Tenorio: Gave Myra Pancrazio of EVEDA the chance
to speak to the fact that there have been many opportunities lost because of lack of
water.

Myra Pancrazio, EVEDA: This project really started in 1998, and EMW Gas was
the example that was used for beginning this project. As far as opportunities for
business and growth here in Torrance County, businesses will not go where there is
no water. The Sandia Basin was just closed, and it has caused uproar in the Santa
Fe County Area.

Ms. Pancrazio states that by regionalizing, new areas will open for developers to
begin new housing and commercial development, which is exciting.

There is about $300MIL available for water infrastructure that was part of the ARP
program. By allowing this funding to go into EMWT, it allows them to get a seat at
the table with our State Senators to get this project going.

Donzil Worthington: The USDA approved the preliminary engineering portion of
this project in 2018. They also required an environmental plan be approved, which
they were.



They are considered stale after 5 years, so they only have approximately 2 years
remaining in which they are considered current. They were paid for by the USDA,
meaning they have already invested in our County.

Commissioner Candelaria: A controlled water system saves water. It gives our
community safer water because it is tested.

Steve Guetschow: Rancho Grande subdivision is a higher density population area,
and there is no community water system. This project would be a huge boost to
community development, especially because having an individual well in a one-
acre lot is frowned upon by the environmental departments.

Chairman Schwebach: Thanked EMWT for coming out to talk with the
Commission.

12.APPROVALS:
A. Clerk: Motion to approve Canvass of 2021 Congressional District
1 Special Election.

ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Motion to approve canvass of 2021 Congressional
District 1 Special Election.

Commissioner McCall: Seconds the Motion.

Yvonne Otero, Torrance County Clerk: Presents the final numbers for the
Special Election for Congressional District 1, which went off without any major
issues. There were no issues with Dominion or their machines. There was one
overall error, but it was on the Secretary of State’s end, when they forgot to clear
out votes from our mock election. The election totals are as follows:

Torrance County Election Totals:
Early Voting Ballots Cast: 1,082
Election Day Vote Ballots: 1,347
Absentee Ballots: 318

Military Ballot: 1




10

Winner for Torrance County: Mark David Moores w/ 1,503 total votes.
2" place: Melanie Stansbury w/ 945 votes.
3" place: Aubrey Dunn w/ 265 votes.
4™ Christopher Manning w/ 32 votes.

Neither write-in candidate had any votes cast for them.

We have a total of 10,244 voters. 9,608 are active. Of the active, 2,745 voters
showed up for a 28.5% showing of those eligible.

Ms. Otero 1s working on doing more social media to get people out to vote.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Candelaria: Yes, Commissioner McCall: Yes;
Chairman Schwebach: Yes.

MOTION APPROVED.

B. Sheriff: Motion to approve agreement between Torrance County
and Department of public safety for Edward Byrne Justice
Assistant Grant (JAG) Program.

ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Makes a motion to approve agreement between
Torrance County and Department of Public Safety for Edward Byrne Justice
Assistant Grant (JAG) Program.

Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded the motion.

Cheryl Allen, Torrance County Grants Manager: Torrance County had applied
for the Justice Assistant Grant funding, to support the community policing efforts
in Torrance County. We were awarded $41,340.50. The JAG Program is set up to
reduce violent and drug related crimes.

Undersheriff Eli Lucero: This was applied for as part of the Community
Partnership Initiative. The funds will contribute to some of the program expenses
such as overtime, equipment and being able to identify areas that are needing
attention, such as specialized investigative needs. They can also purchase new
equipment now.



11

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Candelaria: Yes, Commissioner McCall: Yes;
Chairman Schwebach: Yes;

MOTION APPROVED.

C. Human Resources: Motion to approve agreement between
Torrance County and State of NM Public Education Department
for the Student Enrichment Internship Program.

ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Makes a motion to approve agreement between
Torrance County and State of NM Public Education Department for the
Student Enrichment Internship Program.

Commissioner McCall: Seconded the Motion.

Cheryl Allen, Torrance County Grants Manager: The County has just been
awarded $68,760 to help fund Student Enrichment Internship.

Torrance County has just hired 2 coordinators and students are being recruited for
the internship from Estancia, Mountainair, and Moriarty. There are 40 spaces, and
18 applications have been submitted.

Different agencies throughout the County will be at the Job Fair being hosted on
Monday from 9 am to 12 pm.

Employees running the Job Fair will help the students fill out the applications.
They are 6-week positions, 20 hours/week at $10.50/hr. Those students who may
request internships must be 14-18, attending school or have just graduated from
one of the Torrance County Schools. Those ages 14-15 need a work permit. It is
being hosted by the NM Education Department.

Commissioner McCall: If you are a business owner, you may request to host an
intern for employment.

Madam County Manager Barela: The goal will be to work around the student’s
schedules.

Cheryl Allen: Employers will work in already scheduled vacations, camp or other
summer jobs.



12

Those students ages 14-15 need a work permit. Students can come to the job fair
and fill out an application.

Commissioner Candelaria: This is a great opportunity for young people of
Torrance County and hopes it is taken advantage of. They can get out and earn
money. He believes it is a perfect opportunity to get experience, and that they may
even find a career.

Cheryl Allen: Some of the locations participating are the Torrance County offices,
Estancia Town Offices, Moriarty City Offices, Salinas Parks, EMW Gas and the
Electric Co-op. It is a great program.

Commissioner McCall: The students working in Salinas will be tour guides. It is
a very exciting opportunity.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Candelaria: Yes, Commissioner McCall: Yes;
Chairman Schwebach: Yes;

MOTION APPROVED.

A. Dispatch: Motion to approve Grant Agreement 22-E-13 between
Torrance County and DFA-Local Government

ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve Grant Agreement 22-E-13
between Torrance County and DFA-Local Government.

Commissioner McCall: Seconded the motion.

Christine Snow, Torrance County 911 Director: Asked for approval of the
agreement with DFA, the Enhanced 911 Act Grant Program. This includes
upgrades to the 911 phone system and console system this fiscal year, as well as
yearly training and GIS upgrades.

Chairman Schwebach: Asked for clarification on what the agreement is, and if it
is an annual agreement.

Christine Snow: Answered in the affirmative. The changes this year are the 911
phone system upgrade and expansion, as well as replacing console equipment that
is over 10 years.



13

Chairman Schwebach: Asked for an approximate dollar figure.

Christine Snow: The 911 equipment upgrades are $553,823, broken down into:
Vesta 911 Hardware/software upgrade: $315,811.66.

Expansion — DFA required separate quote $83,167.44.

Console upgrade: $137,373.65.

Commissioner McCall: Asked what they used these funds for last year since they
did not upgrade the console and phone systems yearly.

Christine Snow: This was a special Capital Outlay Request.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Candelaria: Yes, Commissioner McCall: Yes;
Chairman Schwebach: Yes;

MOTION APPROVED.

B. Domestic Violence: Motion to approve Ratification of FY 2022
Domestic Violence Grant application for funding from CYFD
Behavioral Health Services for Survivor Services.

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve Ratification of FY 2022
Domestic Violence Grant application for funding from CYFD Behavioral
Health Services for Survivor Services.

Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded the motion.
Anna Martinez, T. C. Domestic Violence Services Director:
There to request approval of the ratification of the funds for CYFD.

Madam County Manager Barela: The reason this is a ratification is because they
had to submit this before they ran out of time to bring it before the Board.

Anna Martinez: The previous budget was not a complete application, just budget.
The request that was sent outlined what was given the previous year, and she was
requested to detail how this money could be spent this year. The State of New
Mexico is willing to give $48,400 and wants to know how it will be spent. It is
different than the offender funds, those are service fees. The Health Services for
Survivor Services . She had to outlay every line item and decide how much they
would need for each, and what it costs to run the program.



14

The $48,400 plus what has been requested from the County, plus $46,500 is where
the number $94,900 came from.

Chairman Schwebach: Asked if last year they reached out and said, “We have so
much money, what can you do with it”?

Anna Martinez: They gave them that amount, and on a few other occasions gave
us extra money. The total amount for both programs was close to $90,000 last year.

Chairman Schwebach: Affirmed this was understood.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Candelaria: Yes, Commissioner McCall: Yes;
Chairman Schwebach: Yes;

MOTION APPROVED.

C. Domestic Violence: Motion to approve Ratification of FY 2022
Domestic Violence Grant application for funding from CYFD
Behavioral Health Services for Domestic Violence Offender
Treatment and Intervention.

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve Ratification of FY2022
Domestic Violence Grant application for funding from CYFD Behavioral
Health Services for Domestic Violence Offender Treatment and Intervention.

Commissioner McCall: Seconded the motion.

Madam County Manager Barela: Took a moment to recognize the Domestic
Violence Offender Treatment and Intervention staff, and to say that this request of
ratification is for the Offender Services, not Violence Survivors.

Anna Martinez, Torrance County Domestic Violence Services Director:

This is money they are giving TCDVS for the offenders. It is separated by the state
from the other invoice she will submit. It is a fee for service that is an amount that
is to be reimbursed for each service.

Commissioner Candelaria: Asked how many offenders there are.
Anna Martinez: There are 7 offenders, in a 52 week, once weekly program.
Chairman Schwebach: Asked if they are court ordered or if they volunteer.

Commissioner McCall: Asked how this number compares to prior years.



15

Anna Martinez: The majority of program attendees are court ordered. There is a
decrease in offenders. At one point there were 18, but the numbers have dropped.
Once courts go back to-in person, we will most likely get more referrals.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Candelaria: Yes, Commissioner McCall: Yes;
Chairman Schwebach: Yes;

MOTION APPROVED.

D. DWI: Motion to approve FY 2022 Local DWI Grant Agreement.

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve FY 2022 Local DWI Grant
Agreement,

Commissioner McCall: Seconded the motion.

Tracey Master, Coordinator LDWI Coordinator: Requested approval for
continued funding for DWI prevention; this is where most of their project funds
come from.

Commissioner McCall: Did this number change from last year?

Tracey Master: Answered in the affirmative. Last year they were awarded
$70,000. $14,888 reverted from distribution that was later added to this year’s
grant funding, bringing it up to almost $85,000. They had to revert the money to
DFA and then re-apply for the money.

This year they applied for $123K and were awarded $35K.

If there is any reversion from the FY-21 distribution fund, then they will revert
that, reapply for it, and it will be applied to the fund for next year.

Commissioner McCall: Asked if they were running their budget on the $125K
and if there will there be a shortfall.

Tracey Master: No. She always shoots for the moon when trying to get funding.
They always find a way to get everything done,

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Candelaria: Yes, Commissioner McCall: Yes;
Chairman Schwebach: Yes;

MOTION APPROVED.



16

E. DWI: Motion to approve submission of FY-2022 CDWI
application to NMIDOT/Traffic Safety.

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve submission of FY-2022
CDWI application to NMDOT/Traffic Safety.

Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded the motion.

Tracey Master, LDWI Coordinator: The amount of this year’s allocation is
$1,518. This is slightly greater than FY-21, which was $1,500. The funding comes
from a $75 DWI prevention fee assessed of all those convicted of a DWI. The
reason the number is not divisible by $75 is because they receive the money as it is
collected. She requests approval to submit to the NMDOT Traffic Safety Division.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Candelaria: Yes, Commissioner McCall: Yes;
Chairman Schwebach: Yes;

MOTION APPROVED.
BREAK TO CHANGE DISC: 10:28 A.M.
BACK IN SESSION AT: 10:33 A.M.

13.DISCUSSION:

A. Manager: Provisional plan to use portion of the funds allocated to
Torrance County from the American Rescue Plan to use portion
of the funds allocated to Torrance County from the American
Rescue Plan Act of 2021 toward EMWT projects.

(MOVED TO AFTER 11-A.)

B. Manager: Discuss the renewal of Torrance County’s contract with
Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority (EVSWA); current
contract expires June 30%, 2021.

Chairman Schwebach: Stated that they would have a discussion today only
discussing the renewal of Torrance County’s contract with EVSWA, as the
current contract expires very soon.

Madam County Manager Barela: They have been in contact with the EVSWA
Director, Mr. Martin Lucero. They have been in negotiations and have many
details to iron out but thought they should bring this to the Commission and see
what the goals and objectives will be. Asked Mr. Lucero about the ordinance we



17

have for solid waste, Ordinance 94-12, amended April 13, 2016. Referring back to
page 7, Sec. 13-B, which states:

“The County Commission Shall set fees for solid waste management based on the
actual or projected cost to collect, transport and recycle or dispose of such solid
waste. Unmet actual costs resulting from unpaid fees or certain discounts defined
and approved by the County Commission shall be the responsibility of the County
Commission.”

The resolution states that the fees set by the Commission are set by resolution, so,
if necessary, they can be changed. This includes any discounts given, or the rates
for the residents to use the transfer stations.

Madam County Manager Barela also stated that she would like to stay open for
updates from EVSWA.

Martin Lucero, EVSWA Director: (Handout hereto attached.) Thanked the
Commission for allowing him to be here. He explained that every 5 years there is
an agreement that is negotiated between EVSWA and the Commission for
EVSWA to continue their Solid Waste Services in the County. That is why he was
there.

He wanted to make sure that the relevant concerns are addressed, and read Page 2
of the handout, entitled “Goals and Objectives”. He made clear that the goal was to
talk about collection at the waste collection stations, as well as tipping and fees that
are imposed, as well as ensuring that the agreement and the Ordinance are updated.
Mr. Lucero spoke of changing the EVSWA fleet, including the new roll-off truck
that uses certified natural gas that has been purchased. He is also announcing that
there has been grant money allocated to improving the green energy usage of the
Waste Management services. They are looking at different ways to get the fleet
changed out, and at providing electricity at the stations. Currently it is just the
Northern collection station that has electricity.

Mr. Lucero and Madam County Manager Barela are working on providing other
stations with electricity, apart from the Northern station which is already outfitted.

He wants to ensure that the fees are appropriate. EVSWA is a non-profit
organization. Right now, the recommendation is not to raise fees, though it will
happen at some point.



18

Mr. Lucero read “Elements to Amendment”. On point 2, “Address the Tajique
Collection Station”, Mr. Lucero explained that there are 3 collection stations that
the County owns, two of which are Hills and Valleys and Indian Hills. The third is
the Tajique Collection station. When the Tajique Community Center was handed
back to the Tajique Land Grant, the collection station was not annexed out of it.
The County has a lease with the Tajique Land Grant. They have been in talks to
either renew, extend, or possibly relocate that station, depending on what the Land
Grant Community wants to do. The Land Grant Community will have a Board
Meeting very soon to discuss the future of the collection station. There have also
been talks with the Torreon Land Grant about possibly moving the station there.

Madam County Manager Barela: That meeting is happening tonight (6/9/21). As
far as the lease, they are in talks about moving the lease over to the Solid Waste
Authority from the County. It would lend the Solid Waste Authority more
ownership over what they put on the property. They will still be incorporating the
cost of the lease, paying it through an invoice as they have done, but this seems
like a better solution, in her opinion. The lease would be managed by the Solid
Waste Authority. That does not mean that the Tajique Land Grant will agree to
this, but these are the discussions being had right now.

Martin Lucero: Believes that it would be best to take ownership of all the
expenses of the collection stations as much as possible. they will take up a lease
agreement with some of the other stations that are leased.

He wants the Tajique station to be moved if possible.

The overage and underage language came in with the last amendment of the
contract. Specifically, this means in 2014 the fees were increased to $60.50 per
quarter. The county would collect $800K. If the Solid Waste Authority did not
meet that $800k mark, the County would cover the difference. If there was overage
collected, that money would be sent to the County.

EVSWA has been looking to help the community get their accounts out of arears,
which means there have been a lot of overages recently. If they keep seeing these
overages, it is possible that there is a need to look at the fees charged and make
sure they are not overcharging the Community.

Madam County Manager Barela: All the overages that the County receives goes
towards tipping fees. This would free up the money that has been allocated out of



19

the County Budget for tipping $160K has been allocated in the budget for tipping
fees. Asked Mr. Oliver to confirm.

Jeremy Oliver, Finance Director: During FY-21 the County spent $158,000 on
tipping fees. They spent $182,000 on tipping fees this year. Out of that $60,383
was paid with overages. Over a third of the tipping fees have been paid out of
overages.

Chairman Schwebach: Asked to confirm information on payments to EVSWA.
He asked about if the County pays for the contract, but also tipping fees.

Martin Lucero: Correct.

Chairman Schwebach: Asked if the budget that is referred to is coming from any
collections or from the General Fund.

Jeremy Oliver: The portion that is not coming from Overages is coming from the
General Fund.

Chairman Schwebach: Questioned whether the collections that the County is
taking will cover all the cost of the contract and the tipping fees.

Martin Lucero: That is partially correct. Nobody wants to raise the rates, but it
will most likely be necessary at some point. There is a large portion of residents
who do not pay and have a lien on their property. If they can get those residents
back in the black, then there will not be much of a problem with meeting those
fees. It will help everyone. They do not want anyone dumping illegally because
they cannot pay.

He believes it would be consistent to meet in the middle for both parties.

Madam County Manager Barela: When Mr. Oliver was speaking, he was not
including a payment that is expected to come into the County. Asked Mr. Lucero
to speak on this.

Martin Lucero: Does not have the exact payment that is expected. There is a
check for about $90K or above which needs to be written still, as the quarter is not
over. Torrance County is paying tipping fees, and EVSWA is paying Torrance
County right back.

Chairman Schwebach: That is because EVSWA is taking payment. If the County
were taking payment, for example, then there would be X amount of dollars it
takes to maintain the transfer stations. And then they would have a monthly bill for



20

tipping fees on whatever EVSWA collected at the transfer stations. EVSWA would
be collecting, the County would still be on the hook for the bill, and after a years’
time say, “We aren’t spending all the money, so we may be overcharging the
residents and need to reexamine the fees we assess”.

Martin Lucero: We really want to help our residents in the best ways possible.

Madam County Manager Barela: For a point of clarification for those who are
not in the room at the time of the meeting, when speaking of “overages” and
“underages” and “tipping fees”, according to the contract the County has right now
with Solid Waste, they have an agreement that every quarter they are looking at
$200k that they need to meet. If they go over the $200k from bill collection, then
the overage comes to the County. If they do not reach their $200k quota, then the
County cuts a check to cover the cost of operations. If there is an overage, the
money that goes into the dedicated fund is then used to pay the tipping fees, or to
help supplement the budget to help pay that.

Martin Lucero: Also spoke of roll-off rentals. Places like Netflix movie sets and
Tagawa Greenhouse rent roll-off containers. There are other collections that result
in overages, so they need to make sure that they are looking at the source of these
overages carefully. They separate fees from the constituents, so that constituents
are not paying for services that they are not using. In the language of the contract,
the County is getting the money labeled as “Overages”, but it is roll-off rental
money.

Commission McCall: Asked if the roll-off rentals should come out of the landfill
collection.

Martin Lucero: Roll-off equipment belongs to the JPA membership, not the
County. Approximately 3 years ago, the books were split, and it has been running
smoothly.

Commissioner McCall: Mr. Lucero mentioned a change coming. Asked if this
will affect the contract.

Martin Lucero: Joint-powers agreements are complicated. They are applying
different functionalities to different municipalities or unincorporated areas. If a
long-term solution for strategic planning services is wanted, then it would be a
comprehensive service. If we had one system, they could make it work for
everyone. EVSWA can grow into it if the members are willing to work together.



21

Commissioner McCall: Asked to have clarified if they are speaking about a 5-
year contract.

Madam County Manager Barela: It is important to decide what will work best. It
could end right now and then it would need to be decided whether a 5-year contract
is what is best right now, or if a one-year while the details are worked out is best.
Her goal is to make a contract that is sustainable enough that they can do some
strategic capital planning. She does not want to have a contract that is too short,
unless it is an extension of the current contract while they work on the details of a
new contract.

Martin Lucero: There seems to be redundancy even with the ordinance. He said
that if some of the elements could be changed in the contract, they may be able to
take ownership of enough different items out that they can completely discard the
contract. They are quasi-governmental, a special district, subject to review.
Through their enumerated power, the County Commission sets the fee. He wants to
address if they are under- or over-charging the County constituents.

Madam County Manager Barela: Specifically, outside the ordinance, there is
nothing that states that they would be covering the billing. The EVSWA and
County need something that outlines who will take over the billing.

John Butrick, County Lawyer: Asked what the turnaround time is on getting a
trash receptacle.

Martin Lucero: EVSWA does not provide receptacles to the residents. They must
take their trash to the collection station. Some residents opt-out and get a discount
in the private hauler system, and get their waste picked up by a private company.
They do not handle it.

If a new account holder came in and needed a new account. What they would need
is to come down to permitting, they would go down to Planning and Zoning, then
P&Z would send them to EVSWA. They would then flag their account as “under
construction”, while they get their property ready. When they then announce that
they are inhabiting the property, they are charged for services within the quarter.
They may use the service as soon as they are inhabiting the property.

Commissioner McCall: Had questions on fees, outstanding liens, any available
numbers.



22

Martin Lucero: Referred to the page in handout (attached) labeled “Collections”.
Mr. Lucero and Madam County Manager Barela have had many conversations and
meetings about the contract and their goals and the necessary information each side
needs to complete the contract and feel 100% fulfilled that everything has been
covered. They are not there yet but are working diligently on it.

Chairman Schwebach: Pointed out that he is not as informed as he would like to
be about the entire situation regarding the EVSWA contract, and the numbers that
go along with it. He believes that Mr. Lucero and the employees in EVSWA all
run it well. His main concern is that he believes the Commission and the County
have no management ability without the right information and tools for the job.
They need instruction on how the ordinance and contract will dictate how the
EVSWA is run. Also, residents are asking for curbside pickup and he wants
options for the community.

-PAUSE FOR CD SWAP-

Martin Lucero: As a JPA, they could run their own curbside pickup if it is a
feasible option. Wants to address the private hauler/discount situation. Believes
they need a comprehensive system. Right now, it is piecemeal, and has been for a
long time.

Chairman Schwebach: Believes it is time to evolve this contract and give the
County options, and to be upfront about everyone’s responsibility.

Martin Lucero: Went over the highlights slide from the presentation packet. This
included the fact that EVSWA competed against other Solid Waste Authorities in
the U.S. and Canada and got the Best Safety Innovation Award! Mr. Lucero wants
to highlight the employees that he has, and make it known what a great team they
are. He is very proud of them and all that they accomplish. He wants to shine a
spotlight on Scott Guffy, who was awarded Recycler of the Year! Torrance County
is highly recognized when it comes to Solid Waste Disposal.

Mr. Lucero is offering to partner with communities in the County for Clean-Up
Days, and whenever they would like to do so they should contact him. He is
always looking for opportunities to partner up with local towns and other groups to
help the Torrance County Community.

EVSWA bought a compactor at Northern for roughly $55K recently. They had to
get the compactor from a landfill revenue to be able to purchase it because of the



23

cap on spending. They also want to be able to talk about how best to use capital
outlay funds.

Collection Station Permits have been renewed, as required by the NM
Environmental Solid Waste Rules Act. Maintaining permits requirements include
training and updating operating and contingency plans.

A newsletter has been started by EVSWA. If you are not receiving one, live in
Torrance County, and would like to be on the list, please contact EVSWA.

They have been getting people on the index to get promissory notes from the
public on their lien debt.

EVSWA has gained the following grants on the contract:

e RAID Grants, FY-2021- $15K for Manzano Cleanup. Requested many but
only received the one grant for cleanup.
e CNG Grants, FY-2021- $608K for the purchase of two roll-off trucks.

EVSWA requested capital outlay for the electrical compactor but did not receive
the funding. The electrical compactor still needed to be purchased, so it is now
stationed at Northern. It reduces the amount of transportation fees. Mr. Lucero
stated that he wants to address Capital Development. He believes that they need to
make sure that they include specifics as far as what is needed in capital outlay.

Commissioner McCall: Asked if there is there a tarping rule (Covering your
vehicle bed or trailer with a tarp so that trash does not escape the confines of the
vehicle before arriving at the Solid Waste Station.) There is a lot of trash flying out
onto the highways.

Martin Lucero: Answered affirmatively, that they do have a tarping rule. There is
a fee if there is no tarp covering your trash. EVSWA does not have the ability to
collect revenue at their stations. They charge an excess fee for not tarping, but it is
billed to their account. A person from out of town may drop off refuse at the
collection station, but they need to have a tip ticket. The issue with municipal
residents is that the 95-gallon container does not contain all their trash, so they go
to certain stores, usually a hardware store, and buy a tip ticket. EVSWA
desperately needs to electricity at the power stations. The only station with power
right now is Northern. If they get electricity, they could take payment. Mr. Lucero
thinks that a workshop would really be a great thing because it is difficult to come
to an agreement without knowing the nuances of waste collecting.



24

Madam County Manager Barela: In the budget hearings a Code Enforcement
Officer position was approved. Part of the importance of this position is to clean up
trash in the County. Partnering with EVSWA to help enforce cleanup is something
the County has been considering.

Martin Lucero: EVSWA already does partner with Code Enforcement for waste
pickup in the community, and Mr. Lucero said that they work well with Dan
DeCosta of Planning and Zoning. A possible cost-share split is in preliminary
discussion.

Thanked the Commission and Madam County Manager Barela.

Chairman Schwebach: Thanked Mr. Lucero for coming in for the discussion
today.

C. Manager: Process for soliciting and hiring Building Architect,
Landscape Architect and Civil Engineer for County Fairgrounds.

Deputy County Manager Philip Tenorio: Pulled up documents that he went over
on the screen. All presentation materials hereto attached.

Mr. Tenorio gave the County Commission an update on the Sites Southwest
proposal for the Torrance County Fairgrounds improvements, beginning with a
total estimation for the project at $1.4Mil.

Chairman Schwebach: Asked for clarification on where the total estimation
number of $1.4Mil. came from.

Deputy County Manager Tenorio: Explained that the estimation is a total of the
appropriation budget, at $57k, the 2020 appropriation is $150k, and the 2021
appropriation of $700k, which is a total of approximately $900k. What they are
considering “Phase III” is the 15k square foot improvements, at $34, comes to
approximately $500K. This is a grand total of $1.4Mil.

If they were to pay for the full design of the architecture, it would be closer to
$88k. Their fee is based on a percentage of estimated construction costs.

Mr. Tenorio continued to expand on the numbers and timelines, which were split
between what he is hoping to get done before and after the 2021 Torrance County
Fair.



25

Mr. Tenorio also brought up the fact that the County could either send everything
to RFP and let them manage the project at once, or alternatively send the 3
packages out one at a time. It could take 3-5 months to solicit an architect.

Noah Sedillo, Purchasing Director: Roughly 90 days is what it took for the
Southern Torrance County Economic Development Plan, after the RFP was
complete and sent out. It was a professional service agreement, and they were able
to directly negotiate with Mr. Corey Baker, who completed the Road Department
Building, because it stayed below $60k. The County would be able to use different
contractors and architects if they stay under $60k.

Commissioner McCall: Would prefer to get quotes on the metal shell of a
building and save as much money as possible.

Noah Sedillo: Would recommend negotiating if the County is seeking only the
architectural plan. If the County is looking at a multi-source award for a Master
Plan, Civil Site Engineering and Architectural Design plan, then an RFP is what he
would suggest instead.

John Perea, Torrance County Fair Board: Wanted to inform the Commission
that the Fair Board agrees on placement with the County Commission. The work
for the fans is still supposed to be donated as well.

Deputy County Manager Tenorio: Would like to have the fans done before the
fair in August.

Cheryl Allen, Torrance County Grants Manager: Wanted to remind the
Commission that the Master Plan is to look beyond just the building but also for
the community gardens, the landscaping, parking, and overall design of the
Fairgrounds.

Chairman Schwebach: Asked about the Master Plan within the Southern
Economic Development and how much more it needs to be expanded at this time.
He would like to keep it mainly the way it is for now.

Cheryl Allen: Looking for concrete information so that she can put in requests for
grants and funding as soon as is possible.

John Perea: Informed the Commission that the pig pens may be removed. They
are not needed at all before or after the fair.



26

Commissioner McCall: Asked the Fair Board to come up with square footage
needs of the animals that are brought to the fair.

John Perea: Explained that they would probably need approximately 50 5°x5’
pens for the animals, and that they are utilizing the panels that were built in the
early 2000’s that had been in storage.

The Commissioners and Mr. Perea debated the placement of show animal
pens.

D. Manager’s Report:

Madam County Manager Barela: Read the Manager’s Report, hereto attached.
Madam County Manager Barela spoke about the fires in Arizona and the decreased
air quality in the State of New Mexico. She also reminded the citizens of Torrance
County to always know where their go-bag is and what to do should an emergency
happen. She announced open and newly filled positions within the County.

Madam County Manager Barela also announced the suspension of all re-
organization of the Torrance County Sheriff’s Office Transport Division pending
the outcome of the Petition for Certification.

E. Commissioner’s Reports:
1. ) Commissioner McCall, District 1:

Commissioner McCall: Told the Community how wonderful it is to see them
back at the meetings. He has also wanted to encourage more people to show up to
the meetings.

Deputy County Manager Phillip Tenorio: Updated the Commissioner on his
previous challenge to the Torrance County Community to get creative in solutions
for the Road Department. Mr. Tenorio believes he came up with a great solution
along with Noah Sedillo. The state appropriation is not available until September
and there is no way to borrow and pay it back before that time. The only other
thing that can be done is to pre-purchase the metal building from a separate fund,
with the full intention of NOT reimbursing the fund.



27

The cost of a metal building is roughly $100k. An RFP can be done when
September comes, and the appropriation is released. The County may then
complete the project, minus the building. If we purchase the building and the
contractors bid it, there will be parts missing that a contractor can not be held
responsible for (Nuts, bolts, various parts).

Commissioner McCall: Asked if we can start the process of getting bids without
the appropriations money yet.

Noah Sedillo, Purchasing Director: Answered in the negative. Explained that we
would be premature from our notice of obligation. If we did anything before the
notice of obligation, we would be on the hook. Even if we did not award a contract.

Commissioner McCall: Asked if we had any previous funding for the Road
Department building from appropriations.

Madam County Manager Barela: Mrs. Barela believes that when the County
was in talks with Senator Schmedes about the Junior Appropriations money he had
to use, that money gets put into a fund and distributed. Then anything that is
reappropriated, that they go back out to bond again and distributed once more.

2.) Commissioner Schwebach, District 2

Chairman Schwebach: No updates at this juncture.

3.) Commissioner Candelaria, District 3

Commissioner Candelaria: The Commissioner would like to remind everyone to
be careful with fire this summer. There was a fire recently that almost got out of
control in the Manzano area. He wants everyone to pay attention and make sure
that they put any fires that are started completely out.

Commissioner Candelaria also mentioned that there is a tractor parade the weekend
of Saturday, June 12, 2021.

Mr. Candelaria would also like everyone to know that there are openings with his
road crew. It is a chance to travel and make good money. Contact District 3
Commissioner LeRoy Candelaria at: lcandelaria@tcnm.us, or call

@ (505) 270-8394




28

EXECUTIVE SESSION: No executive session this day.

14.ANNOUNCEMENT OF THE NEXT BOARD OF COMMISSIONER’S
MEETING: June 23, 2021 @ 9:00 AM

15.ADJOURN:
ACTION TAKEN:
Chairman Schwebach Made a motion to adjourn.
Commissioner McCall: Seconded the motion.

Regular Session Adjourned at 12:16 P.M.

Signed By:

Ryan Schwebach — Torrance Valerie Smith — Admin Assistant,
County Board of Commission Torrance County Clerk’s Office
Chairman

Date: / /2021

The Video of this meeting can be viewed in its entirety on the Torrance
County NM website. Audio discs of this meeting can be purchased in the
Torrance County Clerk’s Office and the audio of this meeting will be aired on
out local radio station KXNM.



ORRANCE COUNTY

MANAGER'S REPORT

6/9/2021

Janice Y. Ba_rela‘
~ 505-544-4703
 jparela@tcnm.us . R




Departments Update

Emergency Manager

There has been a smoky haze in the County. This smoke is coming from fires in Arizona and southwest
New Mexico. The jet stream flows right into our area. Please keep an eye on the air quality alerts. If you
have breathing issues, you may want to stay inside and not do any physically exerting activity until this
passes. It should start to clear up today, and hopefully in the next couple of days be fully cleared out of
the County. .

This is a good reminder that we are entering fire season. This is a good time to assess your properties for
defensible space and evacuation plan in the event of a fast-moving fire.

If you have access to social media, specifically Facebook, you may want to follow the Torrance County
Emergency Manager Page. Emergency Manager Matt Propp puts out weekly tips on wildfire preparations
such as how to create defensible space and what to put in your to-go bags, and what all to include in your
evacuation plans.

Treasurer’s Office

Delinquent Tax Notices were mailed out making it a busy time for the Treasurer’s Office. All current

accounts are eligible to get on a Pre-Payment Plan. This allows taxpayers the opportunity to make

monthly payments towards their property taxes so that it does not hit them all at once in December. If you

would like more information on the Pre-Payment Plan, please call the Treasurer’s Office at 505-544-
4800,

Human Resources

Open Posted Positions:

Victim Support Specialist

EMT-Firefighter

EMT-Lieutenant

Mechanic-Equipment Operator

911 Dispatcher (6)

Summer Enrichment Internship

Student Work—Study program (ngh School Semors)

Filled Positions:

One 911 Dispatchers
Animal Control Officer — Fully Staffed
Grants Assistant
- Appraiser Apprentice
Victim Support Specialist
Treasury Controller
Tax Specialist III



Open but not posted:

¢ - Code enforcement officer
o Legal Assistant
» Emergency Manager Specialist

To get more information about these positions or to apply for any of these positions, please visit the
County’s website at www torrancecountynm.org, Click on “Job Opportunities™,

Parking Lot

The north side of the County Administrative Building parking is getting paved. This is the last phase of
the project.

The next parking lot project will be Dispatch, Animal Services and District 3 Fire Station.



Agenda Item
No. 9-A4



OTTTP®s 71 Aoeil

"SYDEHD HSHHL SSHD0¥d OL LNIWLIVAHEA HONYNIJ HHL HZZIVOHINY AGINAH SHOQ ANV HIVd SIHI NO
JENSST 8 OL SMOHHD HTIVAVd SINOODDVY FSHIHL J04 LSIXI SANAL INIIDIALNS IVHL XATTIED AEFYIH SHOA IAINSYANIL ALNNOD CANSISYHANA HHL

0I930 SUUOAX UDRQOMUDS URAY RTIRTOPURD "W AO¥ST ITeD0oH UTASY

A9 LSHLLY : GINDIS

TAINNOD HONVIEOL A€ dIVd NIAE SYH I¥Vd ON IVHL ANV qIEEOY SY ANV 'HIGUNOSYEN ‘ISNC T¥¥ dEWIVID SLINOOWY

FHL IVHL ‘CENINVXE NIZ#d SYH ¥HHONOA SIHLI IVHL ‘¥Ed0¥d GNY A¥VSSHEDEN ¥dY XIHL IVHLI ‘NISNSH SINNODDY HHI NT AIIYLS SY TIWIOJdId

NEHe FAVH SEDIAYHES HHI IVHL "NIFIHZH QIIVLS NOILVSNHJWOD HHI FAIZDEYI OL ODIXAW MEN 40 SHIAIVIS EHL 40 NOTIALILSNOD HHIL ¥IGNO CHTLILIND

ATTUDHET Z¥V SNOSWHI CAWYN NIHLIM FHL LVYHL AJIL¥ED HM ° TZ0Z/LT/SC ONIGNA dOI¥Ed HHIL J04 HAOSY NMOHS SY SIEDIANAS HHIL ¥0d QEEUnd

-NI SNOIIVDITHO d0 INAODDY NO LT 0%LZZZ - J0 WOS HHL ¥OJ4 AINNOD HONVENOL 40 SANNS THI LSNIVOY SINVIYYM HHL HZIYOHLNY O ® qHEHMOTTY
QIA0UAGY FIEM HIAOEY CHIVEAWANT SWIVID FHL IVHL XJITEED Od SYINOISSIWWOD 40 Q¥V0d AINAOD IONVIIOL HHL J0 SUSSHEK CEINDISITEAND HHL

s0c¢ QAINTEI SMOIHD TYLOL

NOILVYDIAIILEED
- (T9DHEHD) 20%8g£6  1IT/LT/9 :93ed



00°08T SNOILOETE

TZ0Z/L0/S0
00°0cC /7 922z-TZ-T0% 1TZ0Z/LZ/S "IOOHDS NOILDHETH AVd T 00°08T
00°09T TZ0Z/E0/90 TZE9BT 9¢¢T-1e-10% Tz0Z/T/9 EDANC AV¥GE T NATEH ‘VIEIVE L9€9TT O 10
88° 5% TZAd INVED TV¥O0T IMd
29 PE01T INAWILAVAEA d¥0d ALNOOD €T 92 HDA0L dILYg0dd 26671 ’ FOSSASSY ALNNOD
0TS NOILLVILSININAVY LNVID 67 €0¢ YIANSYIEL ALNAOCD 2§ €8T . IIId ONIM
88°G% ONI¥OLINOW ALINARWNOD TL"€8C YILNED HOIVISIA-TT6E 6% 98T SEDINYES TYHWINY
88°S¥ ONISSHEOAY THand 9L T6 DNINOCZ ¥ ONINNVIZ 88°S¥ CMYATO ALNOOD
T9LTLYT YEDYNVH ALNOOD T6°98L INANLOTIY FUIL HLVLS 89°9%1 XYL SHE/SNOIIYDINAWWOD
A 57681 INIWNLIVATA HONUYNII 8e €€T NYNIINIVA ® SNOILVIHJO 887 5% AANIOLLY
88 10T NOISSIWKOD ALNACD 08°99% SI¥d 40 NOIIVIMOdSNVEL ¥1°588C dATTEHS ALNOOD
88°S¥ / 7/ L0ZZ-2Z-509 iMa
S vE0T / 7/ L0ZZ-09-20% avod
£T-9¢ /7 L0OTZ-06-T0% HIVE0Id
TZT SEtT /7 : L0TZ-95-T0% IONYNIL
T6°6%T /7 LOZZ-0%-T0% d0SSESSY
88°T0T / /7 L0TZ-0T-T0% FEIOVNYR
70" TS !/ / LOZZ-67-T0V SLNYID
Te"g0¢g / 7/ L022-~0€-TO0% FIENSTIIL
257 €8T /7 L02C2-60-069 0dodL
88797 / /7 L0ZZ-€L-0T% YOLINOW XLINAWWOD p
TL €8T / / L0OZZ-08-T1T6 HOLY4SIA
67 98T / 7 L022-28-T0% SHOIA¥ES TIVHINY
88°9¥% / LOTT-LO-SGLO DNISSHIAaY IvdINd
9L " T6 / /7 L0TZ-80-T0% zd
88°S¥ / / L0ZZ-0T-TI0¥ p:x-tciaiel
88 9% / 7 L0ZZ-0T-10% ’ qH
207 0%t /7 LOZZ-S9-T0% HONVYNZILNT YW
[A 0 -1 / 7/ L0TZ-T16-60% aian ¥ ISIa
[A 2] / 7 LOZTZ~-T6-LO0F . aan T LSIA
9€° €6 / /7 LOTZ-T6-90% adA 2 &LSIa
9€°¢€6 /7 L0CZ-T6-50% Gdn § ISIa
2957 €67 / 7 L0TT-T6-€1¥ NINQVY HITJ
89° 97T / LOTZ-E€8-%09 LNANIOVNYHN ADNADEIANA
(A2 ) /7 L0ZZ-95-T0% 0dd
3E€° €6 / /7 LOZZ~S9~-TO% 5d0
88°S¥% /7 L0OZZ-95-T0% IAMVT
88°1I0T /7 L0ZZT-S0-T10% 609ST6ZLTLBZHLIODY NOISSIWHOD 1Z0Z/L0/90
8- 997 /7 L0ZZT-PL-0CF TZ0Z AVW LIOdSNVILL IS"86¥%L
$1°688C TZ0Z/€0/90 TZEST LO0ZTZ-0S-T0% AATYHHS SHDEVHO ATHLNOH 27T ALITIIEON & % LY 99€9TT ¥ 10
L6° LS9 SHOILL0 IATIVILSINIWAY
6LS3¢ SEZTHIDTIOANI /XYL
6L53¢ ITYD @DIAYES TZ0Z/L0/90
6L59¢ - AOVETIN L6 LSS
L6 LS9 6L59¢T “IZOT/LO/390 TZTE98Y STCZ-S1-T0% NIWAY ALNNOD - SSYID EIVAHY T0D ‘SSYID NOSYIANY §9¢91T ¥ 10
64°80T 5$Id9d 40 NOILYLIOdSNYEL
TEWA-AALH-HAMTH#IDIOANT ) TZ0Z/L0/90
60°TT TLPOE /7 9€TT-7L-0T% DNIJdTIHS JEIVWILSH - 6L°80T
oL L6 YLY9E TZ0Z/€0/30 TTE99T 9€ZZ-vL-0T¥% ISTOH NOD IIN ADINDTS ANVIIIVIVS SSHENISNE NOZVRY 72€9TIT ¥ IO
Junouy # 0d ALYd # 90TOAUI we3r SUTI uotadransag sSweN HIVA #3D

T :abed

TZOZ/LI/9 OL TZ0Z/¥/9 WO¥A CGHINI¥ SMDOEHD. ONILLSIT MDIHD

(09DFHD) LG 0E76 IZ/LT/9  :33eA



00°0c /7 9zzZ~TZ-10% 1TIZOZ/LZ/S TOOHDS NOILDHETH AVA.T 00708T
00°091T 1Z0Z/€0/90 TTESET 9222-12-10% TZ0Z/TO/90 M¥ATID AV¥A T ALIEE “dFLIED 89€9TT ¥ TO



00" TS DNINOCZ % ONINNYIA

TZ0Z/L0/920
. . . ) 1202/20/90 00°T9
00°19 0BESE TZ0Z/€0/90 TZE9BS S02Z-80-T10% ONILZIN QI¥0od Z®d 020T : : ANHIEY * ERWEYHONA 9L€9TT ¥ IO
00 €92% AITITHS ALINQOD
Y0%9€ OSOI#HDIOANT
P0%9€E : SAEEN HONYNAINIYH OSIH
$0¥9€ ) YFHLO ‘SINIWNOITY ‘SAIITHSANIM
$0¥9€ ‘SQINTd ‘S¥HdIM ‘SIVIA ‘SEONVIVE . TZ0Z/L0/90
v0¥9€E . aNvy INQOW ‘SH¥TL ‘STONVHD TIO : 00°€92%
00°€92% »0v9€ IZ0Z/€0/90 TIZESTI T02Z-0S-T0% FONYNILNIVN HIDTHAA 1Z0ZIIddY TAIIOHOINY Id SLESTT 4 10
00°08T SNOIIDETH
1202/L0/90
00°02 / 7 9zzZz-12-T0% TZ0Z/LZ/S0 TTOOHDS NOIIDATA X¥Q T 00°08T
00°09T " TZ0Z/€0/90 TZESF¥ 9ZzZZ-12-10% TZ0Z/T0/90 =OANL AVA T ) YATIS ¥NNYIQ vLESTIT O TO
00°08T . ' SNOILOHTH
. TZ0Z/L0/90
00°02 : . / / 9222-T2-10% 120ZT/LZ/S0 TOOHDS NOILIDHETI A¥A T . 00°08T
00°09T 1T0T/€0/90 TgE9Ze 92zZ-12-T0% : TZ0ZT/T0/90 M¥ITD A¥d T ATWAY ' SIAYA €LEITT ¥ TO
T8°€8 AATYAHS AINOOD
9606000€
) #IDDY Z88ZTTS0FSHIDIOANT
68E€SE v NIWGY #dId.
68€G€ HOIVASIA T16
68€SE . INTWLIVEEA AR ) TZ0Z/L0/90
I8°€8 68€SE /7 2z2Z-0S-0T% INFWIIVIEA S JATATHS . I8°€8
68€S€E TZE9ST ) ONIQIING FAIIVALSINIWAY AINAOD Z "ON NOILLVIOJ¥0D SVINID ZTLESTT ¥ TO
00°08T SNOILDITH
. 1Z0Z2/L0/90
00°0T : /] 92ZZ-~TC~T0% TZ0Z/LT/S0 TOOHDS NOIIDITH A¥A T 00°08T
00°09T 120Z/€0/90 T2E9IT 9ZzZ-T1¢-T0% TZ0Z/T0/90 M¥ITO A¥A T FAVI ' ZAAVHD TLESTT ¥ TO
00°08T SNOIIDHIH
1Z0Z/L0/90
00702 / /7 92ZZ-12-10% 1Z0T/LZ/S TIOOHDS NOIIDATE A¥d T 00°08T
00°09T TZ0Z/€0/90 TTEI0T 92zz-12-10% TZ0Z/TO/90 XETTO AVA T IOINMEL ' ZHIAYHD 0LEITT ¥ T0
¥6°ZBLT ¥ .SSOID AVILAO TYLIAWD
TZ0Z/L0/90
08%FTHIDOY 8T6V0ETEHEDIOANT ¥6°28LT
76 Z8LT 1202/€0/90 1ZE€9Z €192-96-129 000-88%L9L0-T00 IDVIINODIIOD SOAS TYIDNUNIL AVTIIZILLYD 69€9TT O TO
00°08T SNOTIIDATI
120Z/L0/90
JUNOWY # 0da HIVA  # SDTOAUT waj3I PUTT | uotadrIosaa SweN HIVA #3ID

4 :ebeg © Tzoz/LTI/9 OL TZOZT/¥/9 WOUA JHINTIEE SADIHD DNILSIT ADHHD (09DHHD) LG:0E:6 TZ/LT/S :@7ed



00°T9 - bssse TZ0Z/€0/90 TZESIY S022¢-80-10% ONILIIW Q¥Y0d 234 TZ0cT INOC YNILSINHD ‘VAVdLSH LLESTT ¥ TO




007002 SNOIIDATH
TZ0Z/L0/90
0002 /7 92ZZ-12-10% 1Z0Z/LZ/S0 TOOHDS NOIIDITE AVA T 007002
00°081 1202/€0/90 TZE98T 92ZzZz-1Z-T0% TZ0Z/T0/90 EOANCL ONICISENE A¥d T ENNOAK ‘TANIH 98€9IT O 10
00°08% SNOILDHTH
1202/L0/90
00°0¢ /7 92ZZ-1Z-T0% 1Z0Z/LT/S0 TOOHDS NOILIDHTE A¥A T 00°08T
007091 1202/£0/90 TTE9LEZ 922z-12-10% 1Z0Z/T0/90 ADAAD AVA T "M ANV ZENIEILOD S8€9TT O IO
00°08T SNOILOHTH
T20Z/L0/90
00702 /7 922Z-12-10% T20Z/LZ/S0 TOOHDS NOIIDITE AVd T 00°08T
60°09T TZ0Z/E€0/90 TZE99Z 92zZ~12~-10% TZ0Z/T0/90 ¥NTID AVA T YNIIYH ‘ AETIYD ¥8€9TT ¥ TO
00°08T SNOTIOFIH
TZ202/L0/90
00702 /7 92zz-12-10% T120Z/LZ/S TOOHDS NOIIDETE A¥A T 00°08T
00709t TZ0Z/E£0/90 TTE9ST 9zZZ-12-10% 1202/T0/90 MO AYA T YAV YIDEYD £8E9TT A TO
067002 SNQIIOHTH
06" / / S02Z-TZ-T0% n/d X0€ LOTIVE FOVHIIN T202/L0/90
co- oz /7 9Z2Z-12-T0% 120Z/LZ/S0 TOOHDS NOIIDETH X¥d T 06002
00°08T 1202/£0/90 TZE9PET 92Z2-12-10% TZ0Z/T0/90 =IOANL DNIATDEAE A¥A T ENNOAZ LIANOLNNY ‘YIDUVD Z8€9IT O TO
00" 08T SNOILOHTH
120Z/L0/90
00702 /7 92ZZ-12-T0% 120Z/LZ/S0 TTOOHDS NOILIQHTE A¥A I 00°08T .
00°09T 1202Z/€0/90 TZE9ET 92ZZ-12-10% TZ0Z/T0/90 EHAAL AVA T YHSATY 'VYIDWYD I8€9TT ¥ 10
00°081 SNOTLOATH
1Z0Z/L0/90
00°02 /7 922Z-12-10% 1202/L2/S0 TOOHDS NOTIDITH AVA T 00°08T
00°09T TZ6Z/€0/90 TZE9I8Y 9222-12-10% TZ0Z/10/90 YITID AVA T VIDITES ‘LHOTIM-YIDWYD 08£9TT ¥ TO
00°T9 ONINOZ % ONTNNYId
120Z/L0/90
) 1202/20/90 00°T9
00°T9 T8ESE 1202/€0/90 TZE96S 502Z-80~10% ONIIEAN IVY0d Z3d WIL ‘I80¥4 6LESTT ¥ 10
0%°2699T NOISSIWWOD AINAOD
1202/L0/90
LHS0000L60ZLHEIIDY 0%°2699T
0% Z699T TZ0Z/€0/90.TZE91S Z6ZZ-S0-61¥ €ZTEHEDIOANT SHES DNIGAIL YMSAH 8LE€9TT ¥ I0
0019 DNINOZ ¥ ONINNYIL
1202/20/90 TZ0Z/L0/90
0559¢€ NOTIYSNEANCD 00°19
Junouy # od ZIYA  # 90TOAUT walI SuUTT uot3d1Iosaq - oweN 2IVA #31D
QYINTIE SYDHHD  ONILSIT XOTHD (09DEHD) L§70€:6  1Z/LT/9 :@3ed

£ :obea

T20Z/LT/S OL 120T/%/9 WO¥I



1202/€0/90 IZEYET

0TCC-16-90% INTIEND T20Z/T/9 HIV¥A FDIOANTI

“00 ¥AIVM QYALSHWOH

LBESTT ¥ 10




SS°8
00-06¢C
007081

S0ZZ-TZ~T0% a/4d X0g ILOTIVE EDVETIN
92ZZ-TZ~TO0V TZOZ/LZ/S0 TTOOHDS NOILDETI AVd T
922z-TZ-T0% TZ0T/TI0/90 =OANL ONIAISTIL A¥d T

YTIVH ‘OLYAOT

1Z02/L0/90
§5°802
96€9TT ¥ 10

00702
007091

9¢ce-1¢-T0% 1Z/LZ/S TOOHDS NOIIDETE Avd T

00°08T

HLVIIATY dIT IJ0T

SNOILOHATH

TZ0Z/L0/90
00°08T
S6€9TT ¥ TO

00°1I9 »8ESE

922Z-1Z-T10% 1zoz/1/9 FIDANL X¥A
1202/2/9
§0CZ-80-T0% ONILIIN (AY0od Z34a

00" 19

NYTIVH ‘NOSMYT

ONINOZ ¥ ODNINNYIA

1202/L0/90
00" 19
T6E9TT ¥ 10

TZ02/20/90 ONIIFIW

S0Z2Z-80-T0% IY0HE ONINOZ ONY ODNINNYIL

00" 19 DNINOZ ® ONINNVIZ

ITYD  IIEDNYI

TZ0Z/L0/90
00°T9
€6E€9TT O I0

00°0S<CT

LYIEHIDIOANT SONILITRN
NOISSIWWOD ¥04 ILSYOOw0odd

£€%2Z-50-10% ALINOWAOD WNXM LOVILNOD

00°0S2T

L7 88 NWJA-WNXI

NOISSIWWOD ALNNOD

1zZ0zT/L0/90
00°082T
Z6E9TT ¥ 10

00°0c
00" 08T

92zz-TZ-T0% 1TT0Z/LT/S0 TIOOHDS NOIIDETH A¥d T
9TCT-TC-TO0¥ 120Z/T0/90 =OANL X¥A

i

00081

T ¥O0EdEd  “II0N

SNOIIDITH

1Z0ZT/L0/90
00°08T
T6€9TT ¥ TO

9Z2Z-TZ-10% 120Z/LT/S0 TIOOHDS NOILDHETHE AV¥A T
9ZZZ-TT-10% TZ0Z/T0/90 HDAAL AVA T

007081

TTENYL THHLI “SW ENVH

SNOILOATH

T20Z/L0/90
007 08T
06€9TT ¥ IO

00°0¢
00°09T

92ZT-TT-T0V ITO0Z/LT/S0 'TOOHDS NOIIDHTH A¥d T
9Ccc-12-10¥% T20Z/T0/90 EDANL AVA T

00°08T

"I ENITYVd ‘SNIMNHEC

.mZOHHUmqm
T20Z/L0/90
00°08T
68E€9TT ¥ 10

9EP9E
9£%9€
€97 89 SEYSE

1Z0Z/€0/90 TZE9E

T00C-ETYEDDSEHHADIOANT
TZ0Z/0€/% aQNY
T20Z/€2/% ND¥ OL dJ¥ NOIINIATEJ

TZ2Z-£T-509 /LIN0D NIEFL ¥04 AV I¥OHT

£9°8S - INVED NOIINGIYLSIA IMA

OTT SMAN INIAONAIZEANT

1202/L0/9¢0C
€9°89
88¢91I1T ¥ 10

JUNoWY # od

TZ0Z/LT/9 OL

06EEYY . DONIQVHE WHLHW

wa3I BUTT wotadransag

1202/%/9 WO¥d CHINIIG SADIHD DNILSIT ADTHD

TT 67 INIWLOTIVY IITI FIYLS

[dUWeN

(0SDHEHD) LS:0€%6

T20Z/L0/90
TZ 6%

(e #3D

TZ/LT/9 :93ed



S5°80C SNOI.LDHTH



TZ0Z/%T/€0

€z 0¢ /7 £0ZZ-0T-T0% -TZ0T/ST/Z0 Y04 SITDEVHD FOVIFAO 1202/L0/90
T1202/%1/20 TL BST
$9°2¥ TZ0Z/€0/90 TZESFS €02Z-0T-10% -TZ0Z/ST/T0 ¥OJ SHOUVHD IOWIIAO ano¥d =ANN S0¥9TT ¥ TO
20" TSP  INIYW XETAWOD TYIDIANC
TTESHIDTIOANT
z5° 82 8%59¢€ /7 §TZZ-9T-10% : XYL
8759¢ ) T8z# WATEO MUOM
8%59¢ XATAROD - TYIDIAND
8%E9€E INTNIIVIEI S, dATITHS
00°L9 8%59¢ /7 7/ STZZ-9T-10% YIDONVISH TTYD EDTANES 1202/L0/90
00°5% 8%59¢ /7 STZZ-9T-T0% TIVISNT HSEAA Z0°15%
L0§°0TE 8%S9¢ 1Z0Z/€6/90 TTE99S S§12Z-9T-T0% AASOTD ¥OOQ - SWALSAS ONINDOT WN $0%9TT O TO
05°T652Z NOISSTWHOD ALNAOD
ANOC OL TI¥AY 1202/L0/90
MAIMYOD HIMOOJ TZ/0Z Ad DI NI 05° 16522
05- 16522 TZOZ/€0/90 TZEYES 1922-50-10% FOIA¥YES NOISNALXHE HAILVIEIO0D ALISMAATINN HIVLIS ODIXAW MEAN €0%9TT ¥ TO
00°08T SNOTIIDETE
1202/.0/90
00702 /7 922Z-1Z-T0% TZ0Z/LZT/S0 TOOHDS NOIIDETE A¥d T 00°08T
00°09T" TZ0Z/€0/90 TZEILE 9zzZ-12-10% 120Z/10/90 OGN, A¥A T ‘W ANINEHIVD ‘AVH ZOP9TT ¥ IO
00°08T SNOTIIDETE
. 1202/L0/90
00°0% /7 9zzZ-T12-T0¥% TZ0Z/LZ/S0 TOOHDS NOTIDETE AYA T 00°08T
00°091 120Z2/€0/90 1ZE99E 92zZ-12-10% 1z0Z/T0/90 FDANL X¥A T AIg99d ‘ ASSYH TO%9TT ¥ TO
S6°€2T WOSSHASSY AINOD
IDNWVIHOLHLIOY 0E9SHIDTOANT
07voE AANYS ¥ ‘ETIOD [ NOWOTOS I 1202/L0/S0
0%%9¢ ITOH € ‘ZEANYNNEH A ‘NELOY D S6°€2T
S6° €21 07v9¢€ 1202/L0/90 TZESLY 1222-0%-10% 005 0 SIIS ¢ SAVYD SSININSH ONI SHTDHIIVELS ONILENEVH 00%9TT ¥ TO
09-21Z SNOLLIDETH
09°z1T /7 5022-12-10% FOVEITH N/d X0g I0TIVE 1202/L0/90
00°0% /7 922Z-TZ-10% 1T0T/LE/S0 TOOHDS NOLIDETE A¥d T 09-212
00°08T 1Z0Z/€0/90 TTEYSE 9222-TZ-T0% TZ0Z/T0/90 HEOANL ONIGISHIA A¥d T NTAVY ‘' SEYH 66€9TT ¥ 10
01" 802 SNOIIDETH
0T 8 / 7 'G022-T2z-10% 0/d XOd IOTTYE EOVEIIN 1202/L0/90
000z /] 92Zz-TZ-T0% TZ0Z/LZ/S0 TOOHDS NOIIDETE X¥d T 07" 802
00°08T TZ0Z/£0/90 TTE9FE 9TZz-12-T0¥% TZ0Z/T0/90 AOANL DNIAISHIA AVA T "YW UNIZ ‘ONEDNT 86€9TT ¥ T0
007081 SNOIIDTTE
120Z/L0/90
00-0Z Y 92ZZ-TZ-T0% TZ0Z/LZ/S0 TOOHDS NOIIDETHE AVA T 00°08T
00°09T 120Z/£0/90 TZEIEE 9zzz-12-10% TZ0Z/T0/90 EHANL AVA T YANYI ‘O¥ED0T L6€STT ¥ TO
Junouy # od FIVA ~ # 9OTOAUI welI SUTT uoradrisssqg sueN FIVA #34D

S :abeg

TZOZ/LT/9 OL T20Z/%/9 WOUd TAINI¥A SADIHD ONILSIT MDHHD

(09DEHD) LG 0E£:6 Tg/LT/9  :93ed



TZ0Z/%T/%0
0T"9S /7 €0ZZ-0T-T0% ~ -TZ0T/ST/E0 ¥OL SHDIVHD HDOVIINAO



1Z08/L0/90

so0-0Z / 7/ 9222-TZ-10¥% HNON\PN\mo.AoomUW NOIIDHTH AY¥d T 00°08T.
00°09T TZ0Z/€0/90 TZESOT 9TTT-TT-T0% 1202/10/90 ¥¥ITID A¥d T OINIWIH ‘SYIYS €TIP9TT ¥ 10
00°08T SNOILDETH
. . T20Z/L0/S0
00°0¢Z / /7 922Z-T2-10% TZ0Z/S2/S0 "TOOHDS NOILDHATH AVd T 00°08T
007091 TZ0Z/€0/90 1ZTE96E 9222-12-T0% 120Z/10/90 HEDAAL AVA T YIOIO ‘OdAWONA ZI?P9TIT O TO
00°08T" SNOILOEIH
"T202/L0/90
00-o0¢ / 7/ 92ZZ-1Z-T0¥% 1202/L%Z/S0 TTOOHDS NOILDITIE AV T 60" 08T
007091 TZ0OZ/€0/90 TZE9BE 9ZTZ~TZ-T0¥ T20Z/T0/90 =DANL A¥d T NOTJIVIW 'ZETITI TIP9TT ¥ IO
9L TSLT INAWNLIVIHA d¥YOd ALNOOD
SEEEHEIDTIOANT
LZS9¢ gY¥67000~6T-000-06 YAMSHN
LZ59¢ 0ZZOT# dWNad ATIHEE
LZSS¢E QES0TH# dWNA AIIdE TZ0Z/L0/90
9L TBLT LZSSE /7 Y¥ZZ-09-20% 096Yd H S °%2YTT SLTT8LT
LZ99¢ TZE999 SHATL ANVAWOD HIIL NINEa=Ed OT¥9TIT ¥ IO
8€°8982T INIWINVYAZA Y0¥ AINOOD
. LETOH#IDIOANT
66¥%9¢ gY67000-6T-000-06 VAMSHN
66%9¢ 0ZZ0T ‘0€90T
6679¢€ # NIA dWOQ XTI73g
66%9¢€ €22920 'ZTTZ9T0 '609LZ '6L6SZ 1Z202/L0/90
. 6673¢ # NIA SYDOAL MOVW 8€°898CT
8€°898CT 66¥79¢€ TZ0Z/LO/S0 1TE9Z9 ¥¥ZZ-09-20% SHAIL 09S¥d H S PZATT ANVAWOD HYIL NINgadEd 60%9TT ¥ 10
SLTLOTT INAWLIVAEd YOI ALNQOD
TZ02/L0/90
. ZSvL SL7LOTT
SL7L9ZT T202/€0/90 TTESH L0ZZT-09-20% #HEDIOANI HIEVD dHTANE OL AIADYWYA TIIVLIAEQ FOVWYA/LSEMO 80%9TT ¥ IO
0% €9 AITETHS~ ALNNOD
1202/L0/90
TZ/L2/S0 NINLEY HSIN0D DNINIVIL 0%° €9
0¥y €9 TZ0Z/E0/90 TZE9E S0CZ-09-10% OL4d WN OSO4INd OL TIAVIL AYSED UNVININD LO¥9TIT O TO
69°9%2T JINIAWLIVAHT YOI XLNOOD
i §92£9S¥¢ TZ02/L0/30
H#ILDOV 8ZO0P-€SZTE-ILIHHEDIOANT 69°9%CT
69°9%2T 8S¥9¢ 1202/L0/90 TTE9SY 9€C2Z-09-20% HOIA¥AS WIOAIND INIWLIVIIA QYOI ATddNS TIVIEAO TYILNAIOII 90%9TT ¥ 10
TL #ST YADYNYN ZLNAOD
. TZ0Z/%T/S0
vL° ST // £0ZZ-0T-T0% -TZO0Z/ST/%0 ¥OJI SEOYVHD IDVIHAO
JUunowy # od HIYA # 20TOAUT waqI SUTT uotadixossa SweN H2LYa #3I0
9 :obeg T2Z0Z/LT/9 OL TZ0Z/%/9 WO¥S CHINTI¥Ed SADHHD ONILSIT MDOIHD (09D&HD) LS:0E%6 TZ/LE/S fe93ed



00°08T . SNOILOITH



612Z-TZ-10%

SNHEd dNId 2Id

JENFTLSYAL DNOIL FOIId <

HOVINVAQY SSHENISNE SETAVLS

120Z/L0/90
‘8L"€T
€ZTFITT O TO

61ZZ-0S-10¥

S8960TOLH#LODY

HONIAIAS JAINTII HENO NI TIV dH

12°2¢%

HDVINVAJY SSENISQE SHIIVIS

J4IYIHS ZLNOOD

TZ0Z/L0/90
TZ ZE¥
ZZP9TT O 10

© 98960TOLH#IDDY
COLTTSLLYE STILAYT ¥00TZD
LBTTETLLYE FHINIIA 00S5-DA

9497661

FOVINYAQY SSEANISNE STTAVIS

A4THAHS ALNNCD

TZ02/L0/90
96°G6T
TZ%9TT O 10

1202/LT/S0 TOOHDS NOILDHETHE A¥d T
T20Z/T0/90 DAL AVA T

00°08T

NOSYL ‘ZOJENSIS

SNOILOATH

TZ0Z/L0/90
00°08T
0Z¥9TT ¥ 10

1202/L2/S0 TOOHDS NOILDHTHE Avd T
TzZ0Z/10/90 HOHAOGL AVA T

00°08T

XIIVT 'YATIS

SNOILOETH

1Z02Z/L0/90 .
00°08T
6T¥9TT O TO

TZ0Z/LZ/S0 TOOHDS NOIILDATH AVd T
I202/T0/9 #EDHANL X¥A T

VYANIT ‘NITIAOHS

SNOILDETH

1Z0Z/L0/90
00°08T
8T¥9TT ¥ TO

120Z/LZ/S0 TOOHDS NOILDHETI A¥A T
TZ0Z/T0/90 IOAOL AVA T

00°08T

W LEIYOUVI ‘ TATIINVHS

SNOIILOETH

TZ0Z/L0/90
00708T
LIPOTIT ¥ TO

QYOI LH#LIOY

- 60TTOSHIDIOANI TZ0Z XAVKW TINA

ZS°LSS? LNIWILIVAEA Y0¥ ALNOOD

077 ‘WAETOALAL ADUINIS

TZ0Z/L0/90
Z4°LSSY
9TP9TT ¥ TO

1Z/LZT/S0 NMIALEY ESWNOD ONINIVIL
OL4i WN 050dINd OL THAVIL

0% €S

YEANYXETY TICYAMHDS

AATIIHS ALNNOD

TZ0Z/L0/90
07" €9
ST%2IT O T0

zZT TT ZES9€E

95zt zTES9E 1ZE9EY

1T Z€% . ST¥9E 1ZE9Z1

957 56T $679¢€ TZEOL

00°02Z

00°09T TZE9SY

00-02

00709t TZE9SY

00°02

00°09T TZEIET

0002

00709T 1ZE92¥

TS LSSY TZE9S

0% €S TZ€90T

0002

00°081T 1ZESTY
Junowy # 04 SOTOoAUT

:abeg TZ0Z/LT/9 OL

922Z-1Z-107%

TZ0Z/7/9 WO¥d QEINIYA SADHHO

HNON\DN\mo TOOHDS NOILDITH A¥Ad T°
TZ0Z/10/90 EDANL ONIAISHIE A¥A T

uotadransadg

ONILSIT MOHEHD

go-ooz

SYITH ‘ZTHDONVS

IWLeN

(09DHEHD) LS:0E°6

SNOILLDHTH
1Z0Z/L0/90
00002
PIP9TIT ¥ TO

ALYA #AD

T2/LT/9 . eleq



8L ET SNOILOHTH



120Z/L0/90
00°08T

00° 02 . /7 92ZZ2-TZ-T0% TZ0Z/LT/S0 TOOHDS NOIIDETIIA AVA T
00°09T TZ0Z/€0/90 TZEIOS 922Z~12-10% TIZ0Z/T0/90 MYATID X¥A T HIJ49 ‘dIEENIIZ TEYITT ¥ I0
oL-o0c SNOTLOHATE
oL 0z /7 S02Z-12-T0% n/d X0d ILOTIVE EDVITIN 1Z02/L0/90
oo-oz -/ 922Z-TZ-T0% T2Z0Z/L2/S0 "IOOHDS NOIIDHTH AVA T 0L7002
00°09T TZ0Z/€0/90 TZE96W 9Z2Z-TZ-T0% TZ0Z/T0/90 HOHANL ONIQISHEd A¥A T AWV YIOWYZ 0EP9TT ¥ 1O
¥ 8% JITIIHS AINOOD
8ZS59¢€ . HTIYIIIONT
8Z499¢ DNIFE QU¥D THNg SYD TZTOZ/LO/90
8TS9¢E OL HNd NOSIIHM G¥HD %" §%
¥ 9% 8299¢ T202/€0/90. TZESE 20TZ-0S-10% ALNGAA JOA HSYHOUNG TANI aYHD ‘NOSILIHM 6Z%9TT O 10
0070008 SI¥d J0 NOILVIROdSNVIL
OO0 ETHEDIOANT )
T19599¢€ $TT'LS EOVHETIN TZ0Z/L0/90
T859¢ 869V EHITIVXADEDT NIA 0070008
00°0008 TSS9€ TZ0Z/€0/90 TZTE99 8T9Z-V¥L-0Z¥% FIDIVHD =EHAOA %102 OYANDSON IO HDYTIIA 8Z¥9TT ¥ IO
00°zZt YIADYNYW AINNOD
1202/L0/90
T8S9¢E ) 8% X0d 04 60°2ZT
00°2Z1T 1859¢€ TI202/€0/90 TZESEZS 6922-0T-TO0% ¥od X0€ HDIAIO LSOd TYANNY FALSYHISOL SN LZ¥OTT ¥ TO
00°08T SNOTIOZETH
1202Z/L0/90
00°02 / / 9ZZZ-12-10% 1Z0T/LT/S0 TOOHDS NOILDITI AVA T 00°08T
007091 TZ02/€0/90 TITESLY 9CTZZ-1Z-107% TZ0Z/T0/90 ZoAAr Avd T HIVYW NONYHS ‘M0¥0L 9Z%91T1T ¥ 10
S¥ 16T SHOIAAO HATLVILSINIWAY
wMNN#MQHO>ZH
08S9¢€ DONIAVd IDHLO¥d ONIAIIZ
0859¢ LOT DNINIYE HILION -
08s9¢ NOIIVIISINIWAY AINAOD 12Z0Z/L0/90
0859¢€ 2Z-22299%# ¥dx (T¥D S°Z X 2) S¥"T6T
Sy 16T 08599¢ TZ0Z/€0/90 TZE9SS 8ETZ-ST-TO% qSZ TOLINYEd SNOTIVD § DT ‘d ANV DL GZ¥9TT ¥ 10
TZ°6T€E SNOILDHETE
§6°LZ 98%9¢ /7 612Z-1Z2-10% MmHmeHmem HIJYUVYHS
00°0¢ 987%9¢ /o 6TZZ-1Z-T0% 1009 @I0DEY
66°¢£C 98%9¢ /7 6TZC-TZ-TO0¥ NEd dNIg YIgEZ
€€° 52 98%9¢ / 7/ 61TZ-TZ-TO0V N=Ed q3¥ vIdHZ
98%9¢ L E-aD TTEMXVA
6L % 98¥%9¢ / /7 612Z-1C-107% HAEHTS dD
L6 EVT 98%9¢€ / / 6122-TZ-T0V QHWOD FSNOW ANV CIVOHAHM
S6°FT . 98%9¢ /- 6TCZ-TZ~T0% JHZILINYS ONVH
Ti'8 98%9¢ / 7/ 6122-TZ-10% Hd¥YL HOLODS TZ0Z/L0/90
60 €€ 98%9¢ / /7 61LZZ-TZ-TO0¥ XINII T TZ 6T€E
TT°L 98%9¢€ TZ0Z/L0/90 TZESPY 612Z~1Z-T0% NAd: 1D FIJIVHS HOVINYAAY SSHENISAH SHETAVLS ¥Z¥STT O TO
JuUnowy od MBma # 90TOAUI we3I SuUTI uotadransaa ueN HIVA D#MD
8 :@beg TZ0Z/LT/9 O&L T20Z/%/9 WO¥A QIINIIA SADTHD ONILSTT MDHTHD (09DHHD) LG:0€6 1Z/LT/9 :33ed



00°08T SNOILOHTH



| SEDIANES TYHINY

L0°969
€0T6#IDIOANT .
Ly €g S885E / / 8T22-28-T0% . ) SEAXYL TYLOL 1202/01/90
00°52T% S88SE / 7/ 812Z-28-10% AYEOIAN - YOEVT HIVA IVII L0°969
09°LET 5885¢€ 120Z/0T/90 IZ0T198¢€ 8TZZ-Z8-107 LENYAHLE LIGVOID IdOI-9T AYEOLAN OTT dANO¥D ADOTIONHDHAIL SNOLLIGWY 8E¥9TIT O 1I0
00°08 ITINSYIAL ALNAOD
TZ02/0T/90
LSESTHIDIOANT 00°08
00708 59%9¢€ TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOT99 TZ2Z-0€-10% TYES ONISSOEWH MSEA  SNOILNTOS INIWNDOA SNOILIGWY LEYSTIT O IO
SLTL¥9T NOISSIWHOD AINAOD
HSLZT6SESOTLEY
#ILDDY AT6M-STNH-MOXTHIDTOANT
TLS9¢€ AOVE-ESYE WONTHOTY HLIM 1202/01/90
TLS9€E FTVHD EAILIODHXT ITHIVET ANIONED SL°LY9T
SLTLP9T TLS9E IZ0Z/0T/90 TZOI96¥ 812Z-S0-I0% ONITIILS DIWONODIE NITAOH SSENISNE NOZYWY 9€%9TT O IO
£9°696 INEWLOTIY TIId ZIVLS
) LILIETTHIDOY v6CTHEIETTEHIDTOANT
st zz / 7 0€ZZ-T6-807 TOUVHD HHA IVWZYH SYOUIV
00°9 / 7 0€22-T16-80% : IV¥Id ZDEYHD TANI
00°S% / 7/ 0£2Z2-16-80% TTI IVII AITATTIA ‘
i£AR) TZ0Z/0T/90 TZ0TI9Z9 0€22-16-80% 0L8 ¥ODD QEW VA 4SN NIADAXO ¥
LTLIETTHIDOY 999SE9ETTI6
sL°zzZ / 7/ 0£2Z-T6-80% #EADIOANT HEOYVHD IVHZVH SYDIIV
00°9 /7 0€Z22-T16-80% JI¥TA EOUVHO¥AS THNI
60" S¥ /7 / 0E£ZZ-T6-80% TFL LVII XITATTAQ
S1°88 / 7 0€ZZ-16-80% 0%S ¥OD STT SN NEDAXO
€Y LY 1Z0Z/0T/90 1ZOT9T9 0£ZZ-16-80% 0L8 ¥DD UIW ¥YQ dSnN NIDIXO
TS8L8ZTHIODY
00°2ZT / 7 0£22-T16-S0% 8S0TSY6LEGHIDIOANT XYL SITYS
A ;7 0€22-16-50% HEA IYWZYH
88°2ZL / 7 0€22-T6-50%  /WATCHH JIANITAD ¥ INTE NIDAXO
LT 09 120Z/0T/90 TTOTS09 0€ZZ-T16-50% DI /UATATA ATANITAD ~ INTIT
LTLI6ZTHIDOY .
z8°LOT / 7/ 0€2Z-16-S0% 8S60TS6LE66H#IDIOANT QIA S LSIA
T8 LOT /7 0€ZZ-16-80% adn € ISIa
. QdA T ISIA/XYI SHTIYS LIYHZYE
18°L0T 1Z0Z/0T/90 TZ0TI98S 0€2Z-16-90%  NIDAXO SX CHW INTI JFANITAD ¥T
’ IS8L8ZZHIDDY
6876 /! / 0€ZZ-16-90% 6S0TSPE6LE6HIITOANT XYL SIS 120Z/01/90
8Z 91 / /7 0€22-16-90% INWZYH £€9°696
ZE 60T 120Z/0T/90 IZTOT9%S 0€2Z-T6-90% NIDAXO SX/CEW INTIS JIANTTAD 9 DT ¥SN SYDNIV SE%¥9TIT O IO
vZ° 8L INVED NOIINSINLSIA IMJ
HONVIIOLEIOOY L¥898THIDTOANT
Z6° % YLS9E /7 /7 T0ZZ-€T-509. SIATEDTA SSOUD
z8°C PLSOE / 7 T0ZZ-£I-S09 IHDIZAA
00" % PLSIE / 7 T0ZZ-€T-509 ION DNITIN0D TZ02/0T/90
05°29 PLGOE / /7 T0ZZ-€T-S09 ¥NNAINY ONISSIW TIVISNI OL ¥Ogvl $Z 8L
00°% PLS9€ TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOI9T 102Z-£I-509 VNNTINY JHA ® SNOTIYDTINAWWOD TIDNVACY " ¥EYITIT O TO
Junowy’ # 04 qJIYA # SD0TOAUTL wa3I SuTT uo13zdTInssg SweN HIVAa #3ID
Tz/LT/9  ieaeg

6 :abeg

LITO0T/LT/9 OL T202/%/9 WO¥d JHINI™EE SMDIHD

DNILSIT AOEHD

(09DFHD) LS:0€°6



0S° 0687

120Z/0T/90 TZOT999

€LZT-S9-T0%

-1Z/T0/S HEDIA¥HS HSVYHOUNA D014 DTT JAO¥D ADOTONHDHAIL SNOILLIGWY




0T

16 TO€E I6€S¢E /7 SIZZ-LT-T10¥
0% 559 I6€S€ / 7 STZZ-€2-T0% I0ZI-€L0-8T
70" S9L 16€S€E o/ STZZ-L8-0€9 IOVIINOD SID
L0 €6¥F 16€S€ /7 STZZT-9T-10% AINO FOEWI NO XYL %6T°8
12°2%S T6ESE / /7 STZZ-T6-€1¥% 120Z/0€/90 - 0T0Z/TO/LO T20Z/0T/90
8T €¥%¥ T6ESE / /7 ) ST2Z-%2-T0% TZ0ZAd ) 0% SLVL
P57 €69 T6€S€ 1Z0Z/0T/90 TZOISOT STZZ-ST-TO¥ FOVIIAOD GI0D DIFIDIA¥ES TUYNOIIVONUE TAILYIHAO0D SPPOTT A IO
- 8% 9€6€ SI¥d A0 NOILYINOJISNYIL
LZSOTZHIDIOANT
£559¢ d¥ZE000-ST-000-09 YAMSHN
£559¢€ JOEYT ® ‘STIANVA NOTISNAIXI ‘IOWD
£959¢ (TX HOHYL) TIPSTZOZH FIOoNDd
£5G69¢€ 0TI B STYOId
£959¢€ (ZX HOHYL) TSYSTZ0TH# LoD
. £969¢€ ) (TYTEIIVH dOHS
€G59¢€ "OSIN ANY ‘J0g¥I ‘SIVDEA ISOHD
£859¢€ ‘ANVIS SFI0dWOD ‘0IaVy ‘SIHOIT TZ0Z/0T/90
£5G69¢€ (ZX ¥TDAVHD MOVIL) 8¥"9€6¢€
8% 9€6€ £€559¢€ TZ20Z/0T/90 TZOTI98Y 8T9Z-¥%L-0Z% 98%5120Z # TLOND DTT HDOIA¥ES € EA0D $PFITT O 10
0€°%%9T INVED NOILNEINISIA INC
ODIONTMIOLTZ0ZS OMOYAHIDTOANT TZ0Z/0T/S0
08°TZT 00S59¢€ / 7 122Z-€T-S09 ONITANVH ANV ONIZdIHS 0E°¥%9T
0S°2ZST 00SS€E TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOTI99L TZZZ-€I-509 SIMIOYd INIANLS WOVIONIWWYIDOId HONHGIAT d0d YITINID €¥¥9IT O 10
00°89552 ANQd ALI¥NDIAS ANVIHWOH
TSSSTLLSORIODY £9659096S#EDIIOANT
szESE : DD8%000-00-000-02
STESE INAWTTIOV FDIAS FAIMIIVILS MN
STESE YOIYENY HIMON
SZTESE ‘EANTIONI ION A1dd0S JFMOJ GNY 1Z0Z/0T/90
SzZESE SYNNZINY ‘WOZT-006¥EI ANY NVId. 00°895SZ
00°89SsT SZESE 120Z/0T/90 TZOT908 LT9T-LL-LZ8 SAVIINASSE HTIEOW ANOTIOLAN IX-E DTT ALITIEOW L ® I¥ Z¥¥9TT & 10
00°0%Z INEWIOTIY HIId HIVIS
9Z8VLEADIOANT
8%F9E SHONYII
8%79€ IdN FIYWEL S T S-Td-T QNY 1Z0Z/0T/90
8YTIE FTIANYH T-d ‘TIvE TEILS SSEINIVLS 00°0%2
00°0%2 8%¥9€ 120Z/0T/90 TZOTILS 8%¥ZT-16-L0% BLIM ‘EATYA »S°T ‘ST88-MW ONI INTFWGINDE F¥Id YISEIAY IPP9IT O I0
69°6L INTWIOTIY FITId TIVIS
$92089Z0CHILIDY LETTYSTCIE
90" 1T /.7 6022-T6-L0% #ADTOANT XVI STIVS ALID
€8° / 7 6022-T6~-L0% XYL SITYS ZINQOD TZ0Z/0T/90
08-€ /7 6022-T6-L0% XYL SETYS HIVLS 69°6L
00" %L TZ0&/0T/90 TZTOI9ES 602Z-16-L0% ANV NOTIVD 00§ INIY MNVL &1 ANVEO¥d SYDININY 0%¥9TT O TO
€9°SLZS NUNSINIVW % SNOILVIEAO
€1°S8€ / 7/ €12Z-59-T0% ZBO6HIDIOANT SHXYL 1202/0T/90
TZ0Z/T0/90 £9°5L2S
JUnowY # 0d HIVQ ~ # S0ToAUI we3r |UTT uotadiznsad aweN ZIVA . #MD
TZ02/LT/9 O T20Z/%/9 WO¥A CQHINT¥A SYOHHD  ONILSIT MDEHD (09DEHD) LS 0E°6 TZ/LT/9  :91Rd

:abedg



80 E€TTC T6ESE
0E"6€EY T6ESE

STZZ-¥6-029
S1CZ-08-1T6

NN
NN



SZTHIDDOY 9TC09ZHIDIOANI SJI0ILS

¥OOd Z ¥ALSNA YEHIVAI -HDIILSO 1Z0ZT/0T/90
T ZT0d NOISNELXE Ii 8-% T 9629
S6°C9 81.95¢ TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOT9ST SIZZ-ST-10% TONTIEHOTd TT¥OIEIDITI. "DSIH "ONI HJYVMAIYH NILSNS €S%9IT O 10
00°9LT SEDIAZ0 HAILLVIELSININAGY
ODIOLH#ILIDOY 8LETHEIDIOANT TZ0Z/0T/90
LE6TI9E NIWOY ALNOOD TIV ¥04 Sg1Ind LHDIT 00°4LT
00°SLT LBEFOE ﬁNONNOﬂ\wo TZOTSEZY STZZ-ST-T0% 818 HJXL QHT 0Dd VINVATAS HSYD OTEILOHETHE NILSND ZS¥9TT " O IO
00°00ST INIWLIVIEd QY0¥ ALNNOD
TZ0Z/0T/90
886 THIDIOANI . 00°00ST
00°00ST ¥L8SE 1Z02/0T/90 TZOTILE 8TZZ-09-20% 0L FAOW ANY DIVIDHTE HAYED-d0 DIMIDHETE NILSAD IST¥9TT O 10
T6°08 SHDIAIAS TVWINY
1Z0Z/0T/90
099SH#ILIDVY 6SLE6HADIOANT . T6°08
T6°08 T6vS€E TZ0Z/0T/90 TZ0I96E TLTZ-2C8-T0% HOIAYHES TOAYLNOD LSHJ ATHLNOW LNANADVYNVW ISdd AZTTIVA NAFED 0S%9TT O 1O
- 00"00LT FAOVYNVN ALNOOD
: B YTE6TT - TZ0Z/0T/90
H#IDIOANI SHDIAYIS ODNILTINSNOD 00°00LZ
00°00LT TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOTSTT CLTZ-0T-TO0F TYNOISSHAOId 1202 ANNLONI ‘SEOIANES ILIAENAD JAHOVIIYD 6¥79TT O 10
. L8 TI%% INAWLOTIY HJId HIVLS
. TZ0Z/0T/90
. ZZTETHIDOY YYIZTTSHIDIOANT L8 T%%
LB I¥¥ 7859¢ TZ02/0T/90 TZOT9S9 T0CZ-T6-S0V C-4% INIDNA ¥04 SHIFHILLVE - OILNY H &7g00d 8%%9TT O IO
00" 052 XYL SWH/SNOTLYDINDWHOD -
LSSSEHEDIOANT
94959¢ LYL'%TT EOVITIN
9959¢ 867TSC68SMBIHMTIDZ *NIA
9899¢€ DESY90 471 TZ0Z/0T/90
9959¢ YIVINI LITOIATHD 800C 00°0s2
00 0S¢ 9559¢€ TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOI9E 8%ZZ-£8-%09 STYDEA IO TIYISNI SYFINIEd NEEEDS ATIS NOISHA L¥¥9TT O TO
00°6T THINSYILL AINOOD
) TZ0Z/0T/90
006009ZTH#HIDODY 00°6T
00761 Szese 120Z/0T/90 TZOT9L TLZZ-0E-T0F TZAI ¥0Jd A¥HATITAC JHLYM SONTI¥AS TYLSAYED 9%%91IT O 10
66°L9T ATV ALNOOD 69°ZL€  WHINZD MOINZS VIDNVLSE 60°88¢  WHINAD ¥OINAS ALIYIVOW
80 €TTZ ¥ SSO¥UD HANIDNALSYIANT € 6¢€% YILNID HOIVISIA-TT6 T6°T0€ NED JOINFIS UTYNIVINAOW
0% 599 ITD HIAVEH JIYNIVINAOW 70 S9L NITO TI¥DICHW VZNVIAdSH LO"E67% INIVR XETdWOD IV¥IDIANC
TZ Z%S LNFHWNLOTIY HIIA HIVLIS 8T €7V INIVH 9079 1d3d HLTYAH Ty €69 SEDIAL0 HAILVALSININAY
66°L9C T6ESE /7 9TZZ-€S-10% SYIE0L T SLC00L
69°ZLE I6€SE /7 STZZ-9€-10% #IDDY AVH/S6LSTT~PZHIDIOANT
607 88¢ T6ESE / /7 STCC~LE-TO¥
UNOWY og HIVA # D0TOAUI wall SUTT uotadraosaa aweN AINA #D
TT :abeg TZ0Z/LT/9 OL ONILSIT ADHHD (09DHEHD) LSI0E%6 Tz/L1/9  eaeq

TZ0Z/%/9 WO¥E CHAINI¥A SADEHD



96°29 INIVW XITAWOD TYIDIAnNr



MIAQYT MAN ONI SITVA OLAY ® HIIL S.¥OINAL

Z9¥9TIT O TO

00" 2S 2959¢€ TZOZ/0T/90 TZOT9ES T02E-¢6-TT¥
0z €61 AIHTID ALNNOD
68 NN I20Z/0T/90
0 CE0PTHIOOY TOVZSETOTHIDIOANT . . 0z €61
0z €61 LBESE TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOT98% i £€022-02-C19 WIId O¥DIW IDVAOLS ATHLNOENHWIDUYNYW SCIODHN NIVLNNOW NOIT T9%STT O TO
TZ LS YHANSTIIL ALNOOD
T000-LDGLAYSHHEDIOANT
69%9¢€ IZ0Z'%T AYW 1202/0T/90
69%9¢ . 1z0Z ‘L AVW SHIVA NOIIYDITIAd * 1T LS
TZ°LS 69%9¢€ 1Z02/0T/90 -TZOIS¥ 122Z-0€E-T0% YATIOLINOD AINSYHAL-AY FOL OTT SMEN ILNIONIIIANT 09%9TT O T0
0% SLYY Q@IVOT AAILVM
1Z0Z/0T/90
50-5S0-TZHIDIOANT 0% SLYY
07" SLYY 0%SS€ 1Z0Z/0T/90 TZ0T98L ZLTZ-TL-0S9 IZAd J04 ONILSHL THEAET IILEM DT SNOILNTOSTY OIAXH 6STSTT O IO
0L TOT INERLOTIV J¥Id dLYLS
€E€# IDDV SLIEPPE#EDIOANT
mm%mm SUEHSYM. IV¥VId «91/S - 0T
£8%9€ ‘SIFIOE w€ X w9T/L - ¥ 'SHAHSYM
€8%9¢€ ADOT «9T/L - ¥ ‘SMI™DS ILAADOS
£8%9¢€ IV¥EH NOLILAE AVHIHL aNId «T X - TTOoZ/0T/90
€£8¥%9¢ w9T/S - 0T ‘INVIVEHS dVATO TIEXIT 0L"IO0T
0L TOT €8%9¢€ T20Z/0T/90 TTOT96L 8%ZZ-T6-90% 40 SHENL - T ‘IVHES XT1d SNYD - € HYVMOIYH AHLIOMLSNAL S LAYH 8S%9TT O T0
, 96°5T SEOINNES TYWINY
CEHLIODY SAEM
STIOD ISI¥M SHAOTD HAILDHLOYA
SHAOTD FAIIDALOWA HSO¥H ONINVETID 1202/0T/90
96°ST ZI6S¢ /7 ) 6EZZ-Z8-T0% TANNHEY d0d STOOL CHIIOSSY 96791
ZT6SE TZOTS07 STIANNHY NO JYIVAEY HIVD d04 TIIM HIVMAIVH AHLIOMISAAL S.ILAVH LS%STT © TO
08°66T SNOILOETH
08°6T / / §02Z-TZ-10% n/a X0g LOTIVE HDVATIN TZ0Z/01T/90
00-02 /- / 9222-1T-10% 1z/LZ/S TOOHDS NOILIDHETE AVQ T 08°66T
00°09T ITOT/0T/90 TZOTSEL 9ZZZT-TZ-TO0% TZ/T0/90 =OHANL OHNIAISEEL A¥d T T AZ¥IIEL  NOLIIWYH 9S¥STT O IO
S€°5986 dOHS QY0¥ AINAOD
1Z0Z/0I/90
§9€°986
5€°586 09TS¢E TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOTI90L 092CZ-19-20% ‘L7089 MEWDS ‘STEMOL ¥IdVd TONI JYVMOIVYH NILSOD SS%¥9T1T O 10
66722 SEIIS40 HEALLVILSININAIY
IHOIT WOOY NOISSIWWOD
Zgd ISYITYE HENL ¥Q0J 1Z0Z/0T/90
SZTHIODY SOTOSZHEDIOANT 66-2¢
66°¢¢ 6L98¢€ 1202/0T/90 TZOTI9ZS STZZ-ST-T0% ONICHNTd  “I¥DINIDIETI “OSIH TONI HYVMOIVH NILSND ¥S¥STT O 1O
AUNOWY # od 2LV # 90TOAUT waqI SUTT uot3dransadg SweN HIVA #3D
zT :obea I20Z/LT/9 OL TZ0OZ/¥/9 WOUE JEINI¥L SYDITHD ONILSIT ADHHD (09DdHD) LS:0€°6 1Z/L1/9 :e@3ra



T9S9¢E : ) FINSSHIG ONISOT : 1Z0Z/0T/90
2969¢ ’ JETL INOYA JIATIA ITVdHE oo-zs



AR ANA

8T 6€T /7 60ZZ~LZ-T0% 9TLTHIOOY SYD SEDUVHD ATHINOW
91" €6 1Z0Z/0T/90 TTOT9SH 0TZZ-LT-TO0% FALYM STOAVHD ATHINOW A0 NMOL ‘YIVNIVINOOW. ILT9IT O 10
0g-s1C SNOIIDITIH
0€°ST /7 S02Z-12-10% n/d X08 IOTIVE IOVITIW 120Z/01/90
00°02 /7 . 9zzZ-12-T0% TZ/LZ/S0 TO0HDS NOIIDHETA AVd T 0€°S1T
00°08T TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOT9ZL . 92ZZ-12-10% 1Z/T0/9 FDANL ONIAISEIA AVA T ANILSODNY YAOLNOW 0L%9TT O T0
0070871 SNOILDHETH
TZOZ/0T/90
00702 A 9ZzZ~-TZ-T0% TZ0g2/LZ/S TOOHDS MOLIDIETH Av¥ad T 00°08T
060°05T TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOT90S 922Z-1Z-10% TZ0Z/T0/90 =DANC A¥WA T D YANITO ‘NYLOT 69%3TT - O 10
00°529 ININLOTIY HZdTd IALYLS
[A =34 /7 L0ZEZ-T6-ET¥ 9TEOTHIOOY NIWAY FIIJ
69°9€T /7 LOTT-T6-90% aiA ¢ ISIa
69°GET /7 LOZZ-T6-S0% ada s ISIa TZ0Z/0T/90
69°GET /7 LOZZ-16-60% TZ-9C60TN#EDIOANT dAA ¥ ISIA . . 00°529
T9°2LT TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOT96T L0ZZ-16-80% € LSICA JENUZINT AINNOD HINVIZOL QLT SEDIA¥AS LANIIINI O€0T 89%9TT O 10
00° 5% SADIANAS TYHINY
$80CT#IDDY ST-F80ZTINH#EDIOANT
T20Z/TE€/L0O-TZ0Z/T0/LO 1202/0T/90
SHIVA FDIA¥AS SHOTA¥AS . 00° 5%
00°57% T20Z/0T/90 TTOT98T LOZZ-Z8-TO0% LENIIINI SSHTIAIIM XTHINOW AL SHEDIA¥ES LINJAINI O€07 L9%STIT O T0
05" 6% TZAL IDVEINOD Ad
1Z0T/0T/90
) FS60THIDOY S-7S60TNHTDTIOANT 057 6%
05 6% TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOTISLT L0ZZT~78-069 A LENJIINI AINNOD HONVIIOL aI7 SEDIA¥ES IANJALNI O€0T 99%9TT. O TO
0§ LET YIINID HOIYASIA-TT6
1Z0Z/0T/90
. 8S60THILIDY 6T-8560TIN 0S"LET
05" LET TZ0Z/0T/90 TZ0T99T LOZZ-08-T16 #IDIOANI IENJEINI HOIVISIA QLT SIADIA¥HS IINIIINI O€071 S9%9TT O TO
00°GST  NUYNIINIVW 3 SNOILVIAIO
1202/0T/90
STLOTHIOOY ZTT-STLOTNHIDIOANT 00°SST
00°SST TZ0Z/0T/90 TEZOTIST L0ZZT-S9-T0% IT LINZHINI ALNOOD FONYHNOL LT SEDIAYES IINYIINI OF07T ¥9%¥STT O T0
76" €S INVED NOIIAETILSTIA IMd
Z¥8T IV CHEDIOANT -
€£T59¢€ DNIAdTHS QNY IdD 1202/01/90
£259¢€ . 085 MOWdIOvE ) ¥6°€S
¥6 €S £259¢ T20Z/0T/90 TZTOT96 61ZZ-€1-509 J0d STDAIJHLAOW MOVa-00T “DONI ‘SNOIINTOS NHM €9%9IT O T0
00°2s XYL ESIOXE J¥II $¥/T
Z9L88THIDIOANT
Junowy # oa | =I¥a # @0TIoaUI wa3I SUTT uotadraosaa SweN JIvd #3ID
€T sebeg TZOZ/LT/9 OL IZOT/¥/9 WO¥d CQIINI¥E SADFHD  ONILSIT ¥DIHD (09DEHD) LS:0€:6 12/LT/9  93eQ



[a'AR4A%4 NED JOINES ATYNIVINOOW

1Z0ZT/0T/90



08%8ZS9#IDDY
8.98-8S0S¥%/LL98~8S0SPHADIOANT

6L°8S /7 £02Z-9T-T0% TYIDIANE SdOW GNY SIVH
AOIN 1202/01/90
80°99 / ./ 9E£ZZ-59-T0F . YSSIUVH ATENV NOSLELS SWEOJINA . %" 29T
LS°LE 1202/01/90 TZOTYET £022-ST-10% NIWAY XINNOD SAOW ANV SLYH ATdans TIVEHAQ TYIINIANIA 6L¥STT O 10
6L°85 INTVH XZTIWOD TYIDIANLD 80°99 NYNIINIVH 3 SNOIIVIAJO LS LE SADTAL0 HATIVILSININAY
08%8ZS9#IDDY
0Z6L-8505%/6T6L-8S0ST#ITDIOANT
6L°85 /7 £02Z-9T-10% TYIDIANL ¥O4 SIOW ANV SIVH -
ADIN 1202/01/90
80°99 / 7 9€2Z-S9-T0%  VSSIVVW ATHIV NOSIELS SWNOIINA %291
LS°LE 120Z/0T/90 TZOT9ZT €02Z-ST-T0% NIHAQY AINAOD SIOW ANV SIVH ATEdNs TIVYEAO TYIINIANIG 8L¥9TT O TO
LE €E€8  ¥OOMd S.NIZILID JOINES
TZ-ANOL-% 120Z/0T/90
. #ADIOANT TZ0Z ENOC ¥OS DS LE-€€8
LE-€€8 120Z/0T/90 TT0I99% T1LZZ-LS-TES AINNOD ¥O4 SESNEAXE ONINVATD SHEOTANAS IVDICEH NYINHIAGSTHEd LLFITT O TO
08°059T NVYNIINIVW ® SNOIIVMEAO S5°68¢ INFHIOTIY TIId HIVIS
1202/01/90
0870591 /7 L0ZZ-S9-T0% : FEETSOEHIODY II, . SE°0%0T
§5°68€E TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOTILY L0ZZ-T6-€T% NINQY H¥Id HZVIE SSENISNE ZDIVI SSHTTAIN OVIIVIA 9L¥9TT O 1O
057 9%TT INEWIOTTY &¥Id HLVLS
9L°€9T SL¥9E /7 1L2Z-16-€I%
6L°€9T SLv9¢€ /7 TL22-T6-8T% 060S9HEDIOANT
§L°€9T SL¥9€ // TL2Z-T6~S0% - XYL SETYS
6L°€9T SL¥9E / 7 1L22-16-60% TZ0Z'0€ ¥IGWAAON OL TZ0Z ‘T HNAD
6L°€9T SLY9E /7 1LZZ-T6-80% 0IGNY ONIWVIELS SHINS 120Z/0T/90
6L°€9T SLY9E / / 1LZZ-16-90% ¥IVd EANOL TIONIS aa¥ SHINS 057 9%1T
6L°€9T SLF9E TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOT96S 1LZZ-T6-LO0¥ N¥Id ATHHD ALNIEd SHIA 9 TONI INAWTOVNYH NINONZI SL¥ITT O TO
8T°0 INSWIOTTY F¥Id HIVLIS
%0DL
#IDDY $T68FNIH#TDTOANT X¥I COTHHA T202/0T/90
FOVIAAO TZOZ/TE/S0-T1Z0Z/10/S 8T"
8T" 120Z/0T/90 TZOT9%9 TL2Z-T6-€T% HHL ¥Od HDNVHD HDVEEAO IOVAINOD dno¥s =ENN TLYITT O TO
00°0Z SHOIANES TYWINY
TZ0Z/0T/90
z0S9¢€ NOGONYTI-CVYEN FIIINYA 00°02
00°02 z0s9¢€ 1202/01/90 TZOIST¥ TLZZ-28-T0% FAI NOTIIVOTITAAY HIVIS A¥VION ALVLS, 0 AAVITEDES WN €L¥9TT O TO
09°2IZ SNOIIDHTH
09°2T / / S0Zz-TZ-T0% 0/d X08 IOTIVE FOVIIIW SATIN 8Z 120Z/01/90
00702 /7 92zZ-12-10% 1202/.2/S0 TOOHDS NOIIDETII 09°z12
00°08T T1202/0T/90 IZOT9IS 9ZZz-1Z-T0% TZO0T/T0/90 A¥Q T HOANL DNIAISHTIA HITAL * AYEEOR TLYSTT O 10
Junowy # od AIVA - # 9DTOAUT wa3I SUTT © uotadrInsaqg swen HIYA ©#MD

¥T

:abedg

TZ0Z/LT/9 OL TTO0Z/%/9 WOIA QEINIIA SADTHO DNILSIT MOHHD (09DHEHD) LS:0E:6

Tz/LT/9  :93Bd



6L°89 INIVH XHIAWOD T¥YIDIane 80799 NYNAINIVN ¥ SNOILYIIdO LS LE SIOTAI0 HAILVILSININAY



£€0°LST

TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOTO0E

L0ZZ-C8-T0%

GLZZLTTS-¥8ESOSHIDDY
1202 ENNC SEDYVHD ATHLNCW

NOIIVIOJUOD- ILSHMOD

1Z20Z/0T/90
€0°LST
68%9TT O 10

IZ0T/0T/90 TZ0T96T

L0ZC-LE-TOY

HGE9TSZYY-ZEBSOSHIDOVY DS ALUVIAOW
1202 IANNL J0A SHDIVHD ATHINOW

LL TLT

NOIIVIOJEOD ISEMD

YELNED FOINAS AIIVIEOM

120T/0T/90
LL TLT

88%9TT O 10

TZ0Z/0T/90 TZ0T98Z

LOTZ-9E-TO¥%

g5660T0S-¥8ES0SHIOOY
ANAL 804 SHEDIVHD ATHLNOW

TZ0C

08°Z9¢

NOILVIOZ™OD ILSEMOD

YELNID JOINHS VIDNWLSHE

TZ0Z/0T/90
08- 28z

LB¥STT O 10

tZ0Z/0T/90 TZTOTILE

L0TT-07~T0%

G668Z9E€V-VBESOSHIOOVY HOSSHSSY
T20Z ENAC J04 SEADYVHD ATHINOW

00°¢9

NOLIVIOZIOD LSHMD

FOSSASSY ALNNOD

TZ0Z/0T/90
0o0-€9
98%STT O T0

00°€9

1Z0Z/0T/90 1IZOT99T

L0ZZ-0Z-T0%

gESE0807-YBESOSHIIDY MIHITD
TZ0Z ENNC 04 SHDAVHD ATHINOW

00°€9

NOTILWI0g¥0D ISIMD

AIETO AINNOD

I20Z/0T/90
00°€9
S8%91T

O To

IZ0Z/0T/90 TZOT9%e

L0TZ-0S-T0%

GLEOLLTT-PBESOSHIDOY JITUHHS
TZ0Z ENNL ¥0Jd SHOYVHD ATHINOW

S6°7%¢

NOILYIOJEOD ISHMD

JITIHHS ALNDOD

1Z202/0T/90
S6° 7€
¥8%91TT O 10

957 I¥S

1Z0Z/0T/90 TZOT9ET

L0ZZ-08-116

gI8STE96-P8ES0SHIOOY HOLYASIA
TZ0T dANNC SEDIVHD ATHINOHW

NOILVIOJdIOD ISEMD

FILINID HOLVdISIGA-TI6

T20Z/0T/90
98" T%9
£€8%9TT O 10

¥9-€ge

TZ0Z/0T/90 TZ0I9TZT

L0ZZ-16-50%

g906890%-ZTE€BS0SHIODY ddA S LSIA
TZ0T HENOD SHOYVHD ATHLNOW

¥9-¢gee

NOILYIOAYOD ISHEMO

INHWLOTTIY HEIA HLVLS

1Z0Z/0T/20
¥9°€€C

¢8P2TT O T0

1Z0Z/0T/90 TZTOT9TZ

L0TZT~-0€E-T0%

g688TREF-PEEGOSHIODY IHINSYHIL
TC0Z ENQL SEDMYHD XTHLNOW

60°€9

NOLLITIOJHEOD L8ImMd

FIENSYEEL ALNNOD

TZ0Z/0T/90
007€9
T8%9TT O T0

T 65¢C

Junouy

# 0d

1ZT0ZT/0T/90 TZOTS0Z
HLYd # 9dTOAUL

ST :abrg

TZ0Z/LT/9

oL

L0ZZ-0T-T0%
welT SUTT

1Z02/%/9 Wodd

92807625 -¥8ES0SHILOOVY ITDVYNVN
TZ0Z HANQL JO0J SEDYVHD ATHILNORW

doﬂumﬁnuwma

QIINI¥S SADIHO DNILSIT ADHHD

Zz 6esc

NOIIVIOdYOD ISHEMO
[weN

(09DHHD) LS:0€:6

YADVNYH ALNOOD

TZ0Z/0T/90
2T 65T
08%9TT O TO

2IYd #I0

IZ/LT/9 e3ed



) ’ €0°LST . SIDIAYAS TYWINY



8070185
6900TSE TOTHIDOV L08T O00#EDIQANT

£V 796

SEOIAYHES "TYNINY

§8°FET 0LTI9E / 7/ 6T2Z-28-10% SIAIIDTI ® 'STIONE ‘SAYd ’SNIJ
0LTYE NMYE
PE SLT 0LT9E / 7 0ZZZ-28-T0¥% ‘HOVEIE ‘YENVITD IMOg IITIOL
0LT9E SHAIM 1Z0Z/0T/90
9L ZTT 0LISE /7 €ZZZ-28-T0%  ONVY YIZIIINYS ONVH “¥ILLIT IVD €7 796
8% 0%S 0LI9E TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOTI9SE 9122-28~-10% SIVENEL ONY Q00I I¥D ¥ DO IDE¥IA d0TD S WYS L6F9TT O TO
Z9°19 IAANSYIAL ALNOOD
SS0SE0ZHIDIOANT 1202/01/90
TEESE FAYOSE 600T ZOL NOIIDIASNI 29719
z29°T9 IEESE TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOTI98 102Z-0€-T0% ® EONVHD TI0 TZ0Z AWK SETYS QE0L HOINE 96%9TT O IO
70°99 XYL SWH/SNOILYDINOAWWNOD
Z/%66%€0Z T/v66VE0THIDIOANT
75S59¢ L80'9 TEDYATIN
¥559¢ 98¥99ENTEYITMILAT *NIA
%¥S59¢ . DZTYETT 471
$559¢€ ) 0ST-4 QIO 020Z
S8 ¥ 79S9¢ / 7/ T0ZZ-£8-%09 (F0=IYI) XYL 1202/01/90
6T°T 7S59¢€ /7 10ZZ-€8-%09 SHITIANS dOHS ] %0°99
00°09 7SS9€ TZ0Z/0T/90 TTO0I9T 102Z-€8-%09 ADIAEES /TDNYHED TIO SITYS Q@O HOTY S6%9TT O TO0
€€ PTIT INTWIOTIY FEILd HIVLS
TZ0Z/0T/90
G0TTS9TE-Y8ES0SHIIOY NINAY HITA ) €ETFTT
€€ FIT T20Z/0T/90 TZOT9SE LOZZ-T6-ETV T20Z ANOL SEOAVHO ATHINOKW NOILYIOdEOD LSAMO ¥6%9TT O 10
86°9TT  INIYW XITIIWOD T¥IDIGAL
TZ0Z/0T/90
gS06LEZE~-FBESOSHIIDY TYIDIAND 86°9TT
86 91T TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOT9VE L0ZZ-9T-T0% TZ0Z ENALC SEDYYHD ATHINOW NOILIYIOd™OD LSAMD €679TIT O 10
7S 60T INIWLIVAEA AYOd AINOOD
1Z02/0T/90
H2800552-78ES0S#IDDY QYOI Z25°60T
zS 60T 120Z/0T/90 TZOI9EE L0ZZ-09-20% 120Z EINOL SEOUVHD ATHINOW NOIIWIOJEOD LSIMD Z6¥9TT O 10
vV 6S NED JOINHS JTYNIVINOOW
gv0TS882C 120Z/01/90
~L78S0SHIDOY DS JTUNIVINAOW ¥¥° 69 .
7Y 69 TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOI9ZE L02Z-LZ-T0% TZ0Z INAC SADYVHD ATHINOW NOILVIOAUOD LSIMO 16%9TT . O TO
£5°29 INZHIOTIY HATS HIVLIS
1Z02/01/90
S ISIA 9EZ9%0TS-ZE€8SOSHIIOY €5°29
€5°¢9 1Z0Z/0T/90 TZOI9TE L0TT-T6-50% TZ0Z ENAL ¥OJ SITDAVHD ATHINOKW NOILYIOJEOD LISEMD 06%9TT © TO
Junouwy # od HIVd  # SOTOAUT walI BuTI uotadrIonssd swen 2IVA #10

ST

:obeg

0L TZ0T/%/9 WO¥d

JHEINTHd SADEHO ONILSIT ADIHD

(09DFHD) LSG*

0g:6 IZT/LT/9  :91BQ



00°03T

TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOISTL

922C-TZ-10%

TZOZ/T0/9 MY¥HETIO AV¥A T

YATYEL ‘HHLANWS

00°09T
8679TT

O 10



LL?9E 890ZTOTNOAT8TZUAT *NIA

LLYIE . IX00STOd dHHWIHIA TZ0Z/0T/90
SLTTPT LLY9E / 7 LIZZ-09~-2T0% XYL SLTTIP6T
00°008T LLY9E TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOT99E LIZZ-09-20% . I TEILNIS TONI ‘ODIXIW MIN JHAWIHA S0SSTT O 10
L0°08T YIOENVIN AINOOD
T20Z/0T/90
STPETOS0TZOZHIDTOANT : L0° 082
L0°08¢C T0¥%s¢E TZ0Z/0T/90 IZTOT9LL TLZZ-0T-T0% MOHHD ANACEDAOVE INAWAOTIWE-ZId ONINIHIDS ANNOEDAIVH TYSYIAINA $0SSTT O TO

087LTS YALNTD WOINIS YIDNVISHE

¥ES9¢€ T0E8TZESHSHIDTOANT /MEINTD YOINIS T202/01/90
) PESOE - YIONVISE IV JAZTANL 08°LIS
08" LIS $ES9E T20Z/0T/90 TZOI9EYD . STZZ-9€-T0% NI-MTYM ¥IVaTd ANVY FSONDVIA ALITIIIO ® ONIEWOTd DIL €0S9TIT O T0
T6°85ZS AATEFHS XINOOD
Z0-120T OSDI#EDIOANT T202/01/90
T6°€£8€ LEPIE / 7 A ZLZT~0S~T0% 18D KN 16°852S
00°5L8% LEFIE TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOTILS ZTLZZT-0S-T0% T FSYHd NOISIAXY d0S ONILINSNOD ANY ONINIVIL SIWHHL Z0SSIT O IO
§9°ZS0T INFWLOTTY F¥Id FIVIS
. 0SLZTHIDIOANT
69%9¢€ NOILYLS NIVH
6%%9€ € IDIELSIA OL WN ‘HEAO¥EAdNETY
65%9¢€ ) NI Q¥04 HDOI¥ WO¥d MOL § av¥ads
ST-SL 6%7P9E / 7 10Z2-16-50% XYL,
0§°LST 6%¥9€ / /7 102Z-16-50% TOVATIN TIMOL
00° 89 6779€ /7 1022-T6-S0% dn MOOH ¥ SSYID
6779¢ : - NMONMNA : TOVSTIN
67P9€ ) . $E009D 47
6%79¢ . XYL
00°0S 6H9€E /7 T022-16-80% LAVHSAATIA TAOWTA
00°08% 6%¥9¢€ /7 10ZZ-T6-80% HOVHTIN
(3441 . ) S0TL8 WN ' ‘INDIFNDASTY
6%79¢ : : HS TID WENDYM 004 0D INIWGINDE
6779¢€ FANOYM OL ¥ IOIUILSICA WONA 1Z0Z/0T/90
341 ’ ) ’ LOEOENHS9DAADYAAT NIA §9°2ZS0T
00522 6%H9€E TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOT99S : ) T0ZZ-T6-80% ' Z-¢ ¥HANZL MOL  X¥IAODEA 3 ONIMOL §.AINNIAVL T0S9IT O TO
6€°LT XYL ZSIOXH FIId 3%/T
. TZ0Z/0T/30
678F6EHIDOY 08VLTLILYEHEDIOANT 6€°LT '
6€°LT L8ZYE 1Z0Z/0T/90 TZOT9SS : 6TZZ-T6-TT¥ SYINNYId AV HOVINYACQY SSENISNE SATAVIS 00S9TT O T0
85 TT ITINSTAIL AINAOD
1202/0T/90
88TTEPLLYEHEDIOANT , . 89 TT
“88°TT TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOI9S: : 6TZZ-0€-609 9059€#0d JIFY TIVISTIV XIANI TOVINVYAQY SSANISNT SETAVIS 66%9TT O IO
00°09T ‘ SNOIIDITH
TZ0Z/0T/90
Junouy # 0d TIYA # S9DTOAUT , ws3I 2UTT uotadriansag aweN qALYd #3D

LT :obeg IZ0Z/LT/9 OL HNoN\W\m WO¥d (JIINI¥d SADHHD DNILSIT XDFHD (09DEHD) LS:0E6 TZ/LT/9 :93eQ



LLY3E

LZTEHIDTOANT
izoz/TI/S - TE0Z/S/S



©1202/S1/90

88S9¢ . NOILONAATVIN q¥vD) THA4 00" 89
00°99 88S9¢ TZ02/ST/S0 1ZST98T Z02Z-0T-T0% TOW ¥od TENS HOINYL YI1davd PISOTT O TO
$S790¥%¢ WHIIASTHEL ALNNOD
9TEHEDIOANT
68° L9 Z6¥9¢ / / 8IZZ-0€-609 JOIVI NO 13D
TL 2L zevse / / 8IZZ-0£-609 € NOILLVLS INHWIDYIJITT CIVOLAHEI 1202/ST/920
. z6%9¢ FDIII0 %5 90%€
wm.mmNm Z6%9¢ TZ0Z/ST/90 TZST9S 8TZZ-0€-609 S EFANSYHLL FO04 NOIIVISIOM SHALSXS FDHIALQ HNDIEANONETY £€TS9TIT O TI0
8T 9§ INEWIOTTY HMId HIVIS
T0°0T€ 1202/0T/90
#IOOV dIMIS/THIILYM HNON\wN\m 8T 9%
8T 99 TZ0Z/0T/90C TZOLST¥ O0TZZ-16-81?% ~-1Z0Z/92/% SADYEVHD ATHLNOW A0 FOHOVTIIIA “TEYTIIM CIS9TT ¥ TI0
g 99° LSS SHOIANAS qmzﬂzm
SEZHIOOY S8LISTHEDTOANT 1202/0T/90
99°L62 /7 zLZZ-Z8-T0% DLE SNOII¥DIQAW SLISIA FDIALLO 99° LGS
00°092 TZ0Z/0T/90 TZOTOLE CTLZZ-Z8~TO0% SNOILVZITIYELS TIVHS TONI ZYVNTYILEA STIIVIL NIALSIM TISSTT O TO
. 8T°.€2¢C SEOIA¥ES TYWINY
T20Z/0T/90
8T €L / 7/ TLZZ-Z8-TO0¥ MOOHANVYH ON¥d A¥YNI¥ALEA STWOTI 8T €22
00°0ST TZ0Z/0T/90 TTOT99E ZTLTZ-Z8-T0V NOILDZISNI ADVWIVHA ATIILIVQD ‘Y NEATHIVY ‘ISIM 0TIS9TT O IO
S6°98T AENMOLLY
ZHST¥S000T TZ0Z/01/90
#ID0V 9T8STP¥¥8#EITOANT S6°98T
S6°98T 0zsse 1Z0Z/0T/90 TZOISPI 692Z-95-T0% HNTONI HOUVESHY ‘HOUYESHE TYDHT NOIIVIOJUOD ONIHSITEN LSEM 60G9TT O TO
56°2z0¢Z 114 aNIM 00°0%92 . EOTISAL HTINSAQL QLD
S6°202 / / TLZZ-60-S€9 89THIDIOANI SHEHXVYI SIAIIADHI SSOUD TZ0Z/0T/90
T20Z XYW QEIITANOD S6°2¥82
60 0%9C TZ0Z/0T/90 TZO0TL969 ZTLZT-89-9¢9 TIDNNOD SA0Y 40 SNOISSHS 9T M XINAIS ‘TIYM 80SSTT O TO
¥L°088T JELINTD HOLTASIA-TTE
TZ0Z/92/50 QEAQCEAAY NOISSIHWOD
6S088H#IDDY ¥9VELLOMSTS
) HADIOANT ¥HINAD HDIVASIA TzOZ/0T/%0
IY¥ YOLVIIANHTD dJO¥DVH V0L ¥OHVI L0881
TL 088T 1202/0T/90 T1ZOTIOVL 8122-08-116 ANV SINVd HOIANES AONIOUTWE ‘0D INAWGINDE WENOYM LOS9TIT O 10
67082 LITd QZHE, 00°1IZ%E mUHHme HTINEAQD TQIXD
T202/0T/90
67082 /7  ZLZZ-60-SE9 LT#EDTOANI XVI SIATHDEN SSOMD 6% TOLE
00°TZ%E 1202/0T/90 TZOT9SL ZLZZ-L9-SE9 DD ANy oLr OTT INIWAOTHAZA ¥ SHWOH YIA 90S9TT ¥ TO
SLTIP6ET INIRNIIVAIAE TYOd AILNNOD
AUnouy # od FIVA # 9oTOAUT wa]T SUTT uotadixosaa sweN TINA #3310
TZO0Z/LT/S OL T2Z0Z/%/9 WOHd CALNINd SMDIHD ONILSIT MOHEHD (09DHHD) LS:0€:6 TZ/LT/9 i93ea

8T :abeg



‘00" 59 YADYNYH ALNOOD



LNVLSISSY 00°¢2¢s
00°zg TZ02/ST/90 TZSISLT 92ZT-T1Z-T0% NIWAVY SNOILOFETH HNON\HO\WO, HYYYS ‘YISAWA gcse1T © IO
go-es SNOIILDHETH
TZ0Z/ST/90
. 00-zs
o0°zs T20Z/ST/90 TZST99T 92ZZ-TZ-10% INVISISSY NIWAY TZ0Z/T0/90 TFATAVH "YESAVY TZS9TT O TO
00°059 YHOENYN ALNQOD 00" 0ss SHDIII0 HAILILVALSININCAY
0D WOLHILIODY L86THADIOANT
86¥9€ ’ HOLIMS
8679¢€ TTYM IOVIdIE OL JOSNES NOILOW
86%9¢€ TIVLSNI ON¥Y WOO¥Y NOISSIWWOD
007089 86%9¢ TZ0Z/ST/90 TZSTS0T 8TZZ~-0T-T0¥ TIYWS NI JFT OL SIHODIT IAVIDdnN
- 0D JYOL#IIOY L8EFHHIITOANI :
L¥S9€E 89€ ¥YACIO HI0OM 1Z0Z/ST/90
LTG9¢E SEINE GET OL IJEANOD LASOTD 00°00CT
00°058Ss L¥S9€ 1Z0ZT/ST/90 TZSTI96T ST2Z-S1-T0% - EDIAL0 Zd NI HOLIMS I¥HANOD DIALOETHE NILSND 02S2TT O TO
9¢€°S§¢ TIV0od daLVM
TO000-20DVPAA8HIDTOANT
LTP9E FDIA¥ES DNILTINSNCD DIDOTOYTAHOED 1Z0Z/S1/90
LZT9E TO~-TZRI-OL# dJd 2€°S¢
g€°8¢g LZV9E TZ0Z/ST/90 TZSTSQ TLZZ-TL-0SS HOILON TY¥DIT D8d HIYMILIOS NWNTIOD 6TSSTT O TO
0z 1ize INIWILIVIAQ QY0¥ ALNAOD 36°56 FEINED HOLVYASIA-TTI6E €8°€8T INANADVNYI 2ISTY
99TZOZOTHIDOY Z88Z
0z 1Tce 1IT0Z/ST/90 TTST9ET 8%ZZ-09-20% #IDIOANT TIIANY IV ISYISL
9606000¢
#ILDODVY Z88ZTTSO¥8HIDIOANT
68€59¢ NINAY JEId
96°S6 68€S€E / /7 8vTZ-08-116 HOLVgGSId TTe
68€SE - INAWLIVIHEA Y0¥ 1Z0Z/ST/90
68£S¢E INARNLIVIEA S JATIAHHS . . 667008
£87 €81 68E€S¢E IZ0Z/ST/90 TETSTI9ZZ 8%CC-90-009 DNICTIING HALLVILSININGY ALNAOD 2 "ON NOILYJIOJUOD SYLNID 8TS9TT O 10
00°2s SNOIIDIETE
1202/S1/90
Qo0 g8
Qo zs TZ0Z/ST/90 TTSISST 9222-1C-10% INYISISSY NIWAVY TZ0Z/T0/9 T YIIELS ZHAVHD LTIS9TT O 1O
0s°98 SNOTLOETH
TZ0Z/ST/90
SHELIS ONITIOd QL TIATAL 0s-S8
05°98 T202/ST/90 TTSI9ZT §S022-TC-T07% NOILOETH TYIDHAS TZ0C LST dNAr S OIDITHAY ‘ZHAVHD 91S9TIT O I0
67 0€T SEDIAYHS TVNINY
€980L6#IDDY TZ0ZT/ST/90
€0s9¢ - NOGONYT-AVEH HLLANVA - dd0Id4d0 6% 0¢€T
67 0ET €089¢ TZOZT/ST/90 TZSI98 8%2Z-T8-T0% . TOELNOD - TYWINY ¥0d SI00d MA0M ONI N3Vd I00d GTS9TT O 10
Iunowy # 04 HI¥A # 90ToAUT welI |UTT uotadransad IWeN AI¥d #ID
:obeg T20Z/LT/9 OL TZ0Z/¥/9 WO¥S QHINI¥d SADIHD ONILSIT MOTHD (09DHHD) LS:0¢:6 1T/LT/9 :e3ed

6T



00°2S SNOILOETH

120T/S1/90



VESOERO AHA

TZ0Z/ST/90

. ZOEBTIZTESHSHAIDIOANTI DS VYIDNV.ISHE LZT T3¢
LZ T9E 1202/ST/90 TZST9TT S12Z-9€-10% XYL ¥DOTD HWIL ISOTIHA ALITIIN % ONIGWOTd DL TESOTT O 10
’ 89°6Z€ FEOUNYW ALNOOD
T20Z/ST/90
. 8%88€90 0#IDTOANT 89°6Z¢
89°6C€E €ETSE TZ0Z/ST/90 TZST90T 1LZZ-0T-T0% ONIYOLINOW HSNEDIT S ¥HATEA TONI ‘SONICTIOH YEWYS 0€S9TT O 10
IL°L0% XYL SWH/SNOLIVDINOWHOD
sggoc LY6'60T :EOVATIN
§559¢€ 9TSHLTHOIMXDAEDT *NIA
§569¢€ DIEEZ0 471
§559¢- JADIYHD HOAOA 8I0Z
TL°0€ §559¢€ /7 102Z-€8-%09 (J0gY'T) XYL 1Z0Z/ST/90
§559¢€ SAITIANS JOHS IL°LOY
00°LLE S999¢€ TZ0Z/ST/90 TZSI9% T0TZ-£8-%09 HITAIES /EONYHD 110 SHITYS Q¥Od HOTIY 6ZS9TT ©O T0
%0°99 S EFINSYAUL XINOOD
T/S60S€0ZHADIOANT
seese AAAOTAXE LTOZ TOL TZOZT/ST/90
SEESE : NOILOZASNI %0799
70°99 seese 1Z0Z/S1T/90 TZSISE T0ZZ-0€-T0% ® HONVHD IO TZ0ZT AVN SHIYS Q¥0d HOIN 8ZS9TT O 10
S0:6LT TAVD FIVWNI II00Y
TZ0Z/ST/90
) H9658500%8EG0SHIODY S0°6LE
S0°6LT 1202/S1/90 ITSTOT L0ZZ-0L-02% T20Z AYW SHOUVHD ATHINOH NOIIV0J¥0D LSIMO LZSYTIT O 10
09799 SNOILDETE
TZ0Z/ST/90
SELIS ONITIOL Ol TAATAL 09°99
09799 TZ0Z/ST/90 TZSI9F%T §02Z-TZ-T0%  NOILDATIA TYIDEAS T1Z0Z IST ANAL ‘A TEVHOIN “¥S ‘0¥ILO0 9ZSSTT O 10
00°00€ NOTISSIWWOD AINOOD
00°00T zLZ9E / 7/ 692Z-50-T0% SENG FAILVITIIIY 0Z0Z T202/S1/90
00°00T TLZIE / 7 6922-50-10% SANd TIVITITIAY 610T . 00°00€
00°00T ZLZ9E 1Z02/ST1/90 T2STI9L 692Z-S0-10% SINd HIVIITAIY 8T0Z  HIVITIIAIY SUANOISSIWHOD DVHN §ZS9TT O 10
S0°21T SNOILDHTH
TZ0Z/ST/90
SEALIS ONITIOd OL THAVIL S0°ZIT
S0°ZTT TZ0Z/ST/90 TZSISET S0Zz-T1Z-T0%  NOIZDTIHE IVIDAGS 1202 IST ANACL TAVHOIN ’IDSYN $ZS9TT O T0
00°00ST NOISSIWHOD  ALNNOD
£€859¢€ WNXE 40 SANYT T-D IOVAEL
£859¢ N ‘HSOINIDW ~qd SINIWATIO 8 120Z/ST/90
£859¢ I¥ QHLYDOT STIADY S7°0 00°00ST
00 00ST £859¢€ 1Z0Z/ST/90 ITSISTZ Z192-S0-10% AI¥HEIO¥E TYEE ESYHDUNG L788 IW-NNXAI €ZS9TT © 1O
AUNOWY # Od TIVA # 90TOoAUT ws3I SUTT uotadransag suweN FLYA #3ID
0z :ebed TZ0Z/LT/9 OL TZ0Z/¥/9 WO¥I QEININA SEDEHD  ONIISIT MOFHD (09DHEHD) LS:0€:6 TZ/LT/9 :e83ed



LT T9¢E YILNFED HOINIS VYIODNVLSH



00°8¢€TC INVID NOILNEIILSIA IMA

120Z/LI/9 OL 120T/%/9 WOdd

QEINTIIE SUDIHD DNILSIT XOHEHD

8TE8THEDIOANT
TE€59¢€ X0T - INdINO/INANI DY A 0TT
TES9E - X9-ONVIS HZIONTH 0T %
1€59¢€ - EDYVHOEYE ANOH 9T - Sd0 JHAMOL 1z0zZ/LT/90
TES9E HATIDVEEINI ENIT ¥YA00ST O¥d SdN . 00°8€Z
00°8€Z TESY9E 1Z0Z/LT/90 TZ9T9LE 8TZZ-€T-509  MOVE OITMIDITE ¥ACTANHOS X9 DAY ONI YANMOD WILNIWOD 9€S9TIT O TO
00°9€T MEETD ALNOCD
TZ0Z/LT/90
IVEILIE MEATO 00°9€T
00°9€ET TZ0Z/LT/90 TZITOWE S02Z-02-10% KN OTIITUNMEE OL THEAVIL YIATAS ’“ZIATHD S£€S9TT O TO
0T 8IST XYL ESIOXE HdId 37/T
L88TOTHIOOY
¥6°GST LSPIE /7 0€ZZ-26-TT¥ Ma/¥E T TINAWY TW T ‘OW T
LS¥9€E INVANT ‘dOLYIIDSASTE
S0 v6 LS%9E /7 0€ZT-26-TIT¥ TYANVH WAS XATdVEND ASYD
LS79€E QIIHD ‘¥OLVWLIIDSASHI
SS°T6 LS¥9€E /7 0€TT-T6-T1¥ TUONYW HAE XIIITA0D ISYD
LETIE | IINAY ‘¥YOIVLIDSASHI
zS°sST LS%9E /7 0€ZZ-T6-1I1% TYANYH HAE XTIdYA0ND ESYD
LSP9E SNId ¥RAIFIOASNYAL
06°66€ LSP9E /7 0€ZZ-26-TTY INZIIVE XTIAVEOD HSYD
LSY9€ DYE TWO00T “%6°0 HATIOTHD
9Z " %ET LSPIE. /7 0€ZZ-26-TT¥% WOTAO0S ‘NOIIQTOS AI ASYD
LS%9€ ' OgWOD MDOIND HIIM
02 S€€ LS¥9€E / / .0€2Z-T6-117% ‘HIOYIDEIE WALSXS DI
LSY9E . : AIIHD/INVANT ‘EAOALDITIIL
ST°98% LS%9¢€ /7 0€22Z-26-TT¥ NOTIVITETEIRG ADNANT QEONAHT
LSY9€E HS0Q HIONIS
0S°66C LSPIE / 7/ 0€ZZ-26-T1% THZ ‘IEC-¥E0T ENOXOTYN HSYD
0T -9 LSY9E / /7 0€2Z-26-11¥ FONTEAS INO/M HDIARC IVSYN VK
) LSP9E ) TIIGdSYS ‘HAODSHHIALS ONIVOLINOH
6% €CT LS¥9€ / /7 0€22-26-TT¥% III DISSYID NYWLLIT WE TZ0Z/LT/90
LSY9€E AAYN ‘HIODSTHLALS ONTIOLINOH ° 0T"8TSZ
%98 LSYSE TZ0Z/9T/90 TZSTOTT 0€ZT-T6~-TT¥ IITI DISSYID NYWLLIT WE OTT ‘TYDICHW ATIL ANNOSE ¥ES9TT O 10
8L7€9TT XYL SWH/SNOIIVOINAWWOD
LOTLHIDIOANT
LLS9E 960€CHTHZIOTNANAT *NIA
LLS9E I%L'QST *EOVITIIH
LLSSE 622659D a1
8L°99¢€ LLS9E / /7 8%ZZ-€8-%09 NOILIGHEdX"E q¥0d 00T
00" LY LLSGIE / /7 87ZZ-€8-709 SHEIIAANS d0HS 1zoz/ST/90
LLS9E ONILHDIT HANIADS 8L E9TT
00°0SL LLS9E TZ0ZT/ST/90 TTSTI96 8%2Z~€8~%09 /M VEIHOIT ADNIDUANWI DTT SYALLIAIN DVM £€S9TT O 10
00212 IFINSYIIL AINAOD
1Z0Z/ST/90
00°ZTZ .
00°2T2 8HESE T20Z/ST/90 TZS1I9T 692Z~0E-T0% INZE TYONNY 8TE€ X0€ 04 AEISYWISOd “S°0 ZESITT O TO
Junowy # Od TIYA ws3T SUTT uaotadransad SweN ZI¥A #30

(09DEHD)  LS:0€:6  IT/LT/S :92BQ



LT CTS v 1Z0Z/9T/90 TEZITILT . €022-05-T0% LOVIINOD ¥AIJ0D JIJTHHHS IOVEINOHDIAYHES TYIDNYNIL NIANYI FOVI =d LES9TT O TO




CO"80LT  ¥WHINHAD ¥OINIS ALIVITOW

£L806P#EDTOANT
S£S9¢€ ZyE# WACEO MUOM
s€59¢€ MHINED ¥OINES AITYIUOW
00°80T S£59¢€ /7 STZZ-LE-TOP™ IEOHN
S€59¢ NIV
S£S9E ANy ‘F¥0IXEL ‘EAVI ‘IDOELTHHS 1Z0Z/LT/90
SES9E MEN TTYISNI ‘SSANIIM TIY FAOWTY . 00°80LT
00700691 S£99¢ 120Z/91/90 TZ9ITILZ STZZ-LE-T0% OL TTYM I0D ‘SITTIOL OML HACWHEY SYOLDNELSNOD & HETENOT S%S9TT O IO
69°9LT WEAOSYAEL ALNNOD
ZST60005-00SH#IOVILINGD TZ0Z ENAD 120Z/LT/90
, 7876 ZETHIOOY T¥8908ZLEEDIOANT 69°9LZ
69-9LZ szESE 1Z0Z/ST/90 TZ9T9SZ €02Z-0€-10% TZ0ZAd I¥D 3 ISVYET ¥FTJOEOIAVES TYIONYNIA NEANYT HOVI 3d $%59TT O TO
0L78Z€E ONINOZ % DNINNYIL
1Z0Z ENACM PEBTYEIHIOOY 1202/LT/90
8TLEOBZLETDIOANT E€ZZ69SST 0L-8ZE
0L 8zE 120Z/9T/90 IZ9T9EZ £02Z-80-10% HIOVEINGD ¥HIGOD Zd IOVEINOEOIANES TYIONYNIS NEANYI ZOVI EA €$S9TT O TO
z9°81¢ INTHIEYIFA ZONYNIL
TZ0Z ANAD FEBTPETHIODY 1202/L1/90
SZLEOSZLEADTOANT 0EC69552# z9°81¢
z9-81¢ TZ0Z/9T/90 1Z9T9ZT £022-55-T0% IOVEINOD ¥EIA0D FONVNIZ IOVEINOBOIANHS TYIONYNIA NEGNYT EOVT HA ZPSSTIT O 10
ST zS¢€ JOSSHESSY AINAOD
1Z0Z ENALC PESTPETHIOOY £ZLEOSTL 1Z0Z/LT/90
HADTOANT 8ZZ6955ZHIDTILNOD ) ST zsE
5T°ZS¢€ TZ0Z/ST/90 TZS19TZ £02Z-0%-019 YATIOD LOVELNOD WOSSASSEDIANAS TYIONYNIJ NIANVI ADYI 24 T¥S9TT O TO
117852 11Id ONIM
1202 ENQLC $£269SSZHIDTIINOD 120Z/LT/90
$EZ69SSTHIOOY EELEOBZL 11°85¢2
T1°85Z 120Z/9T/90 TZ9190T £022-60-069 #IDIOANI AG IDVHMINOD ¥EIAOBOIANES TYIONUNIZ NIANYT ZOVI EA 0¥S9TT O TO
$8°9zZ€ SIDYNYH AINAOD
120z ENAL FILEOBTL ’ 120Z/L1/90
. HIDTOANT PESTPETHEIONY 8TT695STH ¥8°92¢€
$8°92¢ 1Z0Z/ST/90 TZ9T96T £0ZZ-0I-T0% IOVAINOD EATA0D IFOYNYH IOVEINOEDIANES TIVIONUNIA NIONYT IOUT A 6€S9TT O TO
61882 INGWLOTTY F9Td HIVLIS
120z ENAC VLLPOETHIDOY Z6¥Z08ZL 1Z0Z/LT/90
#IDIOANT 986TSSSTHIOVEINOD 6T 882
61°882 sz9s¢ 120Z/9T/90 TZ9IT9IST TLZZ-T6-€T¥ NIWQY H¥I4 904 INAWAVA YHIZOBDIANES TYIONYNIA NAGNYT FOYT A BESOTI O TO
LT ZIS ZITYTHS ALNOOD
TZ0Z EANOL TLLPOSTHIOOVY HmHmch.P T20Z/LT/90
H$EDIOANT 7Z9SEHOL M TBETSSSTH L1°2TS
Junowy # od FIVQ ~ # 9o70AUT we3I SUTT uoradraosaq sweN CAR6) #1D
zz  :sbea 1Z0Z/LT/9. OL TZ0Z/¥/9 WOSI EINIEE SAOEHD  ONILSIT MOTHD (09DFHD) LS:0€:6  TZ/LT/9 :o3BQ



$T06ELOEIIDY . : 897901
89°90T . ITSSE T20Z/9T/90 TZT9ISL . : QTZZ-16-90% YALTM 904 ILNHEWAVE ALITILO "ONI ‘¥sn 30DdE g%59TT O 10



COTTLD dT dHANYTIAN AAHIHO

S0°veE

6T59¢
S0° %€ 6TS9¢€ TZ02/9T/90 129192 2022-22-509 TZ/€1/S TNI TTDIHIA AEOVEL ‘WHISYW SSS9TT O TO
00°€€ NOIZVEISININAY INVHED
98L98#HDTOANT
£€v9¢€ 9T0L8 WN ‘YIDNYISH
£EY9E 8% X09 Od
£€%9¢ NATTY TANIHD :NLIY ALNOOD 1202/LT/90
EETOE HONTIIOL OL NNWPH..HWD TIVIW HIIM 007 €€
00" €€ £€%9¢ TZ02/LT/90 TZ919ZE 6922-6%-T0% INIJEANI THL O NOIIATEDSENS DT SMEN INIZANZIIZANT $S59TT O TO
6% 66%T TZAd INVED TUDOT IMA
LETLS/STTLS/TE60LBHIITOANT 1202/LT/90
00%9¢ SaY NOTINZATEd IMd ADIHEM : 6%°66%T
6% 66%T 00%9¢ T202/LT/90 TZ9T96T 1222-22-509 ¢ ENOC-HO¥YW FOWMOVA ONISILIEAGY OTT SMAN INAGNIIZANT £€559TT O TO
56 %L INTIRIAVAEA FONYNII
T¥ZCHIDDY
LTS9ZOANISHIDIOANI TZ0Z/90/S0 TZ0Z/LT/90
FIVA HOTANAS SIDIAYES ONICTHIHS 56" 7T
S6°%T 8EESE TZ0ZT/9T/90 TZTSTS9T TLZTZ-SS-T0% HOTAAO S, dIDOENYRH ODIXEINW MEN 40 SNOZIVOH Nm.mw.n._n O TO
S6°%T AOSSHSSY XINOOD
ZPZEHIOOY STSOZOANTSHADTOANT 120Z/L1/90
1202/90/50 HLVA FDTAUIS S6°%T
G6°FT TZ0Z/9T/90 TZIIIST 1LZZ-0%~10% MOSSHSSY SHOIANES ONIAAHNHS ODIXHW MEN 4O SNOZIUOH TSS9TT O TO
S6°%T MIFTD AINAOD
TZ0Z/LT/90
TYTEHIOOY 9TS9ZOANISHEIDIOANT S6°%T
$6°%T 66€5¢€ 1Z202/9T/90 TZ919%T £02Z2-02-2T9 120ZAd ¥04 FDOIANHAS ONICAEIHS ODIXHW MEN 40 SNOZIUOH 0SS9TT. O 1O
69T ATAQSYARL AINAOD
1202/L1/90
: 0VZEHLODY STSIZOANTSHADTOANT S6°%T
S6°%T 6cese 1202/9T/90 TZSTI9ET 1L2Z-0€-T0% TZXd W04 SEDIAYAS DNICUHUHS ODIXAW MAN 40 SNOZIUOH 6%59TT O TO
6T 7L ATVA ALNNOD
1202/LT/90
ZEVITEDHSHIOOY SOTHIDTOANT 6T 7LT
61" ¥LT 62%9¢ TZ0Z/LT/90 TZST99E TLZZ-€5-2T% T 954 WOUA SHOTANHS TYINVIHEDAS IQVEE ‘TYNEYH 8%S9TT O TO
6€°LZ SEOILIO FATIVELSININGY
1202/LT/90
SZTIHIDOY LILOSZTHADTOANT 6€° LT
6€°LZ 6L95E 1202/9T/90 TZ9T99 STZZ-ST-TO0% ‘ONTERNTd *TYDINIDHETE ~DSIN “ONI HUYMOUYH NILSOD LFS9TT O TO
89°90T INEWIOTTY H¥II HIVLS
TZ0Z/LT/90
Junomy # od FIVA 4 SOTOAUT we3I SUTT uotadrIossq SweN FIVA, #340

£z cobeg

TZ02/LT/9 OL T20ZT/%/9 WO¥d JEINI¥d SEDEHD DNILSIT XOEHD

. (09DEHD) LS0E%6

1z/LT/9 :@3ed



6TSOE . ONINMOM ION SYM C¥¥D ALNAOD
6159¢ SEL'YTZ HDVHTIINW 120T/LT/90



INIVH XHEIWOD TIVIOIanc, 80°99

08%8Z99#IIDY
9%¥6-8S0SY/LFP6-8S09GFHEDIOANT

NYNZLNIYAN ¥ SNOILVIEdO0

LS LE SEDIAL0 FAILVALSININAY

6L°8S 7/ £02Z-91-10% AYIDIANL ¥OA -SI0W aNY SIVH N
MDIN 1Z0Z/LT/90
80°99 / 7/ 9€TZ-S9-T0%  VYSSINVW ATHIV NOSIHLS SWEOAINQ Y529t
LS LE TZ0Z/ST/90 TZ9T9S £0ZZ-ST-T0% NIWGY ALNACD SdOW AN¥ SIVKW A1ddAS TIVIIAQ IVIINIAANII £959TT O 10
; 00°9¢€T MYETO AINAOD
1Z0Z/LT/90
IVHILET 00-9€T
00" 9ET TZTOZT/LT/90 TTOTIISE S0ZZ-0T-T0% SYIHATD WN OTIITYNIZE OL THAVAL ANNOAX A¥YYW ‘OIHLO Z9S9TT O 10
TZT ¥%TIE FEDILSAL HTINIAQL TAXD
£9TZE/ZSTTEHADTOANT 3
06¥%9¢€ Tzoz ‘IT - 0T HNAL ONINTVEL
06¥%9€ FIILSAL FATIVIOSTE d0d STYANW T20Z/LT/90
96° €T 06%9¢€ /7 992Z-L9-S€9 : XYL 12 %1€
Sz 062 06%9¢ TZOT/LT/90 TZOTI9TE 992Z-L9-5€£9 STVIN ONINIVEL - HHL 'TIIW @10 T9S9TT O IO
L8 L YADYNYW ALNAOD
TZ0Z/LT/90
PIDLELIDY O0TT6¥HADIOANI 1ZT/¥T/90 L8 L
L8 L 1Z0ZT/9T/90 TZ9I98 €0ZZ-0T~-T0¥% ~TZ/ST/S0 HOVITAO IDVILLNOD JUYHS dno¥n =HENN 0959TT © 10
20" €S SHOIAYHS TYNINY
TZ0Z/LT/90
66SD#IDDY €0L0E0T HSYDHHEDIOANT . zo €9
20" €95 67S9SE 1Z0Z/9T/90 TZ9ISTT TLZT-Z8-TO0V ONILSHL SHIGYY ¥0d SNOIIVLIIYOHA J0 SINIFOFY ‘NSHN 6559TT O 10
L9°STIL NOISSIMWOD ALNOOD
TZ0Z/LT/90
6Z00TAT-SHIDOT L9 SZIL
L9°829L 1Z0Z/9T/90 TTIT9T ZT2Z-S0-T0% HIEIIONMEA INFHADUOINE MYT ALTYOHLAY HONVINSNI ALNNOD HN 8SS9TT O TO
SL°6ST INV¥D NOILASIILSIA INA
. L30dans
SLL8 / 7 TLTZTZ-E£T-509 NOIINIAHId QIYN¥Ed "N-TZ0Z/%T/S T20Z/LT/90
TOUIVd SL°6ST
00-2ZL TZ0T/LT/90 TZ9TS0E ZLZZ-£T-909 AEIDEYIA SHANE L TT0Z/8T/S J0 NMOL ‘UIYNIYINAOW LSS9TT O.TO
¥8°%2TT XYL FSIDXE HAIId 3%/T
ZSOTH#LODY 8685€/968FH#IDIOANT 120Z/LT/90
868S5¢ I¥D DILYY 00% ANV ‘0S¢ %8 TTTT
¥8°¥ZTT 868S€E TZOZ/9T/90 TZ9T9%T T022-26-11T¥ ‘00€ ¥OA HEDIAYAS ANV ATYAHA DTT ‘SHANINIAAY LIOISTOLOW 95591IT O 10
S0°%vE TZAL INVID T¥D0T IMd
6TS9¢ AHATTO "L WO TYACIAAY TYSEIA
JUNOWY # 0od IV # 9so0TOAUT w3l JUTT uotadrIossa swey 2IVA #4D
44 :abeg TZ0Z/LT/9 O TZ0Z/%/9 WO¥A GHININA SMOHHD ONILSIT MDHHD (09DAHD) LS:0E:6 tZ/LT/9  e3eg



LTS9¢E . €0STLCOVOUZVAMIHT *NIA TS CLIT
LTSO9E TZIT90T : FAAWAE HOD 007L TUNOILYNNELNT 0T J4NO¥D ADNIEDIIAWH NILIVW-SNOAAIS $9S91T O 10



7E088#I0DY TZ0Z/LT/90

. ¥LZZ/LTZT/8LTZHIDIOANT 2€°%0L
SEF0L 8LESE TZOZ/LT/90 TTIOTIEE YHZZ~-09-20% SI¥Vd ANY ‘SHOAE ONILLAD “ITVITI TOD INIWAINDE JINDYM 699911 O 10
i S6°95TC ININLOTTY HdId TIVLS

65088#IDDY TEZZE68OMOTSHIDIOANT

€9 %€ 6%59¢ /7 T0ZZ-16-80% YOIWT NO XYL/MON¥L LSHL QYOd
€€ €TT 6759¢€ /7 10ZZ-T6-80% SEDUVHD DSIN
00°60Z1 6%59¢ /7 1022-16-80% HOFYT ,
667669 6%59¢ / / 102Z-16-80% ] sIgvd :
659t . . N . 09T %€ HOVHTIW
6%59¢ $£0099 1dT
6959¢€ . LOCOENHS9DTADYAST NIA 1202/L1/90
6759¢ YOIDEONT S# FOVIAEY : S6°9512
6%59¢€ TZ9TSE Z-€ WEANEL S0 INAWAINOH MANDYM 8959TT O I0
00-Z8T FEOYNYI ALNNOD
. , €T08%0CHIOIY LLTTPETANT . 1z0Z/L1/30
00° 0% / 7/ 1L2Z-0T-10% HADIOANI HHEA EONYITAHOD ATHLNOW . 00° 28T
00°ZET T202/91/90 TZ9T98Z TLZZ-0T-T0% F73 NIHAY ATHLINOW SYAOMTOUM L9S9TT O IO
06°9€67 INIVW DATd IdHA HITYEH
v T0978%0 EAHTDTOANT
$859¢€ - €L000-8T-000-06# VAMSHN
0% PIZ $859¢ /7 ST2Z-%Z-10% . XYL
S859¢ M " : 0dOL - WN ‘YIDNYLISH .
s859¢ ) g1I440 HIIVEH 40 INIWITYAZA © . Tz0Z/LT/90
5899¢ . : . MOOULEAHS 06°9€62
05-zzLT 6859€ 120Z2/9T/90 TZ9IT99T STZZ-$2-10% HOIVd ANV SEIIL ONITIHED dIVaTY ALTTIIIO % ONTEWATd OIL 9959TT O T0
LL %L9T INEWIOTTY F¥Id AIVLIS
S6° %% 1959¢€ /7 . 8%22-16-50% £86Z9T /DNIJATHS
1959¢ : #1DDY Y9Z099ZHADTOANT /HDUVT
SL 66%C T959¢€ /7 87ZZ-16-50% ' (NOIIVIENHD MAN) UELTIHS HEId
LS 0€ Teg9E /7 872Z-16-50% ALIODS ‘HONFEM TIVE 3 WOEd
T959¢€ . ' AOWTT AVALS
SL 6% T959¢€ /7 8722-16-50% TING- 3 YHHIVET HAOTD YAATIA TZ0Z/LT/90
1959¢ WOTQIW 'dYELs LL %L9T
SLT 6% 1959¢€ 1202/9T/90 IZ919% 8%22-16-50% TINd ® SEHLVET ZAOTO WAATIA ONI FHOVD A7ddns §9S9TT O T0
TS ZLTT INZWIOTTY H¥Id4 EIVLS
0E¥80FZTHIDTOANT
60°18 L159€ /7 7 102Z-T6-50% XYl SEIYS
8L°19 LTS9€ /7 1022-16-50% sgriaans dods
SLTETY . LTS9¢€ /7 102Z-16-50% . FOFY'T
687509 LTS9E /7 T0ZZ-T6-50% SI¥¥d
LTS9E YHINYIS SIVAEY aNY FSONDYIQ
L1§9¢€ (8z SIDILEY ‘0T-0Z-6T 444 TAS)
L1S9E . : SO¥L J0 MMOL
LTS9E 0T-TZ-II IDVENOD ZDIANES
LTS9€ A AHL 40 SWNHEL SHI SEd TYAO¥AAY
LIS9€ : ¥OI¥E HIIM CHIDVELNODENS
LTS9€E . g Ol ATVAEE ITASYD JYEH 120Z/LT/90
Junowy # 0d qIVA  # 90TOAUT welT SUTT uotadranseq : sweN YA #3ID

sz :obeq IZ0Z/LT/9 OL 120Z/%/9 WOUA QHININA SADIHD ONILSIT ADdHD (09DFHD) LG 0E°6 Tz/LT/9 :81eQ



9€°%0L INTNLIYIIA QY0¥ ALNAOD



TYLOL / / LT"0%LZZZ S0z

85 E¥S INIWLOTIY HYIdA HLVLS
NODVOLHLOOT T99SGLOTHIDIOANT TZ0ZT/LT/90
T V6 L689¢E / 8¥CZ-T6~-50% X¥4L SHIYS 85°¢¥%9
TE 67T L68S¢E TIZ0Z/9T/90 TZ2T96 8¥2CZ-T6-507% 207 ISV¥dA TOOL JNDSTY AAVHH OV¥d dNo¥d ALIAYS DITANd AFWLIM 0LS9TT O TO
Junouy # 0d . HINA # 9DTOAUI W3 SUTT uot3dIxdsag oweN FTIVA #31D

9z :obeg 1Z0Z/LT/9 OL 1IZT0Z/¥%/9 WO¥d JEINIUE SMDHHD ONILSIT AOIHD (09DFHD) LS:0E%6 T2/LT/9 83ed



00"
00"

00°
00~

00"
00-

00"
00~
00°
00°

00"
00~
00"

00"
00"
00"
00"

00"
00"
00"
00°

00"
00°
00"
0"
00"
00"
00°
00°

00~
00-
6o -
00"
00°

00"

00"

T6 " T0€E MALS /ATING-SYILVIIY ¥ FONVNIINIVH

STCZ-LZ-T07%

917€6 FILVM - SEILITIIN 0TZZ-LZ-T0%
8Z°6¢€1 ANVAO¥d /SYD TVINLYN - SHILITIIN 602Z-LZ-TO¥
7764 . SNOILLVDINOWNODHETHL LOZC-LZ-TO%
6L° €69 INIVH JHLNIED FOINAS FIUNIVINOOW LIdHd =
80°08€’¢ NALS/QITOE-SYIVATE B HONUNIINIVH S1ZZ-%Z-10%
80°08E‘€E ADNVNHLNIVH D079 IdH0 HLTVHEH LI »
0%7°559 DMHm\DQHDmlmMHENMM ? HONUNILNIVH STZC-£2-T0%
0% 559 . INIYW DINITD HITVIH YIVNIVLNOOW LAAQ % =
00°9TE’L SI50D0 NOILOETH . 92CT-1C-T0%
66 CTE HDTALO TYAIANID - SHAITIIONS 6TCZ-TC-T0%
0L 2ot SHAXOTIWNE - THAVIL S0¢2-1e-T0%
69°1Z0°8 SNOTILOHETH LITA >
88°80T SNOIIYOINNWWODETEL L02Z-0C-10%
00-2ZLT . SHIAQTAWE - THAVIL S02C-02-T0%
887 08¢ TEATO ALNAOD LIFA*»
S0°L0O'T OJLS/ATTING-SUIVAHY 3 HONYNILNIVH SITT-9T-T0%
86 9TT SNOILYD INOWNCOHTAL L0OTZ-9T-T0%
LEOLT ) INIVH INIFHIINDE - SIDOWILNOD £€0CC~-9T-107%
07" 00€’T FONVNAINIVA XHETAWOD TIYIDIANs LIFA* »
S7TT6T 0¥ /SANNOID-SITVAAE ¥ HONYNTINIYA 8€ZZ-ST-T0¥%
6L°921'C NALS/AIING-SUIVITI 3 FONVNILNTI YR STZZ-ST-TO0¥
TL ZTIT INIVH INAWAINOE - SIDVEINOD £022-9T-10%
S6°0€%’'CT NYNAILNIVH SE3IAJ40 HAILVILSININAY IIId* +
00°00L"T SHDIAY¥IS TYNOISSHAOEd -~ LOVALNOD CLTZ-01-10%
SLTT6L . SEDIAYEAS ¥HHLIO - LOYILNOD TLZZ-0T-10%
00°22T SHIA/SINA/SNOILATIDSENS 692CZ-0T-T10%
007059 dIN0HE/XId/NINI 8TZZ-0T-T0%
86°90% SNOTLVD INQWKODETHL L0CZ-0T-T0¥%
C¥ 687 INIVH INEWAINOE - SIDVIINOD £0Z22-0T-T0%
00°99 TS dTOIHIA -~ SAITIAANS Z02C~0T-TO0%
§1°52T’S YADYNYN ALNOOD LATd* %
SL°T6 . SNOILYD INQWHODITAL L0ZZ-80-T0%
00°g0¢€ SHIZAOTAWA ~ TIAVIL 502Z-80-T0%
0L"8ct INIVH INIWAINCE - SIDVILINOD £€02Z-80~-T0%
8v-gzL ' DNINOZ ® DNINNYIL IIdHA =
00°00S°T SININIACEIWNTI ONY'T 3 ONVT - 0D ZT92¢-SC-10%
00°00¢ SHHEA/SENA/SNOILATIDSENS 6922~S0~T0¥%
05°165°22 FDIAI0 NOISNALXH - IIVILINOD T92Z-50-10%
00°05Z°T VANNOS ALINOWAOCD WNXM - LOVLLNOD €¥ZT-50-10%
SLTLY9'T dIN0E/XI4 /NI 81ZZT-S0-10%
L9°529 L. IT/40¥3-SHATRIId TDNVIOASNI JTHLO Z1ZZ-5S0-T0%
88 TOT SNOTIVDINAWHODETIL L0ZZ-S0-T0%
08°9T0‘9¢ NOISSIWNOD ALNOOD IIIA» +
T8°0€9°68 aNna TYEENED TYLOL+
LI OvL'zZEZ xx TULOL ONVID %
SLIQH™D SLIEHd

TZ0Z/LT/9 OL T1Z0Z/%/9 WOWA QHINTHd SHDTHD

NOIILAdIJdLSIA

z0:8¢g*6 IZ/LT/9 :e3ed



00° 99°LZT SHTOIHIA - SYIVAEY ? HONVNILNIVIH T02Z-0€-T0%
00" €T FST'T FHENSVAAL ALNAOD ’ LA x +



8%2Z-28-T0V

00- 6% 0€ET ALIIYS - SHITIANS

00° 96°ST THNNHEY - SYIV4AHY % HONYNILNIVR 6€TZ-T8-TO0¥
00~ - CYARANN TANNAY - SHITIANS €£222-28-10%
00" € OLT ONINVATO - SdITTddns 02ce-Z8-T0%
00- §8°FET HDILL0 IYVIENED - SIAITLINS 61TCCT-C8-TOV
00" LO 969 dINDE/XId/Nana 812Z-28-T0%
00~ 8% 0%S ao0d IV¥WINY - SHITAINS 91CZ-28-10%
00" s 88% SNOT.LYVOINNWNODETAL LOTZ-28-10%
00~ vz 0€T’€E SHOIAYAS TYWINY LITT» *
00" ¥2 86T SWICAINN - SHITAANS . 9€TT-59-T0¥%
00- £€9-59L2’s SHOIA¥ES LTI -~ LOVIINOD €TZ22~-59-10%
00- 8T"6€0°Z SNOILVD INQWWODHTHEIL L0ZT-99-T07
00 SO"E€TS‘L HDONUNIINIVH ® SNOILVNHIJO LIEdx*
00- 967981 SEEJ/SENA/SNOILIIIOSENS 692C-9S-10%
00" ’ 88°S¥ ‘SNOTLYD INAHNOD T THL L0TZ~-9S-T0%
00" £€8°2€2 AANIOLLY LIAd* *
00° S6°7%T SHJIIAEES ¥dHIO - LOVIINOD TLZZ-S8-T07
00° 79681 SNOILYOINQWRODITHL L0TZ-95-T0%
00° c9°81¢ INIVH INZWITNOE - SIDYEINOD €0CZ-95-T0%
00~ TT-€cs LNIRLIVAEA HONVNTIIL LIHd» »
00° 66°L9T NILS/TTING-SYIVATE ¥ HEONYNZINTVA STITT-£€S-T10%
00° 66°L3T dIVvd ZLNAOD IdET* +
00° I6°852’S SHOIA¥AS TYNOISSHIOEd - IOVILNOD ZLZEZ-0S-T0¥%
00" 987961 - HETMLIOS . 8ZZTZT-0S-TO0¥%
00" T2 ZEY ADTIAA0 TYHENED - SHITIAQS 61CT-0SG-T0%
00~ ’ 60°026°C . SNOILYDINNWNODITHL L0TT-0S~-T0%
00" 08790T SHIAOTANE - TAAVAL . S02Z-0S-T0%
00° LT 218 INIVH INFHGINDE - SIDYILNOD £€0Z2-0S-10%
00" v 9% THENd ITOIHAA - SEITAANS z0cc-05-10%
00" 00°€92°% SHIDIHHAA - SYIVAEY ® HONYNIINIVH T02Z-0S-T0%
00" - ST PEL'ET JATIEAHS ALNOOD IIHA # »
00" 00 €€ SHEES/SENA/SNOILITIIDSENS 69CT-6%-T07%
00" ¥0° 1S SNOILVOINNWNODATAL L0OZZ-6%-TO%
00" 70" 78 NOILVILSININAY LNVID LIHA ¥+
00° S6°F%T SHDIAJIS YHHLO - ILOVALNOD TLZZ-07-T07%
00" $6°€CT ONISILIEAQY/ONIHSITENd /ONIINIAA TZZT-0%-T07%
0c- . A ANA ' SNOILVOINOWWODITEL LOZTZT-0%-TO0%
00° T8 TSE JOSSESSY ALNOOD IIHd % »
00" 60°960°C NYIS/AIING-SYIVITY ¥ FONYNIINIVW STZZ-LE-TOY
co- . - LLTTELT SNOILVDINONWAODATIL LOTZ-LE-TOF
00-° ) 98-L9Z’'2 LINIVA dHINAD JOINHS ALIYITOW LAdAd* *
00° 9L"1IST'T OULS/AIING-SITVITI B TONVNILNITA STZT-9¢-T0¥
00" ) 08°zsc . SNOILVOINQWNODITEL LOZZ-9€-T0%
00" ' 95 PTS'T INIVH JIINTD JOINIS WIDNWISHE LTI x>
00° S6°¢€¢ SHOIAYHES JEHLO - ILOVALNOD TLZT-0E€-TO0¥%
00~ 00-21T S8348/SENA/SNOILIIYISENS 6922-0€-T0%
00" TZ LEL UZHmHHMMPQQ\wZHmmHAmDm\OZHBZHM& TCCTT-0E-T0%
00" 26°99¢ SNOILVOINAWWODATEL LOZZ-0E-T0%
00" 69°9LT INIVH INZWGINOH .- SIDYILNOD €022-0€-T0%

SLIqEID SLIgEA

TZ0Z/LT/9 OL IT0T/%/9 HO¥A QIININA SADITHD

NOIILNgIdLSIA

20:8€:6 1z/LT/S

1 93Ra



00" 98- ¢€8 SEDIAYES TYNOISSHIOUd - IOVIINOD ZLZZ-T8-T0%
60" ' T6°00T SEDIAY¥ES WIHLO - IDVIINOD TLZZ-Z8~-T0%



00 8- €8 GNQd NOILIDILOYd "d°71 TYIOL* »
00" 6L7E9T SEDIAYES ¥HEHLO - LOVILNOD TLZZ~-T6-607%
00° T0°68T SNOII¥DINNWWODETIL L0ZZ-T6-607
00" 08-2s¢ INIWLOTTY FJI4d HIVLS ircicla ey
00" 08°ZS¢ gdp ¥ IOIELSIA TYLOL* x
00" 6L"€9T SEDIAYIS ¥WHHIO - LIVALNOD TLCZ-T16-80%
00° EL %57 . TYOICHH - S3ITddns 0€CZ-16-80%
00" ’ T9°CLT SNOILYD INONNOOHTHLL L0ZZ-T6-80%
00" S6°1IT6°T SHIDIHAEA - SYIVAHEE ? HONUNILNIVR 1022-16-80%
00° 8% ZOL'E INFNLOTTIY HIId HIVLIS pretclety
00" 8% °Z0L'E GdA € LIOI¥ULSIA TYLOL« *
00" 6L°€9T1 SEDINYIS ¥HHIO - LOVAINCD TLZZ-T6-L0OV
00- 00°0%C ALIIYS - SHITAdNS 8YCZ-T16-LO¥
00° 69°6L ANYJOUd/SVD TYENIYN - SEILITILN 602C-16-L0%
00~ zTE €S SNOILVD INOWHODHTEL L0ZZ-T6-LO¥
T 00 08 9¢€s INIWLOTIY 514 FIVLS LAdIA* +
00° 08°9¢€S QdA T IDIYLSIA IYLOL* *
00" 6L°€9T SHDIAYES ¥YIHLO - LOVILNOD TLZZ~T6-907%
00~ Q€ €%C IYOITEW -~ SEITddNs 0€TZ-16-3S0%
- 00° 89°90T THLEM SHILITIIN 0TZZ-16-907%
00" S0 ecc mZOHBﬁUHZDEEOUMJMB. L0Cz-T6-90%
00" 28 CvL {LNHWILOTIV HIId HALYLS LITA > »
00° c8 YL GdA ¢ EDIELSIA TELOL * »
00° 6L°€9T | SEDIA¥ES WEHIO - IDVALNOD TLZZ-T6-S07%
00- S0°0CE‘E ALIFAVS - SHITIIAS 8%CZ-16-50%
00-° gzrzLe TEDICEN - SIITIA0S 0EZC-T6-590%
00~ TZ°67% FELYM SHILITILO 0TZZ-16-50%
00" [AAR YA SNOILVDINQRNODITIL L0Z2-16-50%
00° £0°CT6'T SHTIOTHIA - SYIVAEE ¥ HONYNILNIVRH T0ZZ-16-S0%
00 0s°zvz’'9 INHNLOTIY HdIA FLVLS LIHT* *
00" 0s°zvz’9 aan § LOIELSIA TELOL x-»
00" S€°4986 JoHS - SdI17Idans 0822-T9~2T0%
00" SETS86 dOHS Q¥0¥ ALNQGCD LATAA > +
00" 0T 1CT ALIIYS - SIITAdNS 8%22-09-20%
00° 05 %S€’ST AJANTHDVH-SYIVATY ¥ HIDONUYNILNIVRH ¥¥CZ-09-20%
00" 69°93%Z'T SWHIOJINQ - SHITIdNS . 9€Z2-09-20%
00° 00°00S'T dINDE/XIA/NAINI 8TZC-09-T0¥
00- SLTIPE’T TYINTE INIWI 00" LTZZ-09-20%
00" 6L TIV'T SNOILYOINNWWODATEL L0TZ-09-20%
00~ 257 LSS’'Y TN ATIDOIHAA - SHITAANS z022-09-20%
00" ST E€E€T LT INSRLIVIHA dY0d . ALNNOD fircicieE s
00" 08°81TZ’8C aNnd gvod TELOL**
00" €1°9¢ SNOIIVOINONWNOOETEL LOTZT-06-T0%
00" €T°9¢ IDANL FTIVEOEd LITq+»
SLIqITID SLIgad
TZOZ/LT/9 OL I20Z/%/9 WO¥d JTALNII SADIHD -NOILNdIgIdILSsSId 20:8€°6 TZ/LT/9 :93ed



I8° €8 AJTIAHS ALNQOD LATdx *




00"

00"
60"
00"
00°

00"

00°
00°

00"
00~
00°

00°
00-

co-
co-

co-
‘00
06~
00~
00°
ol
00°
[l

00°

00°

060"

[}
U
il

82°2I8°¢€ QOd WYED0dd IMG TYLOLx %
8L EI¥'T. ALAAVS ~ SHITEANS 8%2Z-£8-709
89°9%1 SNOTIYDINAWWODTTAL L0ZZ-€8-709
SLTELY SETOIHAA - SUIVAEY 3 HONYNTLNIVH T0ZZ-€8-709
12°%€0°T XYL SWE/SNOLIED INOWAOD IdHx =
T2 %€0°C QNAA ESNZJIAG TIATD TYLOL* x
€87 €8T ALEAVS - SHITEENS 8%2Z-90-009
£€8°€8T INTHIDYNYH ASTH IdHAx s
€8°€8T WYEDO¥d ALEAYS TELOL*
8%°9€6°TT SETOIHDHEA = 0D 8T92-%L-02%
6L°80T SWIOAINN - SHITAAQS 9€ZZ-%L-02%
08°99% SNOT.LYD INOWHOD HIHI L0ZZ-¥L~-02¥
L0 ZIS’'ZT SYANOSI™E 40 NOILYIZOISNVIL IAHd s
88" 6% SNOTIVD INNHRODETEL L0ZZ-€L-0Z%
88°G% ONIFOLINON ALINOWAOD IdEG**
S0°6LZ SNOTIYD INOAWHODETEL L0ZZ-0L-0Z%
5076LT TEYD EIVANI LI00Y IaHETx %
00°LE8 2T aNng IIYr TYLOL* +
0%°269°9T SHZA ONIJAIL YMSAT z622-S0-6T%
0%°269°9T NOISSIWWOD ALNOOD IdHAx*
0%°269°9T IOYVALINOD YMSAE TYLOLx %
6L°€9T SHOTANAS MEHIO - LOVILNOD 1L22-T6-8T%
81" 95 JEIYM - SELLITILO 0122-T6-8T%
L6612 INSHLOTTY H¥Td HIVIS IAHOx*
L6761 adn 9 IDTELSIA TYLOLx
£T°2S¥ SEDIANEAS YHHLIO - IOVIINOD TLZZ-T6-€1¥
12°2%S N¥LS/ATING-SUIVATE ¥ HONYNIINIVH STZZ-16-€I%
9L V0T : SNOTLYD INOWHODETHL L0ZZ-T6-€T¥
0T L£0°2 INFHLOTTY H¥Id HIVLS IAHOx »
0T LEO'Z NINAY INAWINYAEd HEId TYIOLx *
6T LT SEOTANES EHHLO - IDVAINOD TLZZ-€S-2TF
6T 9LT MIVA ZLNAOD IdEAx »
6T PLT MIVA ALNOOD TELOLx =
0T°81S'T TYDIGEW - SITAANS 0€2Z-26-1T%
6E°LT I0IAI0 TYNANID -~ SEITIENS 6122-26-1T¥
$8°9L2°C SETOTHAA - SUIVEEY ¥ HEONUNIINIVN 1022-26-TT%
££°2I8'% XYL HSIOXE HITd %%/T LAAQs s
ce zI8’' % aNOd NOIIDELO¥NA H¥Id XINNOD TYLOLx #
18°€8 aTEId - SAII4d0s zZZZ-05-0T%
SLIaEdED SITEAC

TZ0Z/LT/9 OL TZ0T/¥/9 WOJI

QAINTEd SADITHD

NOILNdg€IdLsSIdAa

c0*8€%6 TZ/LT/9

r23ed



00-° ¥ 8L SEIDIHEA - SYIVAEY 2 IONUNIILNIVKH ﬂHONNnm._Hlmo.w
00° 9g-zge’'e TZAd LNYID NOILLOEIILSIA IMA LAAAx x



00~

00°
00~

00°

00°
0c-

00°

00"

00~

00~

00~
00"
00"

00"

00"
00"
00"
60*

00°
00"
00°
00°

00°0%9°2 SEDIAYES TYNOISSHAOHE - LOWLINOD ZLZZ-89-SE9
00°0%9°2 0Z3d LNVED FDILSAC FTINZANL QIXD LATTx+
00°TZYV '€ SEDIAYES TYNOISSHACYd - IDVILNOD ZLTZT-L9-SE9
1T vTE . ONINIVIL FHXOTANI 99ZZT-L9-S€9
TZ GEL’E I2Ad INVED HDILSAC FIINIANC QIAD IJFAx*
6% 08T SHEDIAMES TYNOISSHAOEd - IDVALNOD ZTLTZZ-60-5€9
567202 SADIANES JAHLO - IDVAINOD 1L2Z-60-S€9
¥V €8% IIId aQNIM IJEA* *
59°848°9 INVED HDILSAC HTINIAND THLOLx* +
LETEEB SEDIANES ¥HEHILC - IDVILNOD TLEZZ-LS-TEY
LE EEB WYIHOId S, NIZITIID WOINFS LT+
LETEEB aNNd SNEZILID ¥OINES TYLOL* »
%0 S9L MILS/AIING-SYIVAEE 3 HONUNTLNIVA §12Z-L8-0€9
$0°G9L DINITD TYDIAIW YZNVHHEASH IIEA* *
70" S9L DINITID YZNYIZdSH TYLOL* %
v6°Z8LT IDNULSNODHE /NOTIDNILSNOD QY¥ON-0D €192-96-TZ9
¥6°2T8L'T XI SIAIADTI SSO¥D AVIINO TYIIIVD IdFUAx+
$6°28L"T XL SIAIZDII SSO¥D AVILAO TVIIAWD THLOL * »
80 €TIT’T NIALS/ATING-SHTIVATIE 3 HONUNZINIVH STZZ-%6-029
‘8OETT‘T X1 S14IEDdd SSO¥H HINIDOIISVHANI IdAG *
B0 E€TT’'T I¥D FENIDNILSYIANI ALNNOD TYIOL % *
ST°80T INIYW INFRGINOE - SIOVIINOD €0TT-02-219
ST-802 XEETO AIMOOD IAH0* x
ST°802 © ONOd INERETODH Efp:ticgre TYLOL * %
ST°TSE INIVK INSWIINOE - SIOVIINCD £02Z-07-0T9
ST TSE : | ¥OSSASSY ALNAQD IaHA++
ST ese aNnd NOIIVNTVA AI¥Id0dd TYLOL« x
85 TT FEDIAJ0 IVNENID - SHITIANS 612Z-0€-609
¥ST90v ‘€ 1004 /XXa/Nana 8TZT-0€-609
ZT°8IV’€ ITINSTIIL XINOOD LIAT0xx
ZT°8I% '€ "T4 S\ SFANSVEIL TYLOL* »
67 667 T ONISILITACY /ONIHSITEN /ONIINIIL 1222~22-509
88°5% SNOTLYD INQWAODHTAL T LOZZ-ZZ-909
S0°vE TENA FTOIHAA - SHITIA40S. 202Z-2%-509
Z% 6LS'T TZAL INTED TYDOT IMA IIEA* *
SL 68T SHDIANES TYNOISSAAOEL - IDYIILNOD ZLZTZT-E€T-S09
€6 TOL T ONTSTLITACY/ONIHSITENd /ONILNTIII TZZZ-€T-509
76 €S HDILI0 TTIINTD - SHITIANS 61ZZ-€T~S09
00°8€T 41008 /X1d/Nana 8TZC-E€T-509
SIICEED S1I9EA

120Z/LT/S OL 1Z0Z/¥/

9 WO¥d QIINI™d SHDTHD NOILNdE€IdLS

Ia z0:8€i6  TT/LTI/Y

:a3ed



9L°0IS’'¥ . qIvod JITLYM . LIEA* »

9L°0TIS’¥ NQDBW.MWH@E NISYd ¥IDNVILSHE TELOL* +



00"
00"
00~
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"

00"
00°

00-°

00"

LI 0¥%L'ZTT *¥ STIYLOL JNVE ++

LT 0%L‘2TT JANVE S0 TOMNYE
96796 ALEAYS - SHITAANS 8%22-08-1T6
%L°088°T dINDE/XI4/NENa 8TZZ-08~-TT6
0E"6€¥ N¥LS/AIINE~-SYIVIEY B EDNYNILNIYH S12Z-08-1T16
LL"T90'T SNOIL¥OINOWNODITHL L02Z~08~T16
LL™ 8LV E YIINED HOIVASIA-TT6 IdAx»
LL BLY'E aNna 116 -AONIDATWI TYIOL* *
00°895°Sz XYANTHOVW ¥ INZWIIOOE - 0D LT9C-LL-LZ8
00°895'Ss2Z ONIANNA ALI¥ODES ANYITWOH 1A *
00°895"S¢ INVED STH 0ZAd STHAWN TYLOL**
05°6% SNOTIYDINNHHODTTAL LOZZ-%8-069
05" 6% TZA4 IDVEINOD AQ IdHA = *
zS" €8T SNOILYD INNWWODITAL L0ZZ-60-069
TT° 852 INIVH INZWHAEINOH - SLOVALNOD £02Z-60-069
€9°T?% IIId aNIM IdHx*
€T T6% INVED EONETOTA DILSHWOQ TYLOL* »
88°G% SNOTI¥DINNWKODETEL L0ZZ-L0-SLY
88°5% ONISSHIAAY TYINA s tc (e A
88 S ONISSHIAAY TVaNd TYLOL = »
0% SLY'¥ SEDIAYES TUNOISSEAONE - IOVELNOD ZTLZTT-TL-0§9
9€°5¢ SEDIAYES YEHLIO - IDVIINOD TL2Z-TL-0S9

SLIATAD SLIEEA

Tz0Z/LT/9 OL TZ0Z/%¥/2 WO¥d JIININA SADITHD

NOILNdg9IdLSsSId

20:8€:6 TZ/LT/9

EE=Je}-T¢]



' Agenda Item
No. 10



Agenda Item
No. 11-A4



Torrance County
Resolution Number 2021-

A Resolution
Designating the Location of Polling Places
For the 2021 Local Election and
for all Statewide Elections Conducted in 2022 and 2023
and
Appointing the Board of Registration Members for the County

WHEREAS, pursuant to the New Mexico Statutes Annotated 1978, Section 1-3-2 (2019) in
June or July of 2021 the Board of County Commissioners by resolution shall designate the
location of election day polling places in the county for the conduct of any statewide
election conducted in calendar years 2022 and 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds that each polling place designated
in this resolution complies with the provisions of NMSA 1978, Section 1-3-7 (2019), titled
Polling Places; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds that the Voting Convenience
Centers created by this resolution will make voting more convenient and accessible to
voters of the consolidated precinct, will not result in delays in the voting process, and are
centrally located within each consolidated precinct; and further that the Voter
Convenience Centers created by this Resolution along with any Early Voting locations
which the County Clerk determines to maintain open on Election Day as additional Voter
Convenience Centers all meet the requirements of Subsections B and C of NMSA 1978,
Section 1-3-4 (2019) and will be available to voters of any precinct in the county to cast a
vote at any Election Day Voting Convenience Center; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds that that each polling place provides
individuals with physical mobility limitations unobstructed access to at least one voting
machine; and

WHEREAS, this Resolution is subject to amendment should there be precinct boundary

adjustments once the final results of the 2020 Decennial Census are received by New
Mexico from the Census Bureau; and

Pabe lof4



WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 1-4-34 (2019), the Board of County
Commissioners shall at its first meeting in June of 2019 appoint the Board of Registration
for the County who, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 1-4-37 (2019), shall serve a term
from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners designates
the election day polling locations for any Statewide Election to be conducted in 2022 and
2023 as follows:

Precinct Numbers Location & Address

Voter Convenience Centers (VCC):
(All voters in the county may vote at these locations, regardless of where they live.)

wand2 7 ESTANCIA HGH SCHOOL GYM: 709
: - Hopewell, Estancia, M. M. 87016
'3 4andie TORREQON COMMUNITY CENTER: 18
: - Torreon Heights Rd., Torreon, M. M.
- 87061
547,20and2i  MORIARTY-EDGEWOOD SCHOOLS

- ADMIN, BLDG.: 2422 US Houte 66,
- Moviarty, N.M. 87035

6,13, 18, 19 and 22 '  MORIARTY CIVIC CENTER: 202

' - Broadway Ave., Moriarty, N.M. 87035
7,14and15 | MCINTOSH FIRE STATION: 757 Salt

: - Mission Trail, Mclntosh, N.ML 87032

s o " WILLARD COMMUMNITY CENTER 520
' - N. Becker Ave., Willard, N.JM. 87063

9and 10 © DR.SAUL COMMUINITY CENTER: 111 N.:
. Roosevelt, Mountainair, N.M. 87036

. 7 ENCINO COMMUNITY CENTER: 527
A North Main Street, Encino, N.M. 88321

Page 2 of 4



@ DURANFIRE STATION: 19 Vidal St.,
- Duran, N.M. 88319

Absentes/Early Voting | TORRANCE COUNTY ADMIN. OFFICES:
| 205 9% ST, Estancia, N. M. 87016 f

Alternate Early Voting Site . MORIARTY CIVIC CENTER: 2028,
- Broadway Ave, Moriarty, N. M. 87035 l

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners
designates the County Board of Registration to serve as the County Canvassing Board for
the county for any Statewide or Special Election conducted within the county in calendar
years 2022 and 2023.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners
hereby appoints the following five voters, who meet the qualifications of Subsection B of
NMSA 1978, Section 1-4-34 (2019) to serve as the Board of Registration for the county
from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023:

Carolann McNeil

Roberta Chavez

Senaida Chavez-Anaya

Shanon Torok {alternate)

Mary Theresa Otero (alternate)

Page 3 of 4



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this day of , 2021.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:

Ryan Schwebach, Chair

Kevin McCall, Member

LeRoy Candelaria, Member

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Yvonne Otero, County Clerk John Butrik, County Attorney

SEAL

Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item
No. 11-B



APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY:

County Attorney, John Butrick

ATTEST:

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:

Yvonne Otero, Torrance County Clerk

Date:

(seal)

Ryan Schwebach, Chairman

Kevin McCall, Member

LeRoy Candelaria, Member



Z 4—3&}-

sjoulnald bunoy pesodolid

] -
s
pA |
o
s
4 =
o |
zzd
(Wreq o |
oz
cER
6.
s L
AN |
o] - |
siC]
4% -
I |
rA N |
(AN

o/

1ORLSIa




recinct 6 was split along Heritage
A111), Paseo Poniete {Eastern),

‘Martinez Rd, and Camino Oriente.
orthwestern portion of Precinct 6
ecome Precinct 22.




7T PUPDSLd 8wiodaq
9 10UIDa.d JO UoIICd UIDISoMULIoU

_"9lUBLI( CLHWED PUE ‘PY Zoule]
{uioiseg) eyspuod 0osed (ITTVE & -

E AN

ageniay Suoje ujds SeMm g 1oUPSId




Agenda Item
No. 12-A



Torrance County Board of Commissioners

H Department: Purchasing
Meetlng 6/23/2021 Prepared By: Noah J. Sedillo
Item 12A Reviewed By: Janice Y. Barela

Title: Motion to approve contract between Torrance County and
Gilbert A. Ortiz as Teen Court Coordinator/Prevention Specialist.

Action:
Motion to approve.

Summary: On April 23, 2021, Torrance County published a Request
for Proposal to solicit for a Teen Court Coordinator / Prevention
Specialist since the current contract will expire on June 30, 2021. In
order to continue the service provided through the Torrance County
Teen Court Program to allow youth offenders to be held accountable for
their actions, while providing sanctions that will not create a criminal
record, but allow youth offenders to experience an informal judicial
process. The function of the Teen Court Coordinator is to facilitate and
provide this informal remedy.

Responsibilities of the Prevention Specialist component include school-
based substance abuse prevention activities and prevention education for
the community at large.

The Finance and Purchasing office received one responsive proposal
from Gilbert A. Ortiz. After a full committee review, the evaluation
committee recommends the contract for award to Gilbert A. Ortiz as the
Teen Court Coordinator / Prevention Specialist for FY 2022 —2025.

Significant Issues: None
Financial: No impact on budget.

Staff Recommendation: Approval.



TORRANCE COUNTY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

TEEN COURT COORDINATOR/PREVENTION SPECIALIST
RFP TC-FY21-02

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between Torrance County,
New Mexico (hereinafter referred to as the “County”), and Gilbert A. Ortiz
(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”).

WHEREAS, the County is in need of professional services to conduct the
coordination and administration of its Teen Court program and Prevention Specialist
services related to drug and alcohol prevention in underage individuals; and

WHEREAS, Contractor is qualified to provide such services; and

WHEREAS, the County desires to engage Contractor to render certain services
in connection therewith, and Contractor is willing to provide such services;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual obligations
herein, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows:

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES.

Contractor shall perform all services as requested by the County, including, but
not limited to, the following services (hereinafter the “Services”) in a
satisfactory and proper manner as determined by the County:

a. Provide coordination, evaluation — including impact and outcome,
review and refinement of the existing Torrance County Teen Court
Program;



Network with other such programs in New Mexico and maintain status
as a “member in good standing” of the New Mexico Teen Court
Association (NMTCA). This will include attendance at NMTCA trainings
and quarterly meetings;

Recruit and train adults to serve as guest judges and youth to serve as
volunteer jurors; receive and screen referrals to the program; make
initial contact with youth and parents or guardians to schedule initial
interview; attend all Teen Court sessions; prepare or assist in the
preparation of Teen Court forms; prioritize cases; assign cases specific
times and locations; assign past defendants to cases; coordinate and
supervise all trials, which may be conducted outside of traditional work
hours (evenings and weekends);

Become an active participant of the Estancia Valley Youth and Family
Council (formerly known as the Tri-County Juvenile Justice Board),
attending a minimum of six meetings per year.

Become an active participant of the Partnership for a Healthy Torrance
Community/Substance Abuse Prevention Core Team, attending a
minimum of six meetings per year. '
Network with and maintain open communication with potential
referral agencies, including but not limited to Juvenile Parole and
Probation, Estancia Valley Youth and Family Council, law enforcement
agencies, courts, and school administrators, and seek input from
agencies toward improvement of the program; |

Publicly promote the Torrance County Teen Court Program and
disseminate a variety of prevention information, prepare prevention
and outreach materials for health fairs and other related events,
participate in community health and safety fairs throughout the year,
including the Annual Torrance County Suicide Awareness/Prevention 5k
Walk/Run, the Torrance County Health Fair, and other community
events as they become advertised. ’

Provide targeted drug and alcohol prevention to youth who are
referred to Teen Court for substance-related offenses. This prevention
may be in the form of evidence-based curricula, general prevention
education, or speakers;

Submit required reports to the Torrance County DWI Program
Coordinator by quarterly deadlines and provide oral reports to the
Torrance County DWI Planning Council, and other agencies as
requested;

Conduct evaluation of alcohol and substance abuse prevention efforts
to determine the effectiveness of such efforts as they pertain to teen



court youth. This will be conducted by the development and use of
pre- and post-tests.

k. Oversee and direct the administering of drug and alcohol tests of teen
court clients who are sentenced to same for alcohol- and/or drug-
related offenses. Positive drug test results will be reported to the
Torrance County DWI Prevention Program Coordinator, referring
agency and parent(s).

I Provide a minimum of three Alive@25 driver improvement classes.

2. TERM.
Services of Contractor shall commence on July 1, 2021 and shall be undertaken
and completed in such sequences as to assure their expeditious completion
considering the purposes of this Agreement, provided; however, that the initial
term hereof ends on June 30, 2022. The contract will automatically renew on
an annual basis, for up to three (3) additional, one (1) year terms unless
terminated as provided by the contract or law. In accordance with Section 13-
1-150 NMSA 1978, no term for a professional services contract, including |
extensions and renewals, shall exceed four (4) years, except as set forth in
Section 13-1-150 NMSA 1978. This procurement will result in a single source
award.

3. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT.

For performing the Services specified in Section 1 of this Agreement, the
County agrees to pay Contractor on a monthly basis the sum of $22.00/hour,
inclusive of all salary, supplies, mileage/per-diem, telephone allowance, and
administrative costs, plus applicable New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax.
Compensation will be disbursed as follows: Contractor will provide a detailed
invoice describing services provided and will be compensated at the rate of
$22.00/hour, plus New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax, following the end of the
month. Total amount of compensation, including gross receipts tax, shall not
exceed $43,000.00.

Such amount shall be payable monthly upon the submission and approval of
an invoice for Teen Court Coordinator/Prevention Specialist Services.
Payments to Contractor shall be made as determined by the budgetary and
fiscal guidelines by the County. The County will send payment within 45 days
to the County’s receipt of the invoice to:

| Contractor: Gilbert A. Ortiz
Address: 45 Robert Drive
City, State, Zip: Estancia, NM 87016



THE FINAL INVOICE MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE TORRANCE COUNTY DWI
PREVENTION PROGRAM NO LATER THAN JUNE 15, 2022. INVOICES RECEIVED
AFTER SUCH DATE WILL NOT BE PAID.

4. TERMINATION.

a.

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part, in writing, by
either party in the event of substantial failure by the other party to
fulfill its obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the
terminating party, provided that no less than fifteen (15) calendar days’
written notice (delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested) of
intent to terminate, and an opportunity for consultation with the
terminating party prior to termination.

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part in writing by
either party for its convenience, provided that the other party is given
1) not less than thirty (30) calendar days written notice (delivered by
certified mail, return receipt requested) of intent to terminate, and (2)
an opportunity for consultation with the terminating party prior to
termination. -

If termination for default is instituted by the County, an equitable
adjustment in the price provided for in this Agreement may be made,
but (1) no amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on
unperformed services for other work, and (2) any payment due to the
Contractor at the time of termination may be adjusted to cover any
additional costs to the County because of the Contractor’s default.
Upon termination, Contractor will be paid a reasonable amount for
services rendered and expenses incurred prior to the termination, in
addition to termination settlement costs reasonably incurred by the
Contractor relating to commitments which have become firm prior to
the termination.

Upon receipt of a termination action under Paragraph (a) or (b) above,
the Contractor shall 1) promptly discontinue all affected work (unless
the notice directs otherwise) and 2) deliver or otherwise make
available to the County all data, reports, and such other information
and materials as may have been accumulated by the Contractor in
performing its contract, whether completed or in process.

Upon termination under Paragraphs (a) or (b) above, the County may
take over the work and may award another party a contract to
complete the work under this Agreement.

If after termination for failure of the Contractor to fulfill contractual
obligations, it is determined that the Contractor had not failed to fulfill



contractual obligations, the termination shall be deemed to have been
for the convenience of the County. In such an event, adjustment of the
agreement price shall be made as provided in Paragraph © of this
clause.

5. AUDIT ACCESS TO RECORDS.

a. The Contractor shall maintain books, records, documents and other
evidence directly pertinent to performance of County funded work
under this contract in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices consistently applied. The Contractor shall also maintain the
financial information and data used in the preparation or support of
any cost submission. The County or any of its authorized
representatives shall have access to all such books, records, documents
and other evidence for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying
during normal business hours both before and after payment, the
Contractor will provide proper facilities for such access and inspection.

b. Audits conducted under this provision shall be in accordance with
generally accepted audition standards, and with established
procedures and guidelines of the reviewing or audit agency or agencies.

6. RELEASE ON FINAL PAYMENT.

The Contractor, upon final payment of the amounts due and under this
Agreement, releases the County, its officers arid employees from all liabilities,
claims, and obligation whatsoever arising from or under this Agreement. The
Contractor agrees not to purport to bind the County to any obligation not
assumed in this Agreement by the County, unless the Contractor has express
‘written authority to do so, and then only within the strict limits of that
authority. Payments on this Agreement shall not foreclose the County’s rlght
to recover excessive or illegal payments.

7. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Any information that the Contractor receives or develops in the performance
of this Agreement shall be kept confidential and the Contractor shall not make
such information availablé to any individual or organization without the
County’s prior written approval.



8. PRODUCT OF SERVICE.

All documents that the Contractor develops or acquires under this Agreement,
shall become the County’s property and shall be delivered if so requested to
the County no later than the final termination of this Agreement.

9. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

The Contractor warrants that it presently has no‘interest, and shall not acquire
any interest, directly or indirectly, that would conflict in any manner or degree
with the performance of services required under this Agreement. When and if
such provisions become applicable, the Contractor shall promptly provide a
written disclosure to the County Manager.

10. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement shall not be altered, changed or amended except by an
instrument in writing executed by the parties. No amendment shall be
effective or binding until approved by the Torrance County Board of
Commissioners.

11. MERGER.

This Agreement incorporates all of the agreements, covenants, and
understandings between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter
hereof, and all such agreements, covenants and understandings have been
merged into this written Agreement. No prior agreement or understanding,
verbally or otherwise, of the parties or of their agents shall be valid or
enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement. '

12, WAIVER.

No waiver of any breach of this Agreement or any of the terms or conditions
thereof shall be held to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach, nor
shall any waiver be valid or binding unless the same shall be in writing and
signed by the party alleged to have granted the waiver.

13. APPROPRIATIONS.

This Agreement’s terms, including the initial and any extended terms, are
contingent upon the County making sufficient appropriations and
authorization for the performance of this Agreement. If the County does not
make sufficient appropriations and authorizations, this Agreement shall,
notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 1 and 2, above, terminate
immediately upon the County giving written notice to the Contractor.



14.

15.

16.

17.

The County’s decision whether sufficient appropriations are available shall be
accepted by the contractor and shall be final.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY COMPLIANCE.

The Contractor agrees to abide by all Federal and State laws and rules and
regulations, and executive orders of the President of the United States and the
Governor of the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment
opportunity, to the extent they pertain to this Agreement. In accordance with
all such laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of the President
of the United States and the Governor of the State of New Mexico, the
Contractor agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall, on the
grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual preference, age or handicap,
be excluded from employment with or participation in, be denied the benefits
of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under, any program or activity
performed under this Agreement. If the Contractor is found to be not in
compliance with these requirements to the extent they pertain to this
Agreement, during the life of this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to take

-appropriate steps to correct these deficiencies.

NOTICE.

The Procurement Code, Sections 13-1-28 through 13-1-199 NMSA 1978,
imposes civil and criminal penalties for its violation. In addition, the New
Mexico criminal statutes impose felony penalties for illegal bribes, gratuities,
and kickbacks.

INDEMNITY.

The Contractor will indemnify and hold harmless the County, including
payment of costs and attorney fees, against all claims, suits, liability or
damages which may be brought, found or levied against the County as a result
or arising out of the services and actions of the Contractor under this
Agreement, provided that this indemnity will not apply to the County’s gross
negligence or intentional torts. S

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

The Contractor, in the performance of this contract, is an independent
contractor, and the County shall have no obligations to Contractor as an
employer other than as set forth in this contract.



18.

COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENCY FEES. _

The Contractor assures that no person or selling agency has been employed or
retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or

" understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee

19.

20.

except bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling
agencies maintained by the Contractor for the purpose of securing business.
For breach or violation of this assurance, the County shall have the right to
annul this Agreement without liability or, at its discretion, to deduct from the
contract price or consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such
commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee.

THIRD PARTIES.

Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer any rights,
remedies, claims, or interests upon a person not a party to this Agreement.

LIABILITY AND INSURANCE.

Contractor shall provide professional liability insurance for himself or any
employees that may assist in the performance of services pursuant to this
Agreement, in accordance with the provisions of the New Mexico Tort Claims

- Act, Section 41-4-1 et seq., NMSA 1978, as amended. Contractor shall provide

21.

22,

23.

a certificate of insurance to the County immediately upon execution of this
Agreement. The liability of Contractor will be subject in all cases to the
immunities and limitations of the Tort Claims Act.

GOVERNING LAWS.

This Agreement will be construed, interpreted, governed and enforced in
accordance with the statues, judicial decisions, and other laws of the State of
New Mexico.

NON-ASSIGNABILITY.

This Agreement will not be assigned by either party nor will the duties imposed
upon either party by this Agreement be delegated, subcontracted, or
transferred by either party, in whole or in part, without the prior written
consent of the other party.

SEVERABILITY.

The invalidity of unenforceability of any term or provision of this Agreement
will in no way affect the validity or enforceability of any other term or
provision to the extent permitted by law.



24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement represents the entire understanding between the parties and
supersedes any prior agreements or understandings with respect to the
subject matter of this Agreement.

25. WAIVER OF BREACH.

The waiver by either party of a breach or violation of any provision of this
Agreement will not operate as or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent
breach of this Agreement.

26. COOPERATION AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION.

The parties agree that, to the extent compatible with the separate and
independent management of each, they will maintain effective liaison and
close cooperation. If a dispute arises related to the obligations or performance
of either party under this Agreement, representatives of the parties will meet
in good faith to resolve the dispute.

27. BINDING EFFECT.

This Agreement is binding upon, and inures to the befit of, the parties to this
Agreement and their respective successors and assigns.

28. NOTICES.

. Ahy notice that will be given in accordance with this Agreement, will be
deemed appropriate when sent by certified mail to the following:

Torrance County
Attn: Janice Y. Barela
P.O.Box 48

Estancia, NM 87016

and

Contractor: Gilbert A. Ortiz
Address: 45 Robert Drive
City, State, Zip: Estanci_a, NM 87016

29. APPROVAL REQUIRED.

This Agreement shall not become effective until signed by both parties.

- WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement
effective July 1, 2020.



By:

By:

By:

Date:

Contractor

_Printed Name: Gilbert A. Ortiz

Address: 45 Robert Drive, Estancia, NM 87016

Date:

Torrance County Manager
Printed Name: Janice Y. Barela

Address: 205 S Ninth Street, Estancia, NM 87016

Date:

Torrance County Purchasing Agent
Printed Name: Noah J. Sedillo

Address: 205 S Ninth Street, Estancia, NM 87016 -



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

APPROVED, ADOPTED AND PASSED on this 23" day of June, 2021.

Ryan Schwebach
Chairman, District IT

Kevin McCall
Commissioner, District I

LeRoy Candelaria
Commissioner, District III

Approved as to form only:

John M. Butrick
County Attorney

Attest:

Y vonne Otero
Torrance County Clerk



Attachment 1 — Statement of Work

Torrance County

- Teen Court Coordinator/Prevention Specialist

The County desires to enter into a contractual relationship with a Teen Court
Coordinator/Prevention Specialist to provide services including but not limited to the
following:

1.

10.

11.

Provide coordination, evaluation — including impact and outcome, review and
refinement of the existing Torrance County Teen Court Program; and

Network with other Teen Court/Peer Court programs in New Mexico; and

Maintain status as a “member in good standing” of the New Mexico Teen Court
Association (NMTCA). This will include attendance at NMTCA trainings and
quarterly meetings. Overnight travel may be required; and

Recruit and train adult volunteers to serve as guest judges, as well as youth to
serve as volunteer jurors; receive and screen referrals to the program; make
initial contact with youth and parents or guardian to schedule initial interview;
attend and coordinate all Teen Court sessions; prepare or assist in the
preparation of Teen Court forms; prioritize cases; assign cases specific times
and locations; assign past defendants to serve as jurors on cases; coordinate and
supervise all hearings, which may be conducted outside of traditional work
hours; and

Actively participate in the Estancia Valley Youth and Family Council, formerly
known as the Tri-County Juvenile Justice Board; and

Provide “Alive at 25” classes for those teens whose sentences require driver
improvement classes; and

Research and utilize sanction options, to include community service, Boys
Council and Girls Circle, and other programs implemented by the Estancia
Valley Youth and Family Council where appropriate; and

Network with local non-profit organizations and government agencies to
coordinate community service opportunities for teen court defendants; and

When appropriate, supervise defendants in community service projects; and

Conduct random drug tests when such tests are included in sanctions for teen
court defendants; and

Actively participate in the Torrance County DWI Planning Council; and



12. Actively participate in the Partnership for a Healthy Torrance Community, the
County’s health council; and

13. Network with potential referral agencies, including, but not limited to: Juvenile
Parole and Probation, Estancia Valley Youth and Family Council; courts, law
-enforcement, and school administrators. Contractor will maintain open
communication with all agencies and will seek input toward improvement of
the program; and

14, Publicly promote the program by distributing teen court brochures, visiting with
potential referral agencies, attending group meetings, participating in
community events, and maintaining a social media presence; and

15. Attend trainings on substance abuse prevention; and

16. Provide substance abuse prevention education té teen court participants; and
17. Provide substance abuse prevention education in the community; and

18. Participate in alternative activities in the community; and

19. Where appropriate, conduct pre- and post-testing for evidence-based éurriculum
delivery; and

20. Obtain credentials of Certified Prevention Intern within two years of the
execution of contract; and

21. Work with the Torrance County DWI Prevention Program Coordinator and
program evaluator to establish and update a prevention plan; and

22. Maintain database information, including personal, demographic, and tracking
information of all teen court defendants; and

23. Maintain a log of all court documentation, including dockets detailing court
dates and hearings; and '

24. Submit written quarterly reports for the Torrance County DWI Prevention
Program Coordinator; and

25. Provide oral reports at the quarterly meetings of the Torrance County DWI
Planning Council. '






TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

TORRANCE COUNTY
STATE OF NEW MEXICO

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)

Teen Court Coordinator/
Prevention Specialist

RFP TC-FY21-02

TORRANCE COUNTY PURCHASING
205 S Ninth Street
P.O. Box 48
Estancia, NM 87016

April 23, 2021



TC-I'Y21-02 // April 23, 2021

Table of Contents
L INTRODUCTION ...... resssesesaitasantonens , TR 5
A. PURPOSE OF THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS ..ottt srssssns st ssesssssresesrasessssssssnens 5
B. SUMMARY SCOPE OF WORK ........eivcvirirteeiriiririeenisiesisiinsiessesisss st essssssssssssesssssstesassessssesesssassossssssssessosessos 5
C. SCOPE OF PROCUREMENT ....oiuvtirreiirieriieniieinriisiiissisisiesieseesesessessstesessessssessssessesassesssssssssssssssssssresssrsnessone 5
D. PROCUREMENT OFFICER .......coiiiiniiiiii s st st senossssosonssssnses 5
E. DEFINITION OF TERMINOLOGY ...ccoivrerietieniiesisieisteisieieseeseeesessetssesessessesesssrsssesessessosessssssarssssseressssensssene 6
F. RESIDENT/VETERAN BUSINESS PREFERENCE .......ccccoeietitivirireririserireriseerinssersessnesesssesssssssssserersessessssssens 8
G. PROCUREMENT LIBRARY .....ccoviiiiirinnincciininiirsveeneseesesesresressesiennes Error! Bookmark not defined.
II. CONDITIONS GOVERNING THE PROCUREMENT .... reesen e e b e s 9
A, SEQUENCEOEFEVENTS ....ciciniiiiiiiiiinnrennisiniininisrs s s st st sssseseesessesesessssesesesassssssssesasossssssssssns e
B. EXPLANATION OF EVENTS .....ooioroitiiriniiniatinniieesiinevsssses s sesss e e besessessenssnesessenssens stssssssnesesseseone 9
Lo ISSUC REP....ooviviiiiiiiiiieieices ittt sttt e b ettt eb e bttt ebe e eb e seate b et eb et s eta s e et et et e b et ete b er s es et etnsre e 9
2. Return of “Acknowledgment of Receipt” Form for Distribution List..........ccccvivivironininnieinioisiren e 9
3. Deadline to submit additional WrIt{en GUESHIONS ...........c.ceveeeveeeieeeieeeeeeie e ee e sttt 10
- 4. Response to written questions/REFP Amendments ................c........... et et e et ettt sttt e be et e 10
5. SUDMISSION O PPOPOSAL ....ovcviiiiiriieiiiecis it ciese et e ettt st sttt abe st sts b st s srt st st s n et st st st st ansa e reeaeens 10
6. Proposal EValuGlion .............cveiiiecncnncninnen SO PSP TRV PORROTON 12
7. Interview of FinaliSts .......cccoecivviineirniniveiniainn Cheh b r et eh et e b ert oAt et e tebe et b teeta et b te e be e b e sb b e ereerereeresbeniene 11
8. CORIPACE AWAF ...c.vvvvirioirieiiiieeiisisiee ettt sttt e ———— 11
9. Protest DEAALING ...........ccoocoovcvcirriiiiiiiiises it Ceee ettt st ettt et ettt eas ettt et b e s ee ettt et et ere s 11
C. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS .......cooviriririnirrienisssasiesessssssesssisssesesssses e ssostosssssssassosessssesessasssssessnsssassesessnsson 12
1. Acceptance of Conditions GOVErning the PYOCUFEMERL ..............cccuvieererieininsnsssesssissssssssssssssnscasaes s 12
2. INCUFFIAG COStoivviviiiiiiiisirireireisieaieriie s cte e sss e ste st sre e teneenes et 12
3. Prime Contractor RESPORSIDILILY ........coovvviviiriviiiiiiisiisieretee sttt etiss sttt be ettt sttt 12
B SUDCORIFACIOFS ...ttt sttt esfae ettt ettt a e ee s b b et et e b b et et as v b ettt a et sas e b e st abene 12
5. AMENACA PFOPOSAIS ......ccoovevviiriniecisicsice ettt sttt ea e b ettt a e e bt sttt es e st e bttt 13
6. Offeror’s Rights to Withdraw Proposal...........ccccceeen... bbb ek bbbttt b et s e ane 13
7. ProOpoSal Offer FIFmM .....c.cccovniiinioiiiiisinn ettt ettt teas et ate ettt st as e te b et es b s tons 13
8. Disclosure 0f PropoSal COMIENLS ..............ccovevevvvivriririnmiiniiiosieiisisessasessssssssessssssessossssssesssensessonsnnernsiens 1.3
9. NO OBIIGOLION ..ottt ev et e eb ot o te st tes e st e ss st s s et e st s ss b e s tessstn st te sttt s ts st aneen et ane e 14
10. TerMuRGLION......v..coeiviiecrieisitiitrcniet st ettt ettt et e s b e r e berbaeresaeeaens s 14
11, SUFFICIENE ADPFOPYIGLION. c..covvvsevveeeiviiivisssieesvee e e ettt eeas ettt ee ettt et st a et e et seeeeesessaseesanaresens 14
12, LeGOL REVIEW.....ccocvcitviieiiiirecnieisseetea et er e sttt et e ettt ee st ettt eas et erese et ese et et sbesssfretet b e s esee st rene 14
13, GOVEFRING LAW ...ttt ettt ettt sttt sts st st v 14
14 BASIS fOF PPOPOSAL ......covcvrirsieiirieriiiirisiesse ittt ettt ettt as st bttt ese st ars s st s sttt en e ete e 14
15. Contract Terms and CORMILIONS .........ccviviveeiriceieriisreee e ese sttt ese st et re bt tstsssse e 14
16. Offeror’s Terms ANA CORGIIONS .............o.vcoeveeoeoreeereoseeoseosessoosessesseaossssessaesssses s sresessssse e esenes 15
17. CONEFACE DEVIQLIONS ..ottt ettt r e en s en st et e eren e eneeres 15
18, Offeror QUAIIAICATIONS. .......covcvvierieeiiieseieie sttt e et ettt ettt s b et e sttt e e st sts s st et st seereenan s 15
19. Right to Waive Minor Irregularities ........ et PO PPPUPPRRPPURN 15
20. Change in CONtractOr REPFESERIALIVES ..........ccccciveveeeirieeecieieseseiesreeses ettt e sttt rere e 15
210 NOBICE ..ottt st a et s e be s 1 e e bt R4 etseb e Rs e b e Rt et b e he b e et et er et st reer et enes 16
22, COURLY RIGRES ..ottt ettt es et b e sttt s et ea s ee et sttt ettt et r st e st e eana s st b one 16
23, OWHEFSHID Of PPODOSAIS......ocovviviiivivieiicieiieciciceee ettt evs sttt ettt s adeas st 16
24. Ambiguity, Inconsistency or ErrorS iR RFP.........c.cc.cooeviiovvioioirsissssessesons eete et e e et are e saebeens 16
25, COMPELILION. o.....covoiriiieireireirecce ettt st s sttt et st te st et s abe st etsesetasaeeb s sessa et o bsseerar e steseas 16
26. Use by Other GOVErNMENE ERLIEIES ..........cocovveeriieiiesisiiriseieessseese st asese ettt sessesessesssasessssssssssssssssasonas 16
27, CORPIARTEIALILY. ...ttt ettt sttt b e a e st bbb et b st esess s e st st et e s et e b es st esssasores 16



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

28. Electronic Mail Address REGUIPEd............coviviivivieiiiiivinnisoiiieseeresesist sttt ses s ssn s 17

29. Use of Electronic Versions Of thiS REFP .........ccccvvciciuiiieoriiesiieseeeisseresisseseses st st sonenenesnonns 17

III. RESPONSE FORMAT AND ORGANIZATION........0ee.. ersasasaese et Rt e sasa BRSSO OISR E SRS RSSO R RO RSO RS 18
A, NUMBER OF RESPONSES ......cocciiniiiiireriiieimiiisieiniiireisinsisesesesssisssssssessssssssssesssissssssssssssessssss ssosssees 18

B. NUMBER OF COPIES.......cocconstiiiiiinerimmiiinsennssnsisisissssssssssisins s 1 8

C. PROPOSAL FORMAT .......eoreveoeeeeeeesesnnsonssssssesessssasessesssssssssessssssssssssessessssssssssssssssssessssssssseessessssosnssss oo 18

1. Proposal Organization ...............cccuuuen, ST ettt 18

2. Letter Of TranSMItLALl FOFM c...covvvvvoiciiriniiiiis ittt st es ettt ettt sttt s ts sttt b s vt eneenanoen 19

3. Other SUPPOFUNG MOLEFIALS ........coocovveirivireieiiiitiesis ettt s e et et s st asen e s e erenenesrens 19

IV. SPECIFICATIONS. ccciviesisrssnssssisrssmersrsssssosssssrssassaresnsrssasssssassossssssassacs “ creresesnsnsasessasstassairesasses 20
A INFORMATION Lottt ittt st tassesbatestata st ese e saesaetasbesssssseessstsssssssessstesesesossessssonssnsseeonns 20

1. In-State Resident OF Veteran PreferenCe .........ccovviviviiiiiiieireisieseeeeeeeesensesieeesenseessenssessestssssssessessaesnas 20

2. ReSpOonse t0 REGQUIFEIMENLS ...ttt bbbttt seas et bttt et sttt 20

B. MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS ......ccesovovvrrvressinneresisnnssssssisssssesosseeeosesesossseessnssessssssssssssessssesssssssgensns 20

1. Letter of Transmittal FOTM (1) POTRES)......c.ccooiivviiiviiciiveciis ettt eeeese e resseae s seanessssereereeneses 20

2. Capability and Agreement 10 Perform (0 POINES) ..........oovvvveiieiestseeeeeieaneeernreseseesssssesnssssesesenens 20

3. Campaign Contribution Disclosure FOVm (00 POIBLS) ..........ccououvovveeerseeresessessesinsesssessesssosssssesssssssssssos 20

4. Conflict of Interest Affidavit (0 POIRES) .........cccooivveviverecrcererirsvesinsnns s 21

5. Tax Obligations (0 POIRLS).......c.ccocoevernvriieienreineereerionon, sttt es 21

6. AcCeSSIDILILY (100 POIRLS) ...covvoviviviiieieieiirieeisteretete sttt sttt est bt sent s b s ereesrenesetseneseaseesrenesennes 21

7. Cost ReSpONSE FOM (25 POIRES) .....ccovieiiieiiiniicic st vt sn s sr et sh bttt es e ae et ar e seanentseeresaeenene 221

8. ReSUME (100 POIRLS) .....ccovviviiriitrier ettt et b st es v bt b ettt bes st e st et e et sesesaneseas 22

9. Professional Writing Samples (100 POINES) ........cocoooeiirioiuroeneeeeeereeeeersetsiesessereaseeseseestssessssessstassessssens 22

C. DESIRABLE REQUIREMENTS........ccocitiiiiiiiintienieneeienreissensssrertsbesessesrissssneressassssessssosssensssessensnessonesseasones 22

1. Specific Experience (450 TOLL POIRLS)...............cccovoveveeoseereeeereseeeeeseeresoeesesesses s s ess s s e sessessss s s 22

20 References (100 POIRLS) ........cccocovmiviiiiriiieieiesiie sttt sttt sttt et s et st st ese et rearenenseesas 23

3. Panel INterview (125 POIRLS) ......c.cccuurviviinineeieiitase ettt st sss s es s esess st st st s et seeseanennasasanas 23
V.EVALUATION ..c.coiciinnnnessssnssisnssisessssissssissensssssisssssssnisassssessasssnssnerasassassesaeses . w24
A, EVALUATION POINT SUMMARY ....coovrervmrnriinnerenree e ettt st n et et e bete s 24

B. EVALUATION FACTORS: MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS ........oroveeeeereeeressesssseesssssssssosssssessssssssessoes 25

1. Letter of Transmittal FOFM (0 POIRLS).........ccceoiveiieeiiieeeiieiist ettt sttt e s e aes s e 25

2. Capability and Agreement t0 Perform (0 POINLS) ...........ccccoovvvoeieeiieiieisersonenersesensenseessereneresssseresenssens 25

3. Campaign Contribution Disclosure FOrm (0 POIRES) .............cociviveivieiiiiiesieiseeinsstssssesssenerenanenen. e 25

4. Conflict of Interest Affidavit (0 POIRLS) ........co.coeovoiioiiviiioieceeiieesees et an st sss et nos e 25

5. Tax ODIZALIONRS (0 POINES).....ooveveivcrieriinirii et cest ettt es s sttt e vt eb b e st es st st are e e e arennnestans 25

6. Accessibility (100 POIRES) .......cceovcvriiiniernnans b ettt h et bt E Rttt R et bbbttt en b as bt 25

7. Cost Response Form (25 POINLS) .....c.cvevvvvivviriinirinnian b bttt e st ekttt et et eretsabese s 25

8. ReSUME (100 POINLS) ...ocvvvveirisieeiieienciecteistsesete vttt etens st s ass et sbee st e nnese s e e ennnnaenns e 25

9. Professional Writing Sample (100 POIRLS)........c...cccovevieiiiiiiisisieie ettt seseseee s esse e sinseresnsnneees 26

C. EVALUATION FACTORS: DESIRABLE REQUIREMENTS .....ccoveviviniiritiiirenieteniesesisssiorerereiseseeressesssens 26

1. Specific Experience (450 TOA] POIRLS) ..........cccccooiviriviuiniiirinisisnsisissisiseisssessseesssssesssssssssssssesesssssesesons 26

2. References (100 POIRIS) .......ccccovcriiirieniiersit sttt sttt es et te st te st et ene st eseeeeeensesenrereeneatsaesesares 27

3. Panel INLerview (125 POINES) ......c.oococecerirniiioiiiceeite it i et es sttt st s b sse st st b sttt es et er e eretesone 27

D. EVALUATION PROCESS .....coiiiiiitiieniiiirineriseninnnsie s s iesess st sassens st st esssensssssassssssssssssssssarsseseassssssens 28
APPENDIX A coociitinrininnisnssessnmsimisessmessssinassmsissiorsssnisssesssssssssssssssssassassssessassasasses 29
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT FORM .......ocoviiviiiiienicrinicnvrcinirese s sressreressessessesisessessesssenesensns 29
APPENDIX B.ouuueerrceranrenmscsesnscsess e R RS RRS RS AR R BRGS0 30
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT .....ooootiiirtitse ittt ettt st srere s eresss st essestese e enenine 31
SCOPE OF WOLK 1ottt ettt re st b st es e st s sre s obsbobessssr et erorsaeneseenene 41



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

APPENDIX C ooivviirinminsnnsinissssnsismsiiiisassimsiisssssisssismssisssisisississsessonsssassensminesssssssssssssssssssmsasessasessssssssssasssse 444

COSTRESPONSE FORM .......ovvvveirvmmsinsisessissssssssssensesesssnsssessessssssssnnes e 444
APPENDIX D c.covvvrriiinnesersssssisesssssssssssnssssssssassssssssssssssssssssssessssessessssssssssssssssssnsssssessasssseseaseassessssssassassssesessssosessosss 45
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL FORM ......ocoveveeireeeeeeevesisetessssssessssassssssasessesasessssssssssssssssssssssssssossssssssesosesososssesas 45
APPENDIX E ..oovvvirevirersisissscssseissssssssestssssssesssssssssssssssssssessassossssosssssssssnssse v rererensrersssrasaser e bersreroRasersraes 47
CONFLICT OF INTEREST FORM ...eoovoeteeetete e eeeeteeeeeeeeessosessesassssssessssssosesesessssssssessssesssessssssssesssssssesosesssesens 47
APPENDIX F .uvvvreivrrorensessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssasssssssssssssssssssssasessssnsesssssssnsessssesssssesessssessssssssosenssssess 48
CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM .....ovovvioveseessiesseessesssesesessssssessssesssssssssosssssesssesess oo 48

[iv]



TC-I'Y21-02 // April 23, 2021

I. INTRODUCTION
A. PURPOSE OF THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

The County of Torrance, State of New Mexico, on behalf of the Torrance County Board of
County Commissioners, seeks sealed proposals from qualified parties to serve as the Teen Court
Coordinator/Prevention Specialist, hereinafter referred to as “Coordinator/Preventionist” for
Torrance County’s DWI Prevention Program.

B. SUMMARY SCOPE OF WORK

The scope of work consists of services provided by the Coordinator/Preventionist who will work
to coordinate and support the DWI Prevention Program. The Coordinator/Preventionist ensures
compliance with contractual requirements with the County of Torrance, herein after referred to
as “County.” The Coordinator/Preventionist will complete reports, collect and verify data, and
foster relationships within the community that will benefit at-risk youth and their families. The
Coordinator/Preventionist will work with the DWI Coordinator to provide substance abuse
prevention in the community and will be responsible for all aspects of the Teen Court Program.

- The full Scope of Work is included as part of the Professional Services Contract (see Appendix
B).

C. SCOPE OF PROCUREMENT

The scope of the procurement consists of providing services as the Coordinator/Preventionist to
support the County to provide services to at-risk youth and increase community awareness of the
dangers of underage drinking, substance misuse/abuse, and DWI. The duration of the contract
resulting from this RFP shall be from the date of award through June 30, 2022. The contract will
automatically renew on an annual basis, for up to three (3) additional, one (1) year terms unless
terminated as provided by the contract or law. In accordance with Section 13-1-150 NMSA
1978, no term for a professional services contract, including extensions and renewals, shall
exceed four (4) years, except as set forth in Section 13-1-150 NMSA 1978. This procurement
will result in a single source award. ‘

D. PROCUREMENT OFFICER

The County has designated a Procurement Officer who is responsible for this procurement and
whose name, address, and telephone number are listed below. Any inquiries or requests '
regarding this procurement should be submitted to the Procurement Officer in writing. Offerors
may contact ONLY the Procurement Officer regarding the procurement. Other County
employees do not have the authority to respond on behalf of the County.

5]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

Noah J. Sedillo
Torrance County Purchasing

Delivery Address (Including ' Mailing Address:
- proposal delivery): P.O. Box 48 // Bstancia, NM
205 S Ninth Street // Estancia, NM 87016
87016

Phone: (505) 544-4730
Fax: (505) 384-5294
E-mail: njsedillo@tcnm.us

NOTE: All deliveries via express carrier (INCLUDING PROPOSAL DELIVERY) should be
addressed to Noah J Sedillo’s Delivery Address, above.

E. DEFINITION OF TERMINOLOGY

This section contains definitions that are used throughout this procurement document, including
appropriate abbreviations.

“Board of County Commissioners” (also “BCC”) means the elected board in whom all powers of
the County are vested and who are responsible for the proper and efficient administration of
County government. -

"Close of Business" means 5:00 P.M. Mountain Standard Time (MST) or Mountain Daylight
- Time (MDT), whichever is in effect on the date specified.

"Contract" or “Agreement” means a written agreement for the procurement of items of tangible
personal property or services.

"Contractor" means a successful Offeror who enters into a binding contract.
"County" means the County of Torrance, State of New Mexico.

"Determination" means the written documentation of a decision of the Procurement Officer
including findings of fact required to support a decision. A determination becomes part of the
procurement file to which it pertains.

“Desirable" refers to the terms "may", "can", "should", "preferably" or "prefers” which identify a
desirable or discretionary item or factor. (As opposed to a “mandatory” item or factor.)

"Evaluation Committee" means a body appointed by County management to perform the
evaluation of Offeror proposals.

(6]



TC-I'Y21-02 // April 23, 2021

"Evaluation Committee Report" means a report prepared by the Procurement Officer and the
Evaluation Committee for submission to appropriate approval authorities for contract award that
contains all written determinations resulting from the conduct of a procurement requiring the
evaluation of competitive sealed proposals.

"Finalist" is defined as an Offeror who meets all the mandatory specifications of this Request for
Proposal and whose score on evaluation factors is sufficiently high to merit further consideration
by the Evaluation Committee.

"Mandatory" refers to the terms "must", "shall", "Will"; "is required" or "are required" which
identify a mandatory item or factor. (As opposed to a “desirable” item or factor.) Failure to meet
a mandatory item or factor may result in the rejection of the Offeror's proposal.

"Local public body" means every political subdivision of the State of New Mexico and the
agencies, instrumentalities and institutions thereof, including two-year post-secondary
educational institutions, school districts and local school boards and municipalities. "Offeror" is
any person, corporation, or partnersh1p who chooses to submit a proposal.

"Procurement Officer" means the person or designee authorized by the County to manage or
administer a procurement requiring the evaluation of competitive sealed proposals.

"Procuring agency of the County" means the department or other subdivision of the County of
Torrance that is requesting the procurement of services or items of tangible personal property.

"Purchase Order” or "PO" means the document which directs a contractor to deliver items of
tangible personal property or services pursuant to an existing, valid contract.

"Purchasing” means the County of Torrance Purchasing Office or the Torrance County
Purchasing Officer.

"Purchasing Agent" or "PA" means the Purchasing Office for the County of Torrance.

"Request for Proposals" or "REP" means all documents, including those attached or incorporated
by reference, used for soliciting proposals.

"Responsible Offeror" means an Offeror who submits a responsive proposal and who has
furnished required information and data to prove that their financial resources, production or
service facilities, personnel, service reputation and experience are adequate to make satisfactory
delivery of the services or items of tangible personal property called for in this proposal.

"Responsive Offer" or "Responsive Proposal" means an offer or proposal which conforms in all
material respects to the requirements set forth in the request for proposals. Material respects of a
request for proposals 1nclude but are not limited to, price, quality, quantity and delivery
requirements.

“Statement of Compliance” and “Statement of Concurrence” mean an express statement, by the
Offeror in their proposal that they agree with and agree to the stated requirement(s). Possible -

[7]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

examples of acceptable responses include “The [NAME HERE Company] agrees to comply with
this requirement.” and “The [NAME HERE Company| concurs with this requirement.”

F. RESIDENT/VETERAN BUSINESS PREFERENCE

1. Resident Business Preference

The New Mexico Procurement Code provides for preference for resident businesses and Contractors
under certain conditions. If applicable, the preference will be provided to those Offerors that have
provided a valid resident business preference certificate with their proposal, as required by 13-1-22
NMSA 1978.

In order for an Offeror to receive preference as a resident business, that Offeror must submit a copy
of their preference certificate with their proposal. The preference certificate must have been issued
by the New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department after January 1, 2012. Providing only a
preference number is not acceptable and will not qualify the Offeror for any preference.

For more information, reference Sections 13-1-21 and 13-1-22 of the New Mexico Procurement
Code. Preference applications are available for download at:

Resident Business:

http://www.tax.newmexico.gov/Businesses/in-state-veteran-preference-certification.aspx

Resident Veterans Preference

Effective July 1, 2012, but not after June 30, 2022, certain preferences are available to New Mexico
veteran-owned businesses. Please see Section V.D.4 for more information and especially note
Appendix F.

G. PROCUREMENT LIBRARY

The Procurement Library consists of the following documents which may be accessed by their
associated Internet links:

- New Mexico Procurement Code

https://laws.nmonesource.com/w/nmos/Chapter-13-NMSA.-

1978#!fragment//BQCwhgziBcwMY gK4DsDWszIQewE4BUBTADwBdoByCgSeBplt TCIBFRO3
ATOotojlzZY ANKIDCSNNACEyPoTC4EbDtypyFCAMpSSAIW4AIAKIAZIwDUAggDIRR2gTAA

aKWxxqglIA

- Torrance County Procurement Policy
http://www.torrancecountynm.org/uploads/Downloads/Finance%20Department/2019-
38%20Purchasing%20Policy.pdf

8]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23,2021

II. CONDITIONS GOVERNING THE PROCUREMENT

This section of the RFP contains the schedule for the procurement, describes the major
procurement events and contains the general requirements governing the procurement.

A. SEQUENCE OF EVENTS

The Procurement Officer will make every effort to adhere to the following schedule:

ACTION

DATE

1. Issue RFP

Friday, 4/23/2021

2. Return of “Acknowledgment of
Receipt” Form for Distribution List

Thursday, 5/6/2021

| 5:00 pm MDT

3. Deadline to Submit Additional

Tuesday, 5/11/2021

Questions 5:00 pm MDT
4. Response to Written Questions/ Thursday, 5/13/2021
RFP Amendments 5:00 pm MDT
5. Submission of Propesal Thursday, 5/27/2021
2:00 pm MDT

6. Proposal Evaluation

Tuesday, 6/1/2021

7. Interview of Finalist(s)

Tuesday, 6/8/2021

8. Contract Award*

Wednesday, 6/23/2021

9. Protest Deadline

Thursday, 7/8/2021

*Contract award is subject to approval of the Board of County Commissioners or Designee.

B. EXPLANATION OF EVENTS

The following paragraphs further detail the activities listed in the sequence of events shown in

Section II, Paragraph A.

1. Issue RFP

This RFP is being issued by the Torrance County Purchasing Officer on behalf of the
County of Torrance and the Torrance County Board of County Commissioners.

2. Return of “Acknowledgment of Receipt” Form for Distribution List

Potential Offerors should hand deliver or return by facsimile or e-mail or registered or
certified mail the “Acknowledgement of Receipt” form that accompanies this document
(See Appendix A) to have their organization placed on the procurement distribution list.

[9]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

The form should be signed by an authorized representative of the organization, dated and
returned by 5:00 PM MDT on the date indicated in Section II.A (Sequence of Events),
above.

The procurement distribution list will be used to notify those that submitted the form of
any written responses to questions and any RFP amendments. Failure to return this form
shall constitute a presumption of receipt and rejection of the RFP, and the potential
Offeror's organization name shall not appear on the distribution list.

3. Deadline to submit additional written questions

Potential Offerors may submit additional written questions as to the intent or clarity of
this RFP until 5:00 PM MDT on the date indicated in Section II.A (Sequence of Events),
above. All written questions must be sent by e-mail to the Procurement Officer (See
Section I, Paragraph D.)

4. Response to written questions/RFP Amendments

Written responses to written questions and any RFP amendments will be posted to the
Torrance County Purchasing Office web site (Torrancecountynm.org, via the “Contact
Us” tab under the “RFB & RFP” tab). Notification of such posting shall be provided to
all potential Offerors that have returned the “Acknowledgement of Receipt” Form found
at Appendix A. A new “Acknowledgement of Receipt” Form will accompany the posted
distribution package. The form should be signed by the Offeror's representative, dated,
and hand-delivered or returned by facsimile or e-mail or by registered or certified mail by
the date indicated thereon. Failure to return this form shall constitute a presumption of
receipt and withdrawal from the procurement process.

5. Submission of Proposal

OFFEROR PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED FOR REVIEW AND EVALUATION
BY THE PROCUREMENT OFFICER OR DESIGNEE NO LATER THAN 2:00 PM
MDT ON THE DATE INDICATED IN SECTION ILA (SEQUENCE OF EVENTS),
ABOVE. PROPOSALS RECEIVED AFTER THIS DEADLINE FOR ANY
REASON WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED OR CONSIDERED.

The date and time of receipt will be recorded on each proposal. Proposals must be
addressed and delivered to the Procurement Officer at the delivery address listed in
Section I, Paragraph D. Proposals must be sealed and should be labeled on the outside of
the package to clearly indicate that they are in response to the “Teen Court Coordinator/
Prevention Specialist,” should reference “RFP TC-FY21-02” and should indicate the
deadline for receipt (due date and time). Proposals submitted by facsimile or other
electronic means WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

[10]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

- A public log will be kept of the names of all Offerors submitting proposals. Pursuant to
Section 13-1-116 NMSA 1978, the contents of any proposal shall not be disclosed to
competing Offerors prior to contract award.

6. Proposal Evaluation

The evaluation of proposals will be performed by an Evaluation Committee appointed by
County management. This process will take place during the time period indicated in
Section ILA (Sequence of Events), above. During this time, the Procurement Officer may
at his option initiate discussions with Offerors who submit responsive or potentially
responsive proposals for the purpose of clarifying aspects of the proposals, but proposals
may be accepted and evaluated without such discussion. Discussions SHALL NOT be
initiated by the Offerors. The Evaluation Committee may select and the Procurement
Officer may notify finalist Offerors. Only finalists will be invited to participate in the
subsequent steps of the procurement. The Evaluation Committee reserves the right not to
utilize the finalist process if they deem it in the best interest of the County.

7. Interview of Finalists

Finalists will be invited to participate in a panel interview with the RFP Evaluation
Committee for the purpose of vetting responsive Offerors. This process will take place
during the time period indicated in Section ILA (Sequence of Events), above.

8. Contract Award

After review of the Evaluation Committee Report, interview, and the tentative contract,
the Purchasing Officer anticipates the Board of County Commissioners will award the
contract on the date indicated in Section ILA (Sequence of Events), above. This date is
subject to change at the discretion of the Purchasing Officer or the Board of County
Commissionets.

Any contract awarded shall be awarded to the Offeror whose proposal is most
advantageous to the County, taking into consideration the evaluation factors set forth in
this RFP. The most advantageous proposal may or may not have received the most
points. ‘

9. Protest Deadline

Any protest by an Offeror must be timely, in conformance with, and will be governed by
Sections 13-1-172 through 13-1-176 NMSA 1978. The fifteen (15) day protest period for
timely Offerors shall begin on the day following contract award and will end at 5:00 PM
MDT on the date indicated in Section II.A (Sequence of Events), above. Protests must be
writtert and must include the name and address of the protestor and the Request for
Proposals number. It must also contain a statement of grounds for protest including

[11]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

appropriate supporting exhibits, and it must specify the ruling requested from the
Purchasing Officer. The protest must be delivered to the Purchasing Officer.

Torrance County Purchasing
Attn. Noah J. Sedillo
205 S Ninth Street
PO Box 48
Estancia, New Mexico 87016

NOTE: Protests received after the deadline will not be accepted.
C. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

This procurement will be conducted in accordance with the New Mexico Procurement Code
(131-28 NMSA 1978) and Torrance County Procurement Policy (Resolution 2019-38).

1. Acceptance of Conditions Governing the Procurement

Offerors must indicate their acceptance of the Conditions Governing the Procurement in
the letter of transmittal form (see Appendix D). Submission of a proposal constitutes
acceptance of the Evaluation Factors contained in Section V of this RFP.

2. Incurring Cost

Any cost incurred by the Offeror in preparation, transmittal, presentation of any proposal
or material or negotiation associated with their response to this RFP shall be borne solely
by the Offeror.

3. Prime Contractor Responsibility

Any contract that may result from this RFP shall specify that the prime contractor is
solely responsible for fulfillment of the contract with the County. The County will only
make contract payments to the prime contractor.

4. Subcontractors

Use of subcontractors must be clearly explained in the proposal and each must be
identified by name. The prime contractor shall be wholly responsible for contract

performance whether or not subcontractors are used. Substitution of subcontractors, after
contract award, must receive prior written approval of the County Purchasing Office.

[12]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

5. Amended Proposals

An Offeror may submit an amended proposal before the deadline for receipt of proposals.
Such amended proposals must be complete replacements for a previously submitted
proposal and must be clearly identified as such in the transmittal letter. County personnel
will not merge, collate, or assemble proposal materials,

6. Offeror’s Rights to Withdraw Proposal

Offerors will be allowed to withdraw their proposals at any time prior to the deadline for
receipt of proposals. The Offeror must submit a written withdrawal request signed by the
Offeror's duly authorized representative addressed to the Procurement Officer. The
approval or denial of withdrawal requests received after the deadline for receipt of the
proposals is governed by the applicable procurement regulations.

7. Proposal Offer Firm

Responses to this RFP, including proposal prices, will be considered firm for ninety (90)
days after the due date for receipt of proposals or sixty (60) days after the due date for the
receipt of a best and final offer, if one is solicited.

8. Disclosure of Proposal Contents

The proposals will be kept confidential until a contract is awarded by the awarding
authority. At that time, all proposals and documents pertaining to the proposals will be
open to the public, except for material which is proprietary or confidential. The
Procurement Officer will not disclose or make public any pages of a proposal on which
the Offeror has stamped or imprinted "proprietary" or "confidential" subject to the
following requirements.

Proprietary or confidential data shall be readily separable from the proposal in
order to facilitate eventual public inspection of the remaining portions of the
proposal. Confidential data is normally restricted to confidential financial
information concerning the Offeror's organization and data that qualifies as a
trade secret in accordance with the Uniform Trade Secrets Act, 57-3A-1 to 57-
3A7 NMSA 1978. The price of products offered or the cost of services proposed
shall not be designated as proprietary or confidential information.

If a request is received for disclosure of data for which an Offeror has made a written
request for confidentiality, the Purchasing Officer shall examine the Offeror's request and
make a written determination that specifies which portions of the proposal should be
disclosed. Unless the Offeror takes legal action to prevent the disclosure, the proposal
will be so disclosed. The proposal shall be open to public inspection subject to any
continued prohibition on the disclosure of confidential data.

[13]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

9. No Obligation

This procurement in no manner obligates Torrance County or any of its departments or

other subdivisions to the eventual lease, purchase, etc., of any tangible personal property
offered or services proposed until a valid written contract is approved by the Purchasing
Officer and other required approval authorities. :

10. Termination

This RFP may be canceled at any time and any and all proposals may be rejected in
whole or in part when the County determines such action to be in the best interest of the
County. :

11. Sufficient Appropriation

Any contract awarded as a result of this RFP process may be terminated if sufficient
appropriations or authorizations do not exist. Such termination will be effected by
sending written notice to the contractor. The County's decision as to whether sufficient
appropriations and authorizations are available will be accepted by the contractor as final.

12. Legal Review

The County requires that all Offerors agree to be bound by the General Requirements
contained in this RFP. Any Offeror concerns must be promptly brought to the attention of
‘the Procurement Officer. ' '

13. Governing Law

This procurement and any agreement with Offerors that may result shall be governed by
the laws of the State of New Mexico.

14. Basis for Proposal

Only information supplied by the County in writing through the Procurement Officer or
in this RFP should be used as the basis for the preparation of Offeror proposals.

15. Contract Terms and Conditions

The contract between the County the contractor will follow the format specified by the
County and contain the terms and conditions set forth in Appendix B, Professional
Services Contract. However, the County reserves the right to negotiate with a successful
Offeror provisions in addition to those contained in this RFP. The contents of this RFP,
as revised or supplemented, and the successful Offeror's proposal will be incorporated
into and become part of the contract. ’

[14]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

Should an Offeror object to any of the County’s terms and conditions, as contained in this
Section or in Appendix B, that Offeror must propose specific alternative language. The
County may or may not accept the alternative language, at the County’s sole discretion.
General references to the Offeror's terms and conditions or attempts at complete
substitutions are not acceptable to the County and could lead to disqualification of the
Offeror's proposal.

Offerors must provide a brief discussion of the purpose and impact, if any, of each
proposed change followed by the specific proposed alternate wordmg in order for the
proposed alternate wording to be considered.

16. Offeror’s Terms and Conditions

Offeror’s must submit with their proposal a complete set of any additional terms and
conditions which they request be included in a contract negotiated with the County. The
County may or may not accept the additional language, at the County’s sole discretion.

17. Contract Deviations

Any additional terms and conditions, which may be the subject of negotiation, will be
discussed only between the County and the selected Offeror and shall not be deemed an
opportunity to amend the Offeror’s proposal.

18. Offeror Qualifications

The Evaluation Committee may make such investigations as necessary to determine the
ability of the Offeror to adhere to the requirements specified within this RFP. The
Evaluation Committee will reject the proposal of any Offeror who is not a responsible
Offeror or fails to submit a responsive offer as defined in Sections 13-1-83 and 13-1-85
NMSA 1978.

19. Right to Waive Minor Irregularities

The Evaluation Commiittee reserves the right to waive minor irregularities. The
Evaluation Committee also reserves the right to waive mandatory requirements provided
that all of the otherwise responsive proposals failed to meet the same mandatory
requirements or doing so does not otherwise materially affect the procurement. This right
is at the sole discretion of the Evaluation Committee.

20. Change in Contractor Representatives

The County reserves the right to require a change in contractor representatives if the
assigned representatives are not, in the opinion of the County, meeting its needs
adequately. :

[15]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

21. Notice

The Procurement Code, Sections 13-1-28 through 13-1-199 NMSA 1978, imposes civil
and misdemeanor criminal penalties for its violation. The State of New Mexico criminal
statutes also impose felony penalties for bribes, gratuities and kick-backs.

22. County Rights
The County reserves the right to accept all or a portion of an Offeror's proposal.
23. Ownership of Proposals

All documents submitted in response to the RFP shall become the property of the County.
However any technical or user documentation submitted with the proposals of non-
selected Offerors may be returned after the expiration of the protest period, by request, at
the expense of the Offeror. ’

24. Ambiguity, Inconsistency or Errors in RFP

Offerors shall promptly notify the Procurement Officer, in writing, of any ambiguity,
inconsistency or error which they discover upon examination of the RFP.

25. Competition

By submitting a proposal, Offeror certifies that they have not, either directly or indirectly,
entered into any action in restraint of full competition in connection with the proposal
submitted to the County.

26. Use 1by Other Government Entities

By submitting a proposal, Offeror indicates that they understand and agree that other
government entities within the State of New Mexico, or as otherwise allowed by their
governing directives, may contract for the goods or services included in this procurement
document with the awarded contractor(s). Contractual engagements accomplished under
this provision shall be solely between the awarded vendor and the contracting
government entity with no obligation or liability incurred by Torrance County.

27. Confidentiality
Any confidential information provided to, or developed by, the contractor in the
performance of any agreement resulting from this RFP shall be kept confidential and

shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the contractor without
the prior written approval of the County of Torrance.

[16]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

III. RESPONSE FORMAT AND ORGANIZATION

A. NUMBER OF RESPONSES

Offeror’s may submit only one (1) response to this RFP.
B. NUMBER OF COPIES

Offerors shall deliver four (4) identical copies of their proposal to the location specified in
Section I, Paragraph D on or before the closing date and time for receipt of proposals. (Identical
copies are defined as the original plus the number of additional copies needed to fulfill the
requirement. For example, a requirement for four (4) identical copies would be fulfilled by
submitting the original and three [3] copies of the original.) The original copy should be clearly
marked “ORIGINAL” on the front cover and shall contain original signatures. (An exception to
this requirement is made for the “Cost Response Form” and the “Campaign Contribution
Disclosure Form”. See Section III.C.1, immediately below.)

C. PROPOSAL FORMAT

All proposals must be typewritten on standard 8 1/2 x 11 paper (vlarger paper is permissible for
charts, spreadsheets, etc.) and placed within a binder with tabs delineating each section.

1. Proposal Organization

The proposal should be organized and indexed in the following format and must contain,
as a minimum, all listed items in the sequence shown unless otherwise indicated.

a. Letter of Transmittal Form (See Appendix D)

b. Valid In-State Resident or Veteran Preference Certificate (Optiohal at
Offeror’s discretion. See Section L.F.)

c. Table of Contents

d. Cost Response Form (See Appendix C)

e. Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form (See Appendix F)
f. Resume

g. Préposal Summary (Optional)

h. Response to Specifications

[18]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

Within each section of their proposal, Offerors should address the items in the order in
which they appear in this RFP. Any forms provided in the RFP must be thoroughly
completed and included in the appropriate section of the proposal. Unless otherwise
specified in this RFP, all discussion of proposed costs, rates or expenses must occur only
on the Cost Response Form, Appendix C.

Any proposal that does not adhere to these requirements may be deemed non-responsive
and rejected on that basis.

A proposal summary may be included by Offerors to provide the Evaluation Committee
with an overview of the technical and business features of the proposal; however, this
material will not be used in the evaluation process unless spemﬁcally referenced from

- other portions of the Offeror's proposal.

2. Letter of Transmittal Form

The Letter of Transmittal Form at Appendix D must be completed, signed and included
with the Offeror’s proposal.

- 3. Other Supporting Materials
Offerors may attach other materials which they feel may improve the quality of their

responses. However, these materials may not be reviewed by members of the Evaluation
Committee and will not be scored.

[19]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

1V. SPECIFICATIONS

A. INFORMATION
1. In-State Resident or Veteran Preference

A valid In-State Resident or Veteran Preference Certificate issued by the New Mexico
Taxation and Revenue Department must be included with the proposal if the Offeror
wishes to receive the additional points available as a qualifying resident or veteran
business. See Section I.F, above, for more information.

2. Response to Requirements

Each mandatory requirement in sections IV.B.1 through IV.B.9, below, requires a vendor
response, as indicated. Failure to respond to, or properly comply with, a mandatory
requirement may result in the disqualification of the Offeror’s proposal. Each desirable
requirement in sections IV.C.1 through IV.C.3, below may be answered at the Offeror’s
discretion. Failure to respond to a desirable requirement will result in a score of zero (0)
being assigned for that requirement.

B. MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
1. Letter of Transmittal Form (0 Points)

Offeror must complete and submit the “Letter of Transmittal Form”, found at Appendix
D, with their proposal. The form must be signed and dated by an individual authorized to
contractually bind the party.-

2. Capability and Agreement to Perform (0 Points)

Offeror certifies that they are capable and qualified to provide the products or services
required by this RFP and agrees to perform the Scope of Work as specified in the
Contract at Appendix B. A statement of concurrence is required.

3. Campaign Cohtribution Disclosure Form (0 Points)

Offeror must complete and sign the Appendix F, Campaign Contribution Disclosure
Form — whether any applicable contribution has been made or not. This form must be
submitted with your proposal whether an applicable contribution has been made or not.
Note that there are two (2) different signature sections within the form. (For purposes of
this requirement, the applicable elected public officials within the County of Torrance are

[20]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

BCC Chairmen Ryan Schwebach; Commissioners Kevin McCall and LeRoy Candelaria,
Assessor Jesse Lucero; Clerk Yvonne Otero; Probate Judge Josie Chavez; Sheriff Martin
Rivera; and Treasurer Tracy Sedillo.)

4, Conflict of Interest Affidavit (0 Points)

Offerors must include signed and completed Conflict of Interest Affidavit Form (see
Appendix E) with RFP documents. The Offeror warrants that it presently has no interest
and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner
or degree with the performance or services required under the Agreement. The Offeror
certifies that the requirements of the Governmental Conduct Code Act, Sections 10-16-1
through 10-16-18, NMSA 1978, regarding contracting with a public officer or state
employee or former state employee have been followed.

5. Tax'Obligations (0 Points)

Bidders/Proposers are required to certify that they are not delinquent in the payment of
their tax obligations and that they will not become delinquent in the payment of their tax
obligations. during the term of any contract that may be awarded pursuant to this
solicitation. Failure to maintain compliance, or to timely cure defects, may be cause for
termination of a contract or initiation of debarment proceedings against the noncompliant
contractor. Bids/Proposals that fail to comply with the certification requirements will be
considered non-responsive and excluded from further consideration. A statement so
certifying is required.

6. Accessibility (100 Points)

If awarded the contract, Contractor must be available to respond to County queries
Monday — Thursday from 8 amto 5 pm, but not limited to. Contractor must be able to
travel to and throughout Torrance County and New Mexico to meet with County
personnel, complete public outreach, network with peers with the New Mexico Teen
Court Association (NMTCA), conduct and attend meetings and trainings, within and
outside normal business hours to deliver a high-level of accessibility to stakeholders.
Contractor must commit to presentations during regularly scheduled BCC meetings if
required. Offeror must explain, in narrative format, how they will meet this requirement
with a focus on their accessibility.

7. Cost Response Form (25 Points)

Offeror must complete and submit the Cost Response Form, at Appendix C, providing
proposed contract cost for accomplishing the scope of work. State gross receipts and local
option taxes (if any) shall not be included in the proposed cost. Such taxes shall be
separately reimbursed to the contractor by the County.

[21]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

8. Resume (100 Points)

Offeror must submit current resume including, but not limited to, employment history,
experience, skills, and education.

9. Professional Writing Sample (100 Points)

Offeror must provide a minimum of one (1) proféssional writing sample, i.e. reports,
proposals, articles, brochures, fact sheets, presentations, letters, etc.

C. DESIRABLE REQUIREMENTS
1. Specific Experience
a. Experience with Project Management (75 Points)

Offerors should be proficient with, and experienced with managing projects
and staff to guarantee all requirements and deliverables are met timely.

“Offerors should be effective administrators. Offerors should describe, in
narrative form, how they meet this requirement describing similar experience.
The response should include the description of a situation that the Offeror
feels best describes their experience and success in this area.

b. Experience with Public Presentation (75 Points)

Offerors should be proficient with, and experienced in preparing and
conducting presentations in informal and formal settings. This will include
conducting public meetings, organizing workshops, and presenting to public
bodies. Offerors should describe, in narrative form, how they meet this
requirement. The response should include the description of a situation that
the Offeror feels best describes their experience and success in this area.

c. Experience with Documentation (75 Points)

Offerors should be proficient with, and experienced in compiling and writing
reports to summarize data, accomplishments, progress, problems, and plans
for improvement. Offerors should be proficient with, and experienced in
preparing financial reports including invoices and work logs. Offerors should
describe, in narrative form, how they meet this requirement. The response
should include the description of a situation that the Offeror feels best
describes their experience and success in this area.

[22]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

d. Experience with Youth Education and/or Services (75 Points)

Offerors should be proficient with, and experienced working with youth in
individual and group settings. Experience with At-Risk Youth is ideal. At-risk
youth is defined as juveniles who have demonstrated specific behaviors that if
repeated will make the juvenile eligible for-a referral to juvenile probation and
parole. Knowledge of underage substance abuse issues, juvenile justice, and
delinquency prevention is ideal. Offerors should describe, in narrative form,
how they meet this requirement. The response should include the description
of a situation that the Offeror feels best describes their experience and success
in this area.

e. Experience with Community Outreach (75 Points)

Offerors should be proficient with, and experienced in dealing with public
outreach including meeting with stakeholders and community members to
promote programs and garner support and participation for the programs.
Offerors should describe, in narrative form, how they meet this requirement.
The response should include the description of a situation that the Offeror feels
best describes their experience and success in this area.

f. Experience with Government Processes and Procurement (75 Points)

Offerors should be familiar with, and experienced in dealing with local
government. Knowledge of grant writing and funding sources for government
programs is ideal. Offerors should describe, in narrative form, how they meet
this requirement. The response should include the description of a situation
that the Offeror feels best describes their experience and success in this area.

2. References (100 Points)

Offeror should provide names and current contact information for at least three (3)
employers, clients, or local public bodies for which Offeror has provided similar services.
Offeror must also describe the type of service provided to each, when the service was
performed, the duration of the service, and implementation and success of the service.

3. Panel Interview (125 Points)

Selected finalists will be invited to participate in a panel interview to obtain further
information about an Offeror’s qualifications and to evaluate an Offeror’s ability to
respond to questions in a formal setting.

[23]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

V.EVALUATION
A. EVALUATION POINT SUMMARY

The following is a summary of evaluation factors with point value assigned to each or a Pass/Fail
evaluation. These, along with the general requirements, will be used in the evaluation of
individual Offeror proposals.

REF. REQUIREMENT POINTS
: AVAIL.
IV.B.1 Letter of Transmittal Form 0*
IV.B.2 Capability and Agreement to ‘ 0*
Perform
IV.B.3 Campaign Contribution 0*
Disclosure Form
IVB4. Conflict of Interest Form 0*
IV.B.5 Tax Obligations 0*
IV.B.6 Accessibility ) 100
IV.B.7 Cost Response Form 25
IV.B.8 Resume ‘ 100
IV.B.9 Professional Writing Samples 100
IV.C.l.a Experience with Project . 75
, Management
IV.C.1.b Experience with Public . 75
Presentation
IV.C.lc Experience with Documentation 75
Iv.C.ld Experience with Youth Education , 75
and/or Service
IV.C.1l.e Experience with Community 75
' Outreach
IV.C1.f Experience with Government 75
Processes -
1IV.C2 References 100
IV.C3 Panel Interview : 125
TOTAL | 1,000
*Pass/Fail only.

Points will be awarded based on the evaluation factors found in IV.B.1 through IV.C.3, below, as
indicated. ‘

[24]



TC-IY21-02 // April 23, 2021

B. EVALUATION FACTORS: MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
1. .Letter of Transmittal Form (0 Points)
Pass/Fail only.
2. Capability and Agreement to Perform (0 Points)
Pass/Fail only.
3. Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form (0 Points)
Pass/Fail only.
4. Conflict of Interest Affidavit (O Points)
Pass/Fail only;
5. Tax Obligations (0 Points)
Pass/Fail only.
6. Accessibility (100 Points)
Points will be awarded based on the Offeror’s ability to demonstrate ease of reaching th'ev
Offeror when needed, ability to attend required meetings and training, availability to
County personnel. '
7. Cost Response Form (25 Points)

Points will be awarded based on the total cost proposed on the Cost Response Form.

Lowest Annual Proposed Cost
Offeror's Points = X 25
This Offeror's Annual Proposed Cost

A schedule of fees can also be submitted as a supplement to the Cost Response Form;
however, it does not replace or fulfill the Cost Response Form requirement.

8. Resume (100 Points)

Points will be awarded based relevance of employment, experience, skills, and education
to the Scope of Work.

(25]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

9. Professional Writing Sample (100 Points)

Points will be awarded based on the quality of writing sample provided.

C. EVALUATION FACTORS: DESIRABLE REQUIREMENTS
1. Specific Experience
a. Experience with Project Management (75 Points)

Points will be awarded based on the depth and breadth of the experience of the
Offeror in this specific area. The Evaluation Committee will pay particular
attention to the similarity between described experience and the work required
- to be performed specified in the Statement of Work (Appendix B, Attachment
1) as well as the complexity and difficulty of work described in the Offeror’s

response. Offeror responses will also be compared to submittals from other
Offerors. '

b. Experience with Public Presentation (75 Points)

Points will be awarded based on the depth and breadth of the experience of the
Offeror in this specific area. The Evaluation Committee will pay particular
attention to the similarity between described experience and the work required
to be performed specified in the Statement of Work (Appendix B, Attachment
1) as well as the complexity and difficulty of work described in the Offeror’s

response. Offeror responses will also be compared to submittals from other
Offerors. "

c. Experience with Documentation (75 Points)

Points will be awarded based on the depth and breadth of the experience of the
Offeror in this specific area. The Evaluation Committee will pay particular
attention to the similarity between described experience and the work required
to be performed specified in the Statement of Work (Appendix B, Attachment
1) as well as the complexity and difficulty of work described in the Offeror’s

response. Offeror responses will also be compared to submittals from other
Offerors.

d. Experience with Youth Education and/or Service (75 Points)

Points will be awarded based on the depth and breadth of the experience of the
Offeror in this specific area. The Evaluation Committee will pay particular

[26]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

attention to the similarity between described experience and the work required
to be performed specified in the Statement of Work (Appendix B, Attachment
1) as well as the complexity and difficulty of work described in the Offeror’s

response. Offeror responses will also be compared to submittals from other
Offerors.

e. Experience with Community Outreach (75 Points)

Points will be awarded based on the depth and breadth of the experience of the
Offeror in this specific area. The Evaluation Committee will pay particular
attention to the similarity between described experience and the work required
to be performed specified in the Statement of Work (Appendix B, Attachment
1) as well as the complexity and difficulty of work described in the Offeror’s

response. Offeror responses will also be compared to submittals from other
Offerors.

f. Experience with Government Processes (75 Points)

Points will be awarded based on the depth and breadth of the experience of the
Offeror in this specific area. The Evaluation Committee will pay particular
attention to the similarity between described experience and the work required
to be performed specified in the Statement of Work (Appendix B, Attachment
1) as well as the complexity and difficulty of work described in the Offeror’s
response. Offeror responses will also be compared to submittals from other
Offerors.

2. References (100 Points)

Points will be awarded based on the similarity of the Offeror’s dealings indicated to the
requirements of the Scope of Work as well as the reference’s satisfaction in their dealings
with the Offeror and the provided products or services. The Evaluation Committee may
call any or all of the references. Reference responses to this section will also be compared
to reference responses from other Offerors.

3. Panel Interview (125 Points)

Points will be awarded based on the depth and breadth of the answers provided to
questions, as well as presentation and ability to communicate orally. The Evaluation
Committee will pay particular attention to the similarity between response to questions
and the work required to be performed specified in the Statement of Work (Appendix B,
Attachment 1) as well as the complexity and difficulty of work described in the Offeror’s
response. Offeror responses will also be compared to submittals from other Offerors.

[27]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

D. EVALUATION PROCESS
1. Initial Review

All Offeror proposals will be reviewed for compliance with the mandatory requirements
stated within the RFP. Proposals deemed non-responsive to any mandatory requirement
will be eliminated from further consideration.

2. Clarifications

The Procurement Officer may contact the Offeror for clarification of the response as
specified in Section II, Paragraph B.6.

3. Other Information Sources

The Evaluation Committee may use other sources of information to perform the
evaluation as specified in Section II, Paragraph C.18.

4, Resident Business/Contractor Preference

13-1-21 NMSA 1978 provides for preference for resident businesses and contractors
under certain conditions. If applicable, the preference will be provided to those Offerors
that have provided a valid resident business preference certificate or a valid resident
contractor certificate with their proposal, as required by 13-1-22 NMSA 1978.

5. Scoring and Contract Award Recommendation

Responsive proposals will be evaluated and assigned a point value based on the factors in
Section V. Finalist Offerors will be invited to participate in a panel interview with the
RFP Evaluation Committee. The responsible Offeror whose proposal is most
advantageous to the County, taking into consideration the evaluation factors in Section V,
will be recommended for contract award to the Purchasing Officer, and any other
required approving authorities. Please note, however, that a serious deficiency in the
response to any one factor may be grounds for rejection regardless of overall score.

[28]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021 .

APPENDIX A

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT FORM

Request for Proposals

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR TORRANCE COUNTY

RFP TC-FY21-02
Teen Court Coordinator/Prevention Specialist

In acknowledgment of receipt of this Request for Proposals, the undersigned agrees that he/she has
received a complete copy, beginning with the title page and table of contents, and ending with Appendix.
F. :

The acknowledgment of receipt should be signed and returned (by fax, e-inail, courier or hand
delivery) to the Procurement Officer no later than May 6, 2021.

The firm listed below does intend to respond to this Request fbr Proposals.

OFFEROR:

REPRESENTED BY: TITLE:

E-MAIL ADDRESS:

PHONE NO. FAX'NO.:

ADDRESS:

CITY: ___ STATE: ZIP CODE:

SIGNATURE: DATE:

This name and address will be used for all correspondence related to the Reqﬁest for Proposals.

Please return to:

Noah J. Sedillo
Torrance County Purchasing
205 S Ninth Street

" PO Box 48
Estancia, NM 87016
Phone: (505) 544-4730
Fax: (505) 384-5294
E-mail: njsedillo@tcnm.us

[29]



TC-FY21-02 // April 23, 2021

APPENDIX B

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT FOR TORRANCE COUNTY

RFP TC-FY21-02
Teen Court Coordinator/Prevention Specialist-

[30]



Agenda Item
No. 12-B



TORRANCE COUNTY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
DWI PREVENTION PROGRAM EVALUATOR
FY2022-DWI-02

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into, by and between Torrance County, New
Mexico (hereinafter referred to as the “County”), and John Steiner (hereinafter referred to as
“Contractor”).

WHEREAS, the County of Torrance desires to retain the services of a Driving While
Impaired (DWI) Program Evaluator and Contractor is a qualified candidate for this contracted
position,

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties that:
SCOPE OF SERVICES.

Contractor shall perform all Services as requested by the County through the Torrance
County DWI Prevention Program, including, but not limited to, the following Services
(hereinafter the “Services”) in a satisfactory and proper manner as determined by the
County:

a. Provide a comprehensive assessment and evaluation of the Torrance County
DWI Prevention Program.

b. Work with the Torrance County DWI Prevention Program Coordinator to
continue development of an updated prevention plan to address gaps and needs
in the Torrance County Community.

c. ldentify, for evaluation purposes, the Torrance County DWI Prevention Program
catchment area, including the schools of the Moriarty-Edgewood School District,
complete with demographics and numbers affected and develop and implement
methods of data collection from unique cultural groups.



d. Develop a comprehensive evaluation for the Torrance County DWI Prevention
Program that measures effectiveness of program strategies and their results.
The outcome evaluation should measure each intervening variable as they
pertain to the prevention strategies. These indicators will be specific to the
Torrance County DWI Prevention Program and an annual report will be
submitted to the Torrance County DWI Prevention Program on or before
September 30, 2022.

e. Develop a Power Point presentation of the Needs Assessment Highlights and
Gaps in data to present to the community, planning council members, and
stakeholders.

f.  Work with the Torrance County DWI Prevention Program Coordinator in the
implementation of the strategic plan that will address intervening variables
(individual level, direct service (evidence based and general prevention)
curricula, social access, law enforcement of Alcohol Tobacco and Other Drug
(ATOD) laws, and low perceived risk of arrest/legal consequence) supportive of
State prioritized consequences and related consumption behaviors.

g. Review effectiveness of activities implemented through a quality improvement
process and conduct fidelity checks a minimum of four times per year per
evidence-based program and debrief staff and provide feedback to improve
program delivery.

h. Work closely with the Torrance County DWI Prevention Program Coordinator
and prevention staff (where applicable) on an on-going basis, along with onsite
visits, technical assistance and evaluation training.

i. Provide staff support and facilitation for various meetings with health and social
service provider agencies and assist the Torrance County DWI Prevention
Program Coordinator in developing an updated evaluation plan and logic model
that reflects the goals set forth in the strategic plan.

j.  Attend at least two meetings of the Torrance County DWI Planning Council,
reporting recommendations and seek input.

k. Comply with requests made by the State of New Mexico, Local Government
Divisions, Local DWI Program Staff.

2. TERM.

Services of Contractor shall commence on July 1, 2021 and shall be undertaken and
completed in such sequences as to assure their expeditious completion in light of the
purposes of this Agreement, provided, however, that the initial term hereof ends on
June 30, 2022.



3. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT.

For performing the Services specified in Section 1 of this Agreement, the County agrees
to pay Contractor on a monthly basis for evaluator the sum of $850/month, inclusive of
all salary, supplies, mileage/per-diem, telephone allowance, and administrative costs,
and applicable New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax. Compensation will be disbursed as
follows: Contractor will provide a detailed invoice describing Services provided and will
be compensated at the rate of $850/month, including New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax,
following the end of the month. Total amount of compensation, including gross receipts
tax, shall not exceed $10,200.

Such amount shall be payable monthly upon the submission and approval of a
statement for Evaluation Services. Payments to Contractor shall be made as determined
by the budgetary and fiscal guidelines of the County. The County will send payments
within 30 days of the County’s receipt of the statement to:

John Steiner
533 Arizona St., SE
Albuquerque, NM 87108

ALL INVOICES MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE TORRANCE COUNTY DWW/
PREVENTION PROGRAN NO LATER THAN JUNE 15, 2022. INVOICES
RECEIVED AFTER SUCH DATE WILL NOT BE PAID.

4. TERMINATION.

a. This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part, in writing, by either party
in the event of substantial failure by the other party to fulfill its obligations under
this Agreement through no fault of the terminating party, provided that the non-
terminating party is given no less than fifteen (15) calendar days’ written notice
(delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested) of intent to terminate, and
an opportunity for consultation with the terminating party prior to termination.

b. This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part in writing by either party
for its convenience, provided that the other party is given 1) not less than thirty
(30) calendar days written notice (delivered by certified mail, return receipt
requested) of intent to terminate, and (2) an opportunity for consultation with
the terminating party prior to termination.



C.

If termination for default is instituted by the County, an equitable adjustment in
the price provided for in this Agreement may be made, but (1) no amount shall
be allowed for anticipated profit on unperformed Services for other Services,
and (2) any payment due to the Contractor at the time of termination may be
adjusted to cover any additional costs to the County because of the Contractor’s
default. Upon termination, Contractor will be paid a reasonable amount for
Services rendered and expenses incurred prior to the termination, in addition to
termination settlement costs reasonably incurred by the Contractor relating to
commitments which have become firm prior to the termination.

Upon receipt of a termination action under Paragraph (a) or (b) above, the
Contractor shall 1) promptly discontinue all affected Services (unless the notice
directs otherwise) and 2) deliver or otherwise make available to the County all
data, reports, and such other information and materials as may have been
accumulated by the Contractor in performing this Agreement, whether
completed or in process.

Upon termination under Paragraphs (a) or (b) above, the County may take over
the work and may award another party a contract to complete the Services
under this Agreement.

If after termination for failure of the Contractor to fulfill Agreement obligations,
it is determined that the Contractor had not failed to fulfill Agreement
obligations, the termination shall be deemed to have been for the convenience
of the County. In such an event, adjustment of the agreement price shall be
made as provided in Paragraph “c” of this clause.

5. AUDIT ACCESS TO RECORDS.

a.

The Contractor shall maintain books, records, documents and other evidence
directly pertinent to performance of County funded Services under this
Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices
consistently applied. The Contractor shall also maintain the financial information
and data used in the preparation or support of any cost submission. The County
or any of its authorized representatives shall have access to all such books,
records, documents and other evidence for the purpose of inspection, audit and
copying during normal business hours both before and after payment, and the
Contractor will provide proper facilities for such access and inspection.

Audits conducted under this provision shall be in accordance with generally
accepted audit standards, and with established procedures and guidelines of the
reviewing or audit agency or agencies.



6. RELEASE ON FINAL PAYMENT.

The Contractor, upon final payment of the amounts due and under Paragraph 3
(Compensation and Method of Payment) of this Agreement, releases the County, its
officers and employees from any and all said compensation whatsoever arising from or
under this Agreement. The Contractor agrees not to purport to bind the County to any
obligation not assumed in this Agreement by the County, unless the Contractor has
express written authority to do so, and then only within the strict limits of that
authority, Payments on this Agreement shall not foreclose the County’s right to recover
excessive or illegal payments.

7. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Any information that the Contractor receives or develops in the performance of this
Agreement shall be kept confidential and the Contractor shall not make such
information available to any individual or organization without the County’s prior
written approval.

8. PRODUCT OF SERVICE.

All documents that the Contractor develops or acquires under this Agreement, shall
become the County’s property and shall be delivered if so requested to the County no
later than the final termination of this Agreement.

9. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

The Contractor warrants that it presently has no interest, and shall not acquire any
interest, directly or indirectly, that would conflict in any manner or degree with the
performance of Services required under this Agreement. When and if such provisions
become applicable, the Contractor shall promptly provide a written disclosure to the
County Manager.

10. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement shall not be altered, changed or amended except by an instrument in-
writing executed by the parties. No amendment shall be effective or binding until
approved by the Torrance County Board of Commissioners.

11. MERGER.

This Agreement incorporates all of the agreements, covenants, and understandings
between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such
agreements, covenants and understandings have been merged into this written
Agreement. No prior agreement or understanding, verbally or otherwise, of the parties
or of their agents shall be valid or enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement.



12,

13.

14,

15.

WAIVER.

No waiver of any breach of this Agreement or any of the terms or conditions thereof
shall be held to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach, nor shall any waiver be
valid or binding unless the same shall be in writing and signed by the party alleged to
have granted the waiver.

APPROPRIATIONS.

This Agreement’s terms, including Fiscal Year 2021 and any potential subsequent terms
beyond Fiscal Year 2021, are contingent upon the County making sufficient
appropriations and authorization for the performance of this Agreement. If the County
does not make sufficient appropriations and authorizations, this Agreement shall,
notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 1 and 2, above, terminate immediately
upon the County giving written notice to the Contractor.

The County’s decision whether sufficient appropriations are available shall be accepted
by the contractor and shall be final.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY COMPLIANCE.

The Contractor agrees to abide by all Federal and State laws and rules and regulations,
and executive orders of the President of the United States and the Governor of the State
of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment opportunity, to the extent they pertain
to this Agreement. In accordance with all such laws and rules and regulations, and
executive orders of the President of the United States and the Governor of the State of
New Mexico, the Contractor agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall,
on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual preference, age or handicap,
be excluded from employment with or participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination under, any program or activity performed under
this Agreement. If the Contractor is found to be not in compliance with these
requirements to the extent they pertain to this Agreement, during the life of this
Agreement, the Contractor agrees to take appropriate steps to correct these
deficiencies.

NOTICE.

The Procurement Code, Sections 13-1-28 through 13-1-199 NMSA 1978, imposes civil
and criminal penalties for its violation. In addition, the New Mexico criminal statutes
impose felony penalties for illegal bribes, gratuities, and kickbacks.



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

INDEMNITY.

The Contractor will indemnify and hold harmless the County, including payment of costs
and attorney fees, against all claims, suits, liability or damages which may be brought,
found or levied against the County as a result or arising out of the Services and actions
of the Contractor under this Agreement, provided that this indemnity will not apply to
the County’s gross negligence or intentional torts.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

The Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, is an independent contractor,
and the County shall have no obligations to Contractor as an employer other than as set
forth in this Agreement.

COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENCY FEES.

The Contractor assures that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained
to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a
commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee except bona fide employees or
bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Contractor for
the purpose of securing business. For breach or violation of this assurance, the County
shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, at its discretion, to
deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover the full
amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee.

THIRD PARTIES.

Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer any rights,
remedies, claims, or interests upon a person not a party to this Agreement.

LIABILITY AND INSURANCE.

Contractor shall provide professional liability insurance for himself or.any employees
that may assist in the performance of Services pursuant to this Agreement, in
accordance with the provisions of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, Section 41-4-1 et
seq., NMSA 1978, as amended. Contractor shall provide a certificate of insurance to the
County immaediately upon execution of this Agreement. The liability of Contractor will
be subject in all cases to the immunities and limitations of the Tort Claims Act.

GOVERNING LAWS.

This Agreement will be construed, interpreted, governed and enforced in accordance
with the statutes, judicial decisions, and other laws of the State of New Mexico.



22,

23,

24,

25,

26.

27.

NON-ASSIGNABILITY.

This Agreement will not be assigned by either party nor will the duties imposed upon
either party by this Agreement be delegated, subcontracted, or transferred by either
party, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other party.

SEVERABILITY.

The invalidity or unenforceability of any term or provision of this Agreement will in no
way affect the validity or enforceability of any other term or provision to the extent
permitted by law.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement represents the entire understanding between the parties and
supersedes any prior agreements or understandings with respect to the subject matter
of this Agreement.

WAIVER OF BREACH.

The waiver by either party of a breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement
will not operate as or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of this
Agreement.

COOPERATION AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION.

The parties agree that, to the extent compatible with the separate and independent
management of each, they will maintain effective liaison and close cooperation. If a
dispute arises related to the obligations or performance of either party under this
Agreement, representatives of the parties will meet in good faith to resolve the dispute.

BINDING EFFECT.

This Agreement is binding upon, and inures to the benefit of, the parties to this
Agreement and their respective successors.



28. NOTICES.

Any notice that will be given in accordance with this Agreement, will be deemed
appropriate when sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following:

Torrance County

¢/o County Manager

P. O.Box 48

Estancia, NM 87016
and

John Steiner

533 Arizona St., SE

Albuquerque, NM 87108
29. APPROVAL REQUIRED.

This Agreement shall not become effective until signed by both parties.

WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement effective July 1,
2020.

TORRANCE COUNTY

By: Date:
Janice Barela, County Manager

Attest:
County Clerk

CONTRACTOR

By: Date:
John Steiner




Agenda Item
No. 12-C



SWIWI N R e R L.

xa
£
wr
-
EN

Page #: 1 of 5

Documents #: OP-000598741
S0-000659150

Solution Name: ConvergeOne E911 Managed
Services: FY July 1 2021-
June 30 2022 Contract
196676

Customer: Torrance County 911 Central
Dispatch Center

Solution Summary

ConvergeOne E911 Managed Services: FY July 1 2021 -June 30 2022 Contract
' 196676

Customer: Torrance County 911 Central Dispatch Center Primary Contact: Stephen Weinkauf
Ship To 753 Salt Missions Tri Email: Stephen,Weinkauf@state.nm.us
Address: PO Box 449 Phone: 505-827-8060

MclIntosh, NM 87032-0449 National A ¢ Brian Kell
. . ) ational Account Brian Kelley
Bill To Address: 407 Galisteo St Manager:

Rm 202
Bataan Memorial Bldg Email: bkelley@convergeone.com
Attn: Stephen Weinkauf . PhOne: 720 279"5812

Santa Fe, NM 87501
Customer ID: VTWTORCOU0001
Customer PO:

45,857.92

,,,,,,,,,,,,, . smm LMoty gm0 00504
Manufacturer Maintenance $24,939.22 Prepaid . $24,939.22
Project Subtotal $30,797.14 $58,579.20 $95,234.26
E;timated Tax S $46132§461§2 et ot e e $5,53584
- ésﬁmatedF;ezgmht e e NOTINC e e e e e e R e et o ot eeee et e
Project Total $31,258.46 $100,770.10

This Order shall be subject to the following terms and conditions the master agreement entered into by CQustomer with one of ConvergeOne, Inc.'s predecessars, affiliates and/or
subsidiaries ("Legacy Master Agreement"), subject to the provisions of Attachment A, In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions in the Legacy Master Agreement and
this Ordler, the order of precedence shall be as follows: (1) this Order and Attachment A (together with any other applicable supporting document(s)), and (if) the main body of the
Legacy Master Agreemert, .

This Solution Summary summarizes the document(s) that are attached hereto, and such documents are incorporated herein by reference (collectively, this *Order”), Customer's
signature onthis Order (or Customer's Issuance of a purchase order in connection with this Order) shall represent Customer's agreement with each document In this Orde r and
acknowledgement that such attacheddocument(s) are represented accurately by this Solution Summary.

Unless otherwise specified in this Order, this Order shall be subject to the following terms and conditions (the “Agreement"): (i) the Master Sales Agreement or other applicable master
agreement In effect as of the date hereof between ConvergeOne, Inc. andjor ts subsldiaries and affiliates (collectively, "C1" or "ConvergeOne" or "Seller") and Customer; or (i) if no
such masteragreement is currently in place between C1 and Customer, the Online General Terms and Conditions currently found on the internet at:

https://www.convergeone .com/online-general-terms-and-conditions/ . If Customer’s Agreement is a master agreement entered into with one of ConvergeOne, Inc.'s predecessars,
affillates and/or subsidiaries ("Legacy Master Agreement"), the terms and conditions of such Legacy Master Agreement shall apply to this Order, subject to any modifications, located
at: hitps://www.convergeone,com/online-general-terms-and-conditions/ . In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions in the Agreementand this Order, the order of
precedence shall be as follows: (f) this Order (with the most recent and specific document controlling if there are conflicts between the Solution Summary and any applicable supporting
document(s)incorporated into this Order), (ii) Attachment Ato the Agreement (if applicable), and (iii} the main body of the Agreement.

This Order may Include the sale of any of the following to Customer: (a) any hardware, third party software, and/or Seller so ftware (collectively, “Products”); (b) any installation
services, professional services, andfor third party provided support services that are generally associated with the Products and sold to customers by Seller (collectively, “Professional
Services™); (c) any Seller-provided vendor management services, software release management services, remote monitoring services andjor, troubleshooting services (collectively,
“*Managed Services"); and/or (d) any Seller-provided malntenance services ordered. by Customer to maintalnand service Supported Products or Supported Systems at Supported Sites
to ensure that they operate in conformance with thelr respective documentation and spedifications (collectively, *Maintenance Services”). For ease of reference only, Professional
Servicess, Managed Setvices and Malntenance Services may be referred to collectively as “Services.” Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms used herein will havethe same

meanings as set forth in the Agreement.

Products and/or Services not specifically itemized are not provlded hereunder. This Order WIII be valid fora period of thirty (30) days following the date hereof, Thereafter, this Order
will no longer be of any force and effect: '

This Order is a configured order and/or contalins software,



%g 1ALV E Y ATTE LU LR 5T

Page #: 2 of 5

Documents #: OP-000598741
$0-000659150

Solution Name:; ConvergeOne E911 Managed
Services: FY July 1 2021-
June 30 2022 Contract
196676

Customer: Torrance County 911 Central
Dispatch Center

Special Comment to Solution Summary:

Attachment A
LIMITATIONSOF LIABILITY

Notwithstanding any contrary provisions contained the in Legacy Master Agreement, ConvergeOneand Customer acknowledge and ag ree to the following:

- (a) Customer acknowledges that the Services may not function properly: (i} during any disruption of power at the Customer’s location; (if) during any disruption
of internet connectivity to the Customer’s location; (ili) during any period in which the Customer's VoIP telephony service provider or Local Exchange carrier has
cancelled or suspended delivery of services to Customer for any reason (including suspension or cancellation for falure to pay or other default); (iv) during any
period of Service outage or fallure beyond ConvergeOne's reasonable control (Including natural disasters, wide-spread telephony or Internet network failures or a
service fallure of ConvergeOne or its third party suppliers); (v) if Customer’s equipment fails to function, is not proper ly configured or is defective,

(b) SHOULD CUSTOMER, OR ANY PARTY CLAIMING TO HAVE IN ANY WAY RELIED UPON THE SERVICES, SUFFER ANY LOSS, DAMAGE, COST OR EXP ENSE
FROM ITS USE, OR OPERATION OF THE SERVICES, THEN THE MAXIMUM AGGREGATE AMOU NT OF LIABILITY OF CONVERGEONE, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES
AND AGENTS WILL BE LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT OF FEES PAID OR PAYABLE TO CONVERGEONE BY CUSTOMER DURING THE TWELVE (12) MONTH PERI QD
PRECEDING THE FIRST ACT GIVING RISE TO LIABILITY FOR THE SERVICES THAT CAUSED OR ALLEGEDLY CAUSED SUCH LOSS, DAMAGE, COST OR EXPENSE.
IN NO EVENT SHALL CONVERGEONE BE LIABLE OR OBLIGATED IN ANY MANNER FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, COLLATERAL, CONSEQU ENTIAL,
STATUTORY, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, THE LIABILITIES LIMITED HEREIN APPLY: (i) TO LIABILITY FOR NEGLIGENCE; (i) REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF '
ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, EQUITY, TORT, OR OTHERWISE (INCLUDING BREACH OF WARRANTY AND STRICT LIABILITY IN TORT); (iii) EVENIF
CONVERGEONE IS INFORMED IN ADVANCE OF THE POSSIBLITY OF SUCH DAMAGES OCCURRING AND EVEN IF SUCH DAMAGES WERE FORESEEABLE; AND (iv)
EVEN IF CUSTOMER’S REMEDIES FAIL OF THEIR ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. THIS LIMITAITON IS SEPARATEAND INDEPENDENT OF ANY OTHER REMEDY
LIMITATIONS AND SHALL NOT FAIL IF SUCH OTHER LIMITATION ORREMEDY FAILS. IF APPLICABLE LAW LIMITS THE APPLICATION OF THE PROVISIONS
HEREIN, CONVERGEONE'S LIABILITY WILL BE LIMITED TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMISSIBLE, THESE PROVISIONS WILL NOT CREATE ANY THIRD ~PARTY
BENEFICIARY RIGHTS OR BENEFITS TO PARTIES OTHER THAN CUSTOMER. ’ :

ACCEPTED BY:

BUYER: DATE: . SELLER: DATE:

TITLE: TITLE:.




] heA W T E AAG 20 GG

o

Solution Quote

Page #:
Documents #:

Solution Name:

Customer:

30of5

OP-000598741
$0-000659150

ConvergeOne E911 Managed
Services: FY July 1 2021-
June 30 2022 Contract
196676

Torrance County 911 Central
Dispatch Center

| #[ttern Numbes

ended Price]

Renewal Coverage 07/01/21 - 06/30/22

1 04000-68005-
RNWL

2 809800-35120

3 SS-OPRVSSL-1Y

| 4809800-35110

© 504000-00176

6 SA-MSG-ALSL-1Y

© 7800800-41005

© 8.809800-41005

R4 ACT VIEWSW SPT IYR

V-SVR BASIC RNWL SPT 1YR -

Comment: Comment: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT
Statewide Price Agreement No, 00-00000-19-00027AB

Comment: Comment: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT
Statewide Price Agreement No. 00-00000-19-00027AB

" CUSTOM EXTENDED SUPPORT - 3RD YEAR

Comment: Comment: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT
Statewide Price Agreement No, 00-00000-19-00027AB

SPTVPRIME 1YR B
Comment: Comment: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT
Statewide Price Agreement No. 00-00000-19-00027AB
Comment: Comment: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT
Statewide Price Agreement No. 00-00000-19-00027AB
' SWSPTANALOG GATEWAY1YR
Comment: Comment: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT
Statewide Price Agreement No. 00-00000-19-00027AB
'SPTAURORASTD YR
Comment: Comment: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT
Statewide Price Agreement No. 00-00000-19-00027AB
CUSTOM EXTENDED SUPPORT - 3RD YEAR o B
_ Comment: Comment: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT
Statewide Price Agreement No. 00-00000-19-00027AB

2 $111.76 §223.52
1 yme eme

6 fBs s

6 $nuis §1,37.08
Y T ams
6§17t 86826

R 113 C$117.65  $13,204.45
T $117.65  §83.55

Renewal Coverage 07/01/21 -06/30/22 Subtotal: $24,939,22

Total: $24,939.22



ALY ARE LY LR ILT

Page #: 4 of 5

Documents #: OP-000598741
S0-000659150

Solution Name: ConvergeOne E911 Managed
Services: FY July 1 2021-
June 30 2022 Contract

196676
Customer: Torrance County 911 Central
Dispatch Center
e 24x7 Monitoring of the E911 system
e 24x7 Unlimited Call-In Support
¢  24x7 Unlimited Onsite Support
e 24x7 Customer Portal Access for Trouble Tickets
«  Monthly Reporting on the E911 systems
s  Monthly Preventative Maintenance visits
Summary Maintenance Services Order Form
Customer: Torrance County 911 Central Dispatch Center Quote #: S0-000659150

Bill To Address: 407 Galisteo St Quote Date: 5/25/2021

Rm 202 ) . -

Bataan Memorial Bldg Quote Valid Until: 7/24/2021

Attn: Stephen Weinkauf Master Maintenance Agreement #:

. Santa Fe, NM 87501
Customer ID: VTWTORCOU0001
) Contact: Stephen Weinkauf
Contact Phone: 505-827-8060

National Account Brian Kelley
Manager:

Region: Mountain States
Customer PO:

Email: bkelley@convergeone.com

5
L SRSV g : £
753 Salt Missions Trl, PO Box 449, McIntosh, NM, 87032-0449

$70,295,04

The term of this contractis for 12 months, : ) Total Annual Payment| $70,295,04
Contract Term Date: 7/1/2021-6/30/2022 . Total Value for this MSO $70,295.04
Total Annual Payment $70,295.04

For the purchase of Maintenance Services, C1 will determine the start date for the Maintenance Services upon Cl's acceptance of the applicable Order,

The pricing on this Order is based on the port and item counts provided to C1. If the actual quantities of ports that are maintained at the inception of this Order
vary by more than five percent (5%} from the port countthat had been provided to C1, and/or there is a discovery of additional items, C1 reserves the rightto
adjustthe pricing for this Order to reflect the actual quantities being maintained. :

In some cases, the Maintenance Services ordered hereunder (and the associated billing) may commence during the applicable Product warranty period, C1, at

its discretion, may perform a true-up on a quarterly basis to reconcile future billing on any items that have been added (activated) or removed (deactivated)
during the previous period,



VI BV ED LAEE P FAD

Page #: 5 of 5

Documents #: OP-000598741
S0-000659150

Solution Name: ConvergeOne E911 Managed
Services: FY July 1 2021-
June 30 2022 Contract
196676

Customer: Torrance County 911 Central
Dispatch Center’

Supported Site Details Appendix

Customer Torrance County 911 Central Dispatch Quote # - §0-000659150
Center _
Customer ID VTWTORCOU0001 Quote Date 5/25/2021

This Supported Site Details Appendix provides an itemized list of the Products and Price for each Supported Site included
in the Summary Maintenance Services Order Form. Each Supported Site detall below is considered a separate Order Form
under the Agreement.

$70,295.04
PO Box 449, Mclntosh,
NM, 87032-0449

1 |VIWHCH-MON-|C1 E911 Monitoring Services $70,295.04 $70,295.04

911 Comment: INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT

Statewide Price Agreement No. 00-
00000-19-00027AB

Contract Term Date:
7/1/2021-6/30/2022

Total Annual Price $70,295.04
Total Value for Site $70,295.04
Total Annual Price $70,295.04




Agenda Item
No. 12-D



Torrance County

Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan

Effective through June 30, 2023

205 South Ninth St, Estancia, NM 87016, (505) 544-4700



INTRODUCTION

Torrance County (County) is a recipient of federal grant funds from the Department of Justice
under the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act (Act) of 1968, as amended. Funds are
made available, in part, to improve and strengthen local law enforcement to effectively control
crime. Torrance County, as a recipient of Justice Department funding, is obligated to prepare a
comprehensive, biennial Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (Plan) pursuant to 28 C.F.R. §
42.301 et seq. The purpose of the Plan is to ensure full and equal opportunity for men and
women in the workplace regardless of sex, race or national origin.

The Plan identifies areas within the workforce of Torrance County where women and minorities
are under-represented when compared to the labor market countywide.  Statements
summarizing existing employment policies and practices are included. The Plan includes new
goals and objectives for the future with suggestions for achieving greater diversity in the
workforce by offering changes or enhancements to recruitment and retention efforts to
encourage employment of women and minorities within Torrance County.

Torrance County is committed to continued recruitment and retention efforts that reflect the
diversity of the population of Torrance County. The County’s commitment includes improving
the workforce and strengthening local law enforcement efforts through equal employment
opportunity regardless of sex, race or national origin.

19



OVERVIEW

Torrance County is a political subdivision of the state of New Mexico and was formally
recognized by the New Mexico state legislature in 1903. As a political subdivision, Torrance
County derives its authority from the New Mexico Constitution and laws adopted by the
legislature of the State of New Mexico. The laws provide the framework for county
government, describe the powers conferred on the county and its various elected officials, and
specify the functions of the county government and each elected official. The general governing
authority of Torrance County is delegated to a board of county commissioners created to ensure
the safety, health, and prosperity of its citizens.

Torrance County Board of County Commissioners adopted the Torrance County Personnel
Ordinance, establishing a system to regulate all employee relations. The purpose of the system
is to ensure that all decisions affecting the employment relationship are based on an individual’s
skills, abilities, experience, and performance to ensure fair treatment and equal opportunity in
all aspects of the employment relationship. The Personnel Ordinance of Torrance County,
expressly prohibits discrimination based upon any legally protected status.

The human resources director has been delegated the authority to establish, implement, and
administer the Personnel Ordinance under the supervision of the County Manager. The
ordinance and corresponding human resource policies and procedures apply to all classified and
unclassified employees.

23



EEO POLICY STATEMENTS
Torrance County’s Equal Opportunity Policy Statement

Torrance County makes every effort and takes every opportunity to articulate its equal
employment opportunity policy statements to applicants, employees, and the general public
through various publications available in print and electronically.

The equal opportunity policy statement included in the Personnel Ordinance adopted by
Torrance County Board of County Commissioners is as follows:

Equal Employment Opportunity Policy:

Individuals will not be discriminated against on the basis of race, age, religion, sexual
orientation, color, national origin, ancestry, gender, gender identity, physical or mental
disability or medical condition, or any other legally protected status, in consideration for
employment, duration of employment, compensation, terms, conditions, or privileges of
employment by Torrance County.

Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance:

Torrance County has committed itself to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act
which protects qualified individuals with disabilities from discrimination in job application
procedures, hiring, firing, advancement, compensation, job training, and other terms, conditions
and privileges of employment,

Discrimination and Harassment Including Sexual Harassment:

Torrance County strictly prohibits any form of unlawful discrimination based on race, color,
religion, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, national origin, age, disability, political
affiliation or lack thereof, or any other status. Improper interference with the ability of the
County’s employees to perform their expected job duties will not be tolerated. The County
endeavors to maintain an environment that is free from all forms of discrimination, including
harassment.

A. Discriminatory practices include but are not limited to:

1. Discrimination on the basis of race, religion, gender, sexual orientation,
gender identity, color, ancestry, serious medical condition, national origin, age,
and/or disability. Harassment is a form of discrimination.

2. Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to: requests for sexual favors,
unwelcome sexual advances and other non-verbal, verbal or physical conduct of
a sexual nature that creates a hostile environment for persons of either gender,
sex-oriented verbal kidding, teasing, jokes, comments, display of sexually

23



suggestive objects or pictures, physical contact such as hugging, patting, or
brushing up against another’s body.

3. A hostile environment is a result of severe or pervasive harassment that
substantially interferes with an individual’s work performance. The harassment
must have been unwelcome and offensive to the victim and of a nature that
would be offensive to the reasonable person.

4. The hostile-environment standard applies to harassment on the basis of race,
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, color, ancestry, serious medical
condition, national origin, age, or disability.

5. Examples of harassing conduct include, but are not limited to:
a. Sexual harassment: Gender-based jokes or comments.

b. Race or national-origin harassment: Epithets, slurs, or negative
stereotypical comments, jokes or cartoons

c. Age harassment: Remarks or jokes relating to a person’s age.

d. Disability harassment: Disparaging remarks, slurs or jokes relating to a
person’s physical or mental disability.

e. Religious harassment: Coercion of employee participation in religious
activities, verbal attacks or religious slurs,

f. Employment decisions based on stereotypes or assumptions about the
abilities, traits, or performance of individuals of a certain sex, race,
religion, sexual orientation or ethnic group, or individuals with
disabilities.

g. Denying employment opportunities to a person because of marriage to,
or association with, an individual of a particular race, religion, sexual
orientation, national origin, or an individual with a disability.

h. Retaliation against an employee who takes one of the following
actions: filing a complaint of discrimination, participating in a
discrimination investigation, opposing discriminatory practices or
exercising any other right under federal or state anti-discrimination laws.
The County will not tolerate employment-based retaliation and any
violation should be reported immediately.

B. Conduct prohibited by this policy is unacceptable in the workplace and in any work-

related setting outside the workplace, such as during County business trips, business
meetings, and business-related social events.

23



7.5 Discrimination and Harassment Procedures:

The Human Resources Department shall be responsible for formally notifying all employees,
Department Heads, Elected Officials and volunteers, of the discrimination and harassment
policy. The Human Resources Department shall ensure that training on discrimination is
periodically conducted, and that all employees and volunteers receive this training. Such
training shall be offered to both elected and appointed officials.

A,

The County Manager, the Deputy County Manager, the Human Resources Director,
Department Heads, managers and supervisors are tresponsible for creating a
productive work environment in which discrimination, offensive conduct and
harassment are not tolerated. They are responsible for taking immediate and
appropriate corrective action in response to any confirmed violation of this policy
and for assuring that no reprisals are taken against those who complain or participate
in an investigation or oppose discriminatory conduct.

An employee or volunteer who feels they have been subjected to any harassment or
believes that they have been treated in an unlawful, discriminatory manner should
report the incident promptly to the supervisor, Department Head, the Human
Resources Department, the County Attorney, the County Manager, or the Deputy
County Manager. Every effort shall be made to resolve the complaint at the lowest
level practicable. The complaint will be kept confidential to the extent possible given
the circumstances and parameters of investigation permitted by law.

All employees, including supervisors, managers or directors, who become aware of
possible discrimination of any employee, either as a result of having received a
complaint directly from the employee or from personal observations, shall promptly
report the situation to a Department Head, the Human Resources Director, the
County Attorney, the Deputy County Manager or County Manager within two (2)
business days.

The individual who receives a complaint of discrimination shall request that the
employee complete the County’s Internal EEO Complaint Form or shall document
the complaint if the employee refuses or is unable to complete the form. A copy of
the completed Internal EEO Complaint Form shall be provided to the complaining
employee and to the Human Resources Department within two (2) business days of
the employee’s complaint,

The County is committed to investigate each complaint and to take immediate
corrective action. The County Manager is responsible for the enforcement of these
policies. The Human Resources Department shall provide guidance and assistance
during the investigative process.

At no time shall the alleged offender assist in conducting the investigation.

23



G.

K.

The County Manager shall be responsible for appointing appropriate individuals to
thoroughly investigate, document and recommend appropriate corrective action. The
County Manager shall assure that all complaints are resolved promptly and
effectively.

The investigation shall begin as soon as possible, preferably within five (5) business
days of the investigator’s receipt of any discrimination complaint and shall be
completed as promptly as possible given the scope and complexity of the particular
complaint.

The investigator shall consider whether it is appropriate to recommend that the
alleged offender be placed on administrative leave pending the outcome of the
investigation.

The complainant and witnesses shall be reminded of the County’s prohibition
against retaliation.

The investigator shall ask the complainant and witnesses not only about the alleged
discrimination but also about any efforts by the interviewee to complain about the
alleged discrimination and the responses, if any, of those who received such
complaint(s). If it is determined that any person with authority to receive such
complaint(s) failed to ensure that such complaint(s) were documented and forwarded
to the Human Resources Department, that individual shall be subject to appropriate
disciplinary action.

The results of all investigations of discrimination shall be forwarded to and reviewed
by the County Attorney and Human Resources Department within ten (10) business
days of the conclusion of the investigation. The County Attorney and Human
Resources Department shall report the results of its review and any recommendation
to the County Manager.

. If the County Manager determines that an employee has discriminated against or

harassed another individual, prompt, appropriate disciplinary action will be taken, up
to and including termination of employment.

A closure interview shall be conducted with the complainant within ten (10) business
days of the issuance of the investigative report informing the complainant of the
results of the investigation and, where appropriate, that action will be or has been
taken. The department head(s) of the complainant and alleged offender will be
informed of the results of the investigation.

0. No retaliation of any kind shall be taken against an employee who has asserted a

complaint or who has reported or assisted in the investigation of a complaint of
discrimination or harassment. If retaliation takes place this violation will lead to
disciplinary action up to and including termination.

23



P. If after the investigation of any complaint, if it is determined that the complaint is
not verifiable and was not made in good faith or that an employee has provided false
information regarding the complaint, disciplinary action may be taken against the
complainant or any employee who gave false information, up to and including
termination.

Q. Nothing in this policy precludes an employee from making a report to the State of
New Mexico Department of Human Rights or the Federal Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission at any time.

U.S. Equal Employment New Mexico Human Rights
Opportunity Commission 505 Commission 1596 Pacheco Street,
Marquette Ave., NW Suite 103 Santa Fe, NM 87505
Albuquerque, NM 87102 (800) (505) 827-6838
669-6820

23



Torrance County Online Application Equal Employment Opportunity Policy Statement

Torrance County notifies all applicants of its commitment to equal employment opportunity.
The information is located on the main page of the online employment application as follows:

Torrance County is committed to effective, efficient and responsible public policy, excellent
public service, courteous public contact, sensitivity to cultural beliefs and preservation of their
heritage, providing quality services as required by law or mandated by the public, enhancing the
health, safety and general well-being of the citizens of Torrance County and conducting county
operations in a legal, ethical and fair manner.

Torrance County is committed to providing equal opportunity employment to applicants and
employees without regard to race, religion, creed, age, sex, height, weight, marital status,
disability unrelated to an individual’s ability to perform adequately, national origin, citizenship,
ancestry, or any other characteristic protected by law.

We conform to all the laws, statutes, and regulations concerning equal employment
opportunities and affirmative action. We strongly encourage women, minorities, individuals
with disabilities and veterans to apply to all of our job openings. We are an equal opportunity
employer and all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard
to race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin, age,
disability status, Genetic Information & Testing, Family & Medical Leave, protected veteran
status, or any other characteristic protected by law.

We prohibit Retaliation against individuals who bring forth any complaint, orally or in writing,
to the employer or the government, or against any individuals who assist or participate in the
investigation of any complaint or otherwise oppose discrimination.

Torrance County’s Employment Policies and Practices

Torrance County has compiled the following information to satisfy the Department of Justice,
Office of Justice Programs’ reporting requirements that each grant recipient provide information
about its existing employment policies and practices to ensure equal opportunity for women and
minorities.

The Torrance County Human Resources Policies and Procedures manual is a comprehensive
document that provides the framework within which to make human resource decisions
consistently and equitably according to the established personnel ordinance without regard to
race, religion, sex, national origin, or color. The ordinance describes and outlines the
organization’s expectations, policies, procedures, rules of conduct, and benefits.

The information below summarizes Torrance County’s policy statements affecting the
employment relationship.

23



Pre-Employment Process

Torrance County has clarified its pre-employment processes in the personnel ordinance in
Section V, Recruitment and Selection. The policy has been established to ensure fair and non-
discriminatory hiring practices from recruitment through the selection and hiring process.
Sections from the Torrance County Personnel Ordinance are as follows:

Recruitment Posting Procedure:

Whenever filling a vacant position, the Department Head must submit a "Request to Hire" form
to the Human Resource Director. Within two (2) business days of receipt of the request, the
Human Resource Director shall seek approval of the County Manager and post the opening
within County offices. At the same time that the position is posted within the County, the
position shall be posted on the County’s public website and shall also be advertised at least once
in the local newspaper.

Permission for Transfer:

No county employee or department head can deny another county employee who is not the
subject of a disciplinary action, permission to apply for a job vacancy in any other county office
or department for which the employee is qualified. Probationary employees are not eligible for
transfer.

Applicant Responsibility:

A. Submission of Applications: Applications for employment shall be accepted in the
County Manager’s Office during normal business hours. Applicants shall be
considered for positions for which they have applied and are qualified. Applications
must be submitted on the employment application form provided by the county with
any other applicable documents attached.

B. Proof of Qualification: The applicant is responsible for furnishing proof of
qualifications or possession of any license, certification, or degree when these
requirements are necessary and set forth in the job description.

C. Immigration Act Compliance: The applicant is responsible for furnishing proof of
identification and right to work in accordance with the Immigration Reform and
Control Act of 1986. If the applicant cannot furnish the required documentation, then
the applicant is ineligible for work.

D. Certification: The applicant is responsible for signing the employment application
and certifying as to the truth of all statements made in the application.

E. Referral to Department Head: The Human Resource Director will deliver
applications to the department heads when the required advertising time has expired.

23



F. Testing: The County may require an applicant to submit to testing for certain bona
fide occupational qualifications.

G. Reasonable Accommodations for Disabilities Applicants under consideration for
employment shall disclose any reasonable accommodations required to enable them
to perform the duties of the job for which they are applying.

Selection:

Selection shall be made by a hiring board and will be based on the following: skills, educational
background, experience, personal interview, references, and results of pre-employment
examinations.

A. Employment Reference Checks: References provided by the applicant shall be
checked by the Human Resource Director prior to hiring. Applicants will be asked to
sign a written authorization on the employment application for the county to check
references. Only those applicants who sign this written authorization will be
considered for the position for which they have applied.

B. Driver’s License Checks: All applicants are subject to a motor vehicle check to
verify that they have a valid New Mexico driver’s license. If the applicant has an out
of state driver’s license, they must obtain a New Mexico driver’s license within
ninety (90) days of employment with the County. If an applicant’s driver’s license is
suspended, revoked or not valid for any reason, they shall not be considered for
County employment.

C. Criminal History Check: All applicants selected for interview will be asked to sign
a written authorization for the County to conduct a criminal history check. Any
applicant who refuses to sign the written authorization shall not be considered for
employment with the County. If the criminal history check reveals a felony or
misdemeanor conviction as described in NMSA 1978, 28-2-1 or 10-1-3, et seq., the
applicant is ineligible for hire with the County.

D. Physical Examinations and Drug Testing: Applicants to whom positions have
been offered shall be required to undergo medical examinations, which may include
urinalysis, blood testing, and radiographic examination. Drug testing will be done
for all new hires. Employment medical examinations must be completed and
reviewed before the employee can report to work. Offers of employment are
contingent upon the physician's statement that the individual can perform the
assigned duties and tasks of that position and is drug free. The Human Resource
Director will arrange all physical and drug testing appointments. Employment
medical examinations will be paid for by the County. The County Manager may
approve a conditional hire of an applicant pending the results of the physical and
drug test in exceptional circumstances.

23



E. Law Enforcement Entrance Exam: All applicants for a law enforcement position
must successfully complete the law enforcement entrance exam to be considered for
employment with the County. The law enforcement entrance exam consists of a
physical agility test, written exam, and interviews by the hiring board.

Ineligibility for Hire or Rehire:
An applicant shall be considered ineligible for hire or rehire by Torrance County if the
applicant:

A. Made any false statement or omission on the employment application.

B. Unable to furnish proof of identification and right to work as defined by section
5.3(C).

C. Refused to sign authorization for reference checks.

D. Not met the requirements of the position.

E. Failed to complete pre-employment examinations or other requirements as directed
by the County.

F. Not met the criteria for insurance or bonding as required by County or State law.

G. Been dismissed from County service as a result of a disciplinary measure.

H. Not been certified by a physician that the applicant can perform the physical
requirements of the position.

L. Does not have a valid New Mexico driver’s license as described in section 5.4(B)

J. Failed to provide a written two week notice of resignation from a previous County
position or did not otherwise leave previous County employment in good standing, The
County Manager may waive the two (2) week notice requirement.

K. Been convicted of a felony as described in NMSA 1978, 28-2-1, et seq. (1987 Repl.
Pamp.) or convicted of a felony or infamous crime as defined in NMSA 1978, 10-1-3.

L. The above list is not necessarily exclusive, and may not include all of the reasons that
would make an applicant ineligible for hire or rehire.

Ineligibility of Applicants for Dispatch or Sheriff’s Department:

No person under indictment, convicted of a felony or involved in a drug, alcohol or domestic
violence related incident, shall be eligible for employment in a dispatch or law enforcement
position.

Appointed Employee:

Appointed employees are appointed by and serve at the pleasure of their respective elected
official(s), and include but are not limited to: the Chief Deputy appointed by the County
Assessor, Clerk, and Treasurer; the Undersheriff and the Executive Secretary appointed by the
Sheriff; the County Manager, Fire Chief, and the County Attorney appointed by the County
Commission; the Deputy County Manager appointed by the County Manager with Commission
concurrence. All appointed employees shall work a minimum of forty (40) hours per week and
shall submit bi-weekly timesheets.

23



Promotion:

County employees are encouraged to take advantage of promotional opportunities and apply for
higher paying positions for which they qualify. Probationary employees are not eligible for
promotions until they have successfully completed their probation period.

Demotion:

An employee may be demoted to a vacant position for which the employee is qualified when the
employee would otherwise be terminated because the employee's position is being abolished
due to the lack of funds or lack of work and there are no appropriate vacancies at the same level;
when the employee does not possess the necessary ability to render satisfactory performances in
the position presently held; or when the employee voluntarily requests such a demotion.
Demoted employees will receive a reduction in pay. Only a regular employee demoted due to an
inability to render satisfactory performance in the position presently held is entitled to grievance
proceedings.

Transfer: Employees may be moved from one position to another at the same rate of pay either
voluntarily or involuntarily. An employee may be transferred if it is in the best interest of the
County.

Job Classification:

Under Torrance County’s classification plan, all employment positions are defined in a job
description. Bach job description includes the position’s purpose, essential functions,
performance requirements, and minimum qualifications. Job descriptions ensure job equity
among positions throughout Torrance County and create a basis from which to regulate
performance fairly and consistently.

Performance Management and Discipline

Torrance County encourages employees and supervisors to communicate regularly regarding
work performance to address any issues consistently and in a timely and effective fashion.
Encouraging a pro-active approach to performance management offers supervisors and
employees the opportunity to resolve performance deficiencies informally at the lowest level
possible through coaching, counseling, and improvement plans before initiating more formal
disciplinary action. If informal department level efforts to correct performance deficiencies are
unsuccessful, supervisors are granted the authority, with department head approval, to
administer appropriate discipline using a positive, progressive-discipline process as a cotrective
measure. All formal disciplinary actions are reviewed by the human resources department prior
to imposition.

23



Reduction-In-Force:

If it is necessary for the County to reduce the number of county employees because of lack of
funds or lack of work, the department head shall make the determination of the necessity for
layoffs. The reduction will occur in the following manner:

A. Part-Time Part-time, temporary, term and probationary employees will be laid off
before regular full-time employees unless they are filling positions that require
specific skills and knowledge.

B. Regular Full-Time Lay off of regular employees shall be determined by the
department head, based on the employees’ suitability for the jobs remaining, ability
to perform available work, past job performance, and length of service with the
County.

C. Notification Employees to be laid off shall be notified at any time during a pay
period and shall be allowed to work through the end of that regular pay period or
receive pay to the end of that period.

D. Accrued Annual Leave Accrued annual leave shall be paid no later than the fifth
(5th) day after the employee’s final day of employment.

E. Permanent Layoff An employee on permanent layoff must reapply to be considered
for future employment.

F. Layoff Return to Work A laid-off employee returning to County employment
within six months of lay off will not serve a probationary period (unless the
employee did not previously complete his probationary period while previously
employed by the County) or undergo a medical examination and drug testing if hired
to the same position.

Employment Separation

Torrance County’s policy and procedure for an employment separation action, whether
voluntary or involuntary, provides for a fair and orderly exit process and identifies the rights
and obligations of both the separating employee and Torrance County pursuant to applicable
federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

Under Torrance County policy, a department head may recommend termination of an employee.
The offense and rationale for the decision to terminate must be documented and reviewed and
approved by human resources. An employee subject to termination must be provided written
notice of the intent to terminate. An employee who has completed the requisite probationary
period may appeal the action through the established grievance procedure.

23



Leave Practices

Torrance County adheres to all applicable federal and state leave requirements and provides
various leave and holiday benefits to eligible employees. All mandatory and discretionary leave
options are detailed in Section XI of the Torrance County Personnel Ordinance. All applicable
federal and state leave law requirements remain applicable under the agreements.

Compensation Plan

Torrance County’s compensation plan operates in conjunction with its classification plan to
ensure equitable salaries among positions within the organization. The objectives of the
compensation plan are to provide market-competitive wages in an equitable, fiscally-
responsible manner to attract and retain highly-qualified employees. The human resources
department works collaboratively with the department head of each area to attract and retain
qualified and experienced applicants and staff.

SUMMARY

Employment policies created by Torrance County follow the established guidelines of personnel
ordinance established by the Torrance County Board of County Commissioners. Great care is
taken to treat each employment relationship fairly and equitably without regard to race, religion,
sex, national origin, or color. All policies, practices, and agreements are subject to modification
to comport with federal and state laws and operational needs. Modifications are carefully
reviewed to ensure continued equal opportunity for all employees.

23



TORRANCE COUNTY WORKFORCE ANALYSIS
Introduction

Torrance County has compiled the following information to satisfy the Department of Justice,
Office of Justice Programs’ reporting requirements that each grant recipient provide workforce
data demonstrating the diversity of its workforce.

The workforce analysis is a comparison of the workforce of Torrance County as an employer to
the workforce in Torrance County. The data is organized according to the U.S. Census Bureau’s
eight job categories then cross-classified by sex and race. The analysis shows the present
representation of women and minorities in all job categories; and conversely, where women and
minorities are under-represented. The results identify specific areas of focus for future
recruitment and retention activities.

For reporting purposes, all job descriptions for the Torrance County positions have been
categorized according to the eight major job categories defined by the U.S. Census Bureau as
follows: (1) Officials and Administrators, (2) Professionals, (3) Technicians, (4) Protective
Services: Sworn, (5) Protective Services: Non-Sworn, (6) Administrative Support, (7) Skilled
Craft Workers, and (8) Service Maintenance. A brief explanation of the job categories follows.

Officials and Administrators set broad policies, exercise overall
responsibility for execution of these policies, or direct individual departments
or special phases of the agency's operations, or provide specialized
consultation on a regional, district or area basis.

Professionals require specialized and theoretical knowledge which is usually
acquired through college training or through work experience and other
training which provides comparable knowledge.

Technicians require a combination of basic scientific or technical knowledge
and manual skill which can be obtained through specialized post-secondary
school education or through equivalent on-the-job training.

Protective Services: Sworn are entrusted with public safety, security, and
protection from destructive forces.

Protective Services: Non-Sworn perform or support a specific public safety
function.

Administrative Support (including Clerical) is responsible for internal and
external communication, recording and retrieving data and/or information, and

other paperwork required in an office.

Skilled Craft Workers perform jobs which require special manual skill and a
thorough and comprehensive knowledge of the process involved in the work

23



which is acquired through on-the-job training and experience or through
apprenticeship or other formal training programs.

Service-Maintenance duties result in or contribute to the comfort,
convenience, hygiene or safety of the general public or which contribute to the
upkeep and care of buildings, facilities or grounds of public property. Workers
in this group may operate machinery.®’

Data Sets

Workforce data voluntarily collected from the part-time and full-time employees of Torrance
County was compiled and classified according to the U.S. Census Bureau’s eight job categories
then cross-classified by sex and race. Elected and appointed officials, as well as, seasonal
workers were excluded from the data set.

Torrance County labor market data was used for the comparative study. The labor market was
defined using the parameters identified by the Office of Justice Programs. Consideration was
also given to the local recruitment efforts and current employee demographics of Torrance
County. Labor market data was automatically retrieved from the U.S. Census Bureau using the
Office of Justice Program’s online system and was organized and reported in the same manner
as the workforce data compiled for Torrance County.

Workforce Analysis

Workforce data from Torrance County (TC) was compared to the Torrance County labor market
to create a workforce analysis. The analysis produced two sets of results. The numerical result
in each individual race category represents the sum of individuals within each study who

identify with that particular race. The corresponding percent shows how the race is represented

Torrance County 2019, ACS American Community Survey of the U.S. Census Bureau

Population 15,519
Race
White 8488
Black or African American 121
American Indian and Alaska Native 47
Asian 23
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander 0
2+ races 131
Hispanic or Latino 6687
15497
Veteran population 1,590

23



6T

%0L°0 %0 %0S°0 %020 %020 %05 7T %0T'T %020 %0Z°0 %020 %08°'TC  |%0C°SE %0C'8S 1ua213d Awuno) souello]
ST 0 0T 14 14 SIE 09s S¢ 14 14 14 Sy S9L 99¢T JaquinN AJuno) soueliol
%00°0 %000 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %EE'EE %00°0 %000 %00°0 %00°0 %L9°9T  |%00°0S %.£9°99 U213 $4e1s Ayunod
0 0 0 (0] 0 4 0 (0] 0 0 0 T € 14 14815 Ayunod
@dueu3juielA] 1SS
%0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %02°C %07'0 %0 %06°0 %0v°0 %0T°6E  |%0L'0S %07'T6 Jua013d Ayuno) aouello]
0 0 0 0 0 144 % 0 0T 4 (047 SvS €86 JaquinN Auno) aouelio]
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %000 %000 %00°0 %00°0 %YT'L %000 %6C'19 | %LS8C %00°00T Ju2243d 44eas Auno)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 T 0 6 12 T 4eis Aiunop
e pa|ns
%0€°0 %0 %0€°0 %0LT %0€°0 %09°CC %1 %0 %0€°0 %0 %08°L %06°6T %0E'6C U134 Aluno) aduewol
4 0 14 S¢ 14 SEE ST 0 14 0 STT S6¢ EEV JaquinN Ayuno) ssueliof
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %000 %000 %SC'TE %000 %ET'E %000 %ET'E %ET'E %ET'8C %0S°LE 1U3213d JJe1s Ajunod
0 0 0 (o] 0 (0]8 0 T 0 T T 6 [4% Heis Ajunod
uoddng aniessiuiwpy
%0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0t 1Uud2439d Ayuno) aduello]
0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 0 0 I 0 7 JlaquinN Aluno) soueldo]
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %000 %000 %000 %00°0 %00°0 %000 %00°0 %00°0 %00°08 %0008 1U3213d JJe1s Ayunod
(0] 0 0 0 0 0 (0] 0 0 0 0 14 7 4e1s Ajunop
UJOMS-UON S3JINAIBS 9AI109104d
%0 %0 %0 %09°T %0 %0C’€ %0 %0 %0 %Y %81 %YS %09°LL 1ua213d Awuno) souelso]
(6} 0 0 14 0 8 0 0 0 0T St SET V6T JaquinN Ayuno) souelio]
%000 %000 %00°0 %00°0 %000 %CS'6 %000 %000 %00°0 %000 %EE'EE | %BETS %1L°S8 U034 4e1s Aluno)
0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 L TT ST 44e1S Ayunod
UIOMS S3IINIBS DAI1D304d
%0 %0 %0 %0T°C %0 %09°CC %0 %0 %0T°C %0T°S %0C°L %0S°0C %06 7€ 1Ud219d Ayuno) aduero]
0 0 0 I 0 77 (0] 2 14 0T T [0}74 39 JaquinN Axuno) aouello]
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1u2.8d Jje1s Ayuno)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 44e1s Ayunod
suepuyI9
%C %00 %0 %1 %0 %0E'TT %0%7°0 %1 %070 %0 %0"L %0S'CE %01 ¢y Ju043d Ayuno) sduelio]
0C 14 0 0T 0 STT 14 (o] 4 0 SL 0EE VX474 Jagunn Aluno) sduelo]
%000 %000 %00°0 %69°L %00°0 %80°€EC %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %000 %69°L %9Y"8€ %ST9Y 1U3243d 4je1s Aunod
0 0 0 T 0 € 0 0 0 0 T S 9 44e1s Ajunod
S|euoIssaj0.d
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %000 %00°0 %0L'TT %00°T %000 %00°0 %00°0 %0C°ST  |%0L'81 %0759 1U243d Ayuno) souelo]
0 0 0 0 0 GIT 0T 0 0 0 0ST (05174 779 Jaquinn Ayuno) souelol
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %000 %EE'EE %000 %00°0 %000 %000 %0007 |%09°9¢ %0009 1UB2J3d JJe1s Ayunod
0 0 0 0 0 S 0 0 0 0 9 4 6 44e1s Ajuno)
ulwpy/s|epyo
saloda3e] qor

saoes+Z| IdO/HN uelsy[  NvV/IV vv/g /H S90B1+C ueisy|  NV/IV vv/4 /H aHYM| N [e3oL

98t7C 132404 JOQe| U1/81/8S :|e10} +9T d|eWw 8TYE 19010} JOQe| UI/LE/9 :|RI0} +9T B[EIN

eleqg Ajuno) aouello]

uosuedwo) sisAjeuy 9240410




TORRANCE COUNTY RECRUITING UNDER-REPRESENTED GROUPS

Torrance County has compiled the following information to satisfy the Department of Justice,
Office of Justice Programs’ reporting requirements that each grant recipient analyze
components of its employment process to demonstrate the diversity within the employment
process.

The chart shows a complete representation of the applications received from individuals who
self-identified according to gender and race. The chart also depicts the number of individuals
hired in each category according to gender and race. A discussion of the applications submitted
by members of the under-represented groups follows.

For the relevant time period, Torrance County posted a total of 5 job announcements in the
Protective Services: Sworn category. Torrance County accepted 49 applications in response to
the job announcements. Eighteen applications (36.7%) were submitted by individuals who self-
identified as Hispanic or Latino which ranked second for the number of applications accepted
behind White Male Applicants (55.1%).

For the relevant time period, Torrance County posted a total of 3 job announcements in the
Protective Services: Non-Sworn category. Torrance County accepted 10 applications in
response to the job announcements. Three applicants (30%) were submitted by individuals who
self-identified as Hispanic or Latino Male which ranked second for the number of applicants
accepted behind White Male applicants (70%).

For the relevant time period, Torrance County posted a total of 18 job announcements in the
Administrative Support category. Torrance County accepted 98 applications in response to the
job announcements. Forty-one applicants (41.8%) were submitted by individuals who self-
identified as Hispanic or Latino Female which ranked first for the number of applicants
followed by White female applicants (29.6%).

19



6T

S90BY 47 = SA0BY +C

(ouneT 10 oruedsiy 10N ) 19pUB|S] d1J198d 12Y)(Q) 10 UBIIEMEH 9ATIEN — [JO/HN
(ouneT 10 owuedsIH J0N) UBISY = UBISY

9ANEN BYSE[Y 10 UBIPU] UBOLIDWY = NV/IV

(ounje 10 owedsiy 10N) UBDLIDUIY UBDLIFY 10 Yor[g = VYV or[g

ourneT 10 oredsiH = /H

(ouneT 10 owedsiH J0N) ONYM = 9NYM

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of o 0 ddUBURLUIBI BDINIDS
Al Al Al
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| €/s| /e 1je1D pa||1NS
v
0/t 0 0| 0/¢ o[|oT/tv| /6T 0 0/¢€ of 1/1 0| o/s| /9t voddng aAnessiulwpy
Al Al
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| T/€| €/L| uIMOS UON :S3J1AISS DAI1I9104d
A A Al
0 0 0 0 ol 1/¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0/T|1/81| o0/L¢ UJOMS :SI1AIBS DAI1D9104d
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0ol o 0 suepluyas)
Al A Al A Al Al A
0 0 0| o/1 0| T/T 0 0 0 0 0 of o 0 s|euoissajold
Al A Al
0 0 0 0 o/t| ¢/t 0/1 0 0 0 0 of o/e] o0/t ulwpy/sieniyo
$928Y +7| 1dO/IV| IdO/HN| uBlsY| vv/¥e|g| T/H| aHum|sadey +z|exselv/Iv|1d0o/HN| ueisy|vv/xeial 1/H[ s1ym Ao3aie) qor
9lewaS dleN

veyd 033 a4id/auedijddy Ayuno) ouedlo]




TORRANCE COUNTY CORRECTIVE ACTIONS

UNDER-REPRESENTED GROUPS

Torrance County has compiled the following information to satisfy the Department of Justice, Office
of Justice Programs’ reporting requirements that each grant recipient analyze components of its

organization to determine problematic areas.

The chart represents the number and type of corrective actions processed by Torrance County for the

time period analyzed. The data indicates that there is no correlation between the seven areas of under

representation that have been identified by the Office of Justice Programs and the number and type of

corrective actions.

Torrance County Corrective Actions EEO Chart FY2021

Male

Female

Job Category White

|2- Written |1

ermination |

White

Protective Services: Non Sworn [1- Termination

- Writt

“|1- Written
1- Wr |Reprimand
~ |Reprimand

1-Suspension

19



TORRANCE COUNTY EMPLOYMENT SEPARATION
UNDER-REPRESENTED GROUPS

Torrance County has compiled the following information to satisfy the Department of Justice, Office
of Justice Programs’ reporting requirements that each grant recipient analyze components of its
organization to determine problematic areas.

The chart on the next page represents the number of employment separations processed by Torrance
County for the time period analyzed. Data for both voluntary and involuntary separations was
compiled and is provided. The data is insufficient to draw any conclusions concerning the under-
represented groups identified by the Office of Justice Programs.

Torrance County Voluntary/Involuntary Seperations FY2021
Male Female
‘ White H/L Black/AA |White H/L

Job Category

Officials/Admin

Professionals ; 1/0‘ | ‘ 1/0 2/0

Protective Services:Swo

Protective Services: Non Sowrn 2/0 0/1’ 7 1/0

Administrative Support 32 1/1

Skilled Craft 2/0

23



TORRANCE COUNTY EEO PLAN GOALS 2021 - 2023

1. Torrance County’s Human Resources and Departments must work collaboratively to ensure
adherence to established policies and practices based on Torrance County’s personnel
ordinance to ensure continued equal employment opportunity.

2. Promote a work environment that is free from all forms of discrimination and harassment.

3. Continually review tests, testing procedures, and interview questions for Protective Services
Sworn and Non-Sworn positions.

4. Provide opportunities for career development and advancement for all employees and
acknowledge the equal employment opportunity occupational job categories where all
employees, including minorities and women, continue to be underrepresented, and recommend
recruitment, retention and career development solutions to address these areas.

5. All interview panelists will be briefed on Torrance County policies, procedures, and practices
concerning the interview selection process.

23



TORRANCE COUNTY
FUTURE RECRUITMENT EFFORTS

Continue current application process through the online application system, giving everyone the
opportunity to apply for open positions within Torrance County.

Partner with state and local workforce agencies to have vacancy announcements sent to an agency
point of contact to make job seekers aware of employment opportunities with Torrance County.

Continue to reach out to applicants that have unsubmitted applications.
Improve the quality of the job descriptions for each position within Torrance County.
Continue participating in career fairs, job fairs, and other outreach events within the region.

Continue to utilize social media outlets for recruitment.

23



TORRANCE COUNTY
EEO PLAN DISSEMINATION PROCEDURES

Internal Dissemination

Upon adoption by the Torrance County Board of County Commissioners, the EEO Plan, which
includes the Workforce Analysis data will be disseminated by:

e Distributing an electronic copy of the EEO Plan to Directors, Department Heads, and Elected
Officials of Torrance County;

e Providing electronic notification to Torrance County employees of the published EEO Plan

explaining the intent, purpose and goals, and options for inspecting the document;

e Posting notices of document availability in common, well-traveled areas.

External Dissemination

Upon adoption by the Torrance County Board of County Commissioners, The EEO Plan, which
includes the EEO Utilization Report data will be:

e Recorded by the County Clerk and available for inspection;

¢ Noted on Torrance County’s website that the EEO Plan is available for inspection through the
Human Resources Department or the County Clerk’s Department;

TORRANCE COUNTY EEO PLAN POINTS OF CONTACT

County Manager
Janice Y. Barela
205 S. Ninth St
Estancia, NM 87016
(505) 544-4700

Director of Human Resources
Kristin Oliver

205 S. Ninth St

Estancia, NM 87016

(505) 544-4706

23



Agenda Item
No. 12-E



MOA# 23752
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
Between
New Mexico Department of Health
And
Torrance County

This Agreement entered into between New Mexico Department of Health (DOH) and Torrance County, the
entity providing services (Entity).

IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES

1. PURPOSE :

The purpose of this agreement is to provide continued technical assistance and financial resources for the
Cities Readiness Initiative (CRI) partners within the Albuquerque Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). The
Albuquerque MSA includes the Counties of Bernalillo, Torrance, and Sandoval, as well as the cities of
Albuquerque and Rio Rancho, and the Village of Los Lunas. The CRI is a Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC) funded program, to prepare major U.S. cities and metropolitan areas for an effective
response to a large scale public health emergency. This emergency preparedness includes readiness for the
mass distribution of CDC Strategic National Stockpile (SNS) Medical Countermeasures (MCM) within the
MSA.

2. SCOPE OF WORK**

The Entity shall perform the following work: :
Task Deliverable Due Date

Collaborate with the Department of The signature of the County, City, or On or before
Health and Cities Readiness Initiative Village representative on the Single 9/1/2021
(CRD) strategic partners to ensure that Planning Jurisdiction letter of agreement.

the CRI operates as a single planning
jurisdiction in preparation for any public
health emergency that requires the
distribution and dispensing of Medical
Countermeasures (MCM) or materiels.
Jointly plan and organize an annual Signatures on the registration/sign-in On or before
DOH/BHEM and CRI Jurisdictional rosters. A 5/31/2022
Partners Training. Topics should include
but not be limited to:
e Overall Planning Elements
¢ Management of Operations
e Local to State Request
Procedures
* Point of Dispensing (POD)
¢ Tactical communication
planning
e Public Information and
communication
e Security operations
e Inventory Management
* Distribution Operations




MOA# 23752

e Hospital and Alternate Care
Facilities Coordination
e At-risk and Functional Needs
, Planning
* Volunteer Management

Conduct quarterly call-down, assembly,
and/or activation drills that include
organizational staff identified for
medical countermeasure distribution and
dispensing operations.

Provide printed/electronic documentation
to DOH to include dates of quarterly call
down drills, call down messages, call
down rosters, and

- notification/acknowledgement for

submission on the Data Collection &
Recording System (DCARS).

On or before
5/31/2022

Perform quarterly tests of all redundant
communication systems (other than
those used in the quarterly call-downs or
activations) and networks.

Provide documentation of quarterly
communication tests with dates
performed.

On or before
5/31/2022

Demonstrate MCM Operational
Readiness-participate in an Orientation
session/s for the (ORR) Operational
Readiness Review. Led by the SNS
Coordinator guidance

Provide a dates and times of ORR
Orientation meeting/s conducted with the
SNS Coordinator/provide sign in sheet
for meeting/s

On or before
5/31/2022

Attend the annual DOH Partners in
Preparedness Conference. (PIP)

Provide copy of registration/sign-in
sheet. At least one person from partner
organization is required to attend.

On or before
5/31/2022

Participate in monthly teleconferences
to discuss infectious disease/all -
hazard/pandemic lessons
learned/jurisdictional gaps in
plans/resources/federal updates/ and
provide general communication
regarding the actions of the CRI single
planning jurisdiction.

Partners will collaborate with SNS
coordinator and MCM planner to develop
monthly agendas. Partners will be in
attendance of at least 9 of 12 regularly
scheduled monthly meetings.

SNS Coordinator will maintain monthly
roll call at meetings.

On or before
5/31/2022

Provide a revised POD plan to include
any vaccination/pandemic & Access

~ | Functional Needs (AFN) updates to the
SNS coordinator & MCM planner.

Copy of plan with revisions to BHEM
SNS Coordinator and MCM Planner

On or before
5/31/2022

** The deliverables may be modified during the contract period by mutual agreement to meet real
World emerging threats or changing federal grant requirements.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY

The administering agency is the New Mexico Department of Health (DOH)




MOA# 23752

4. COMPENSATION

A.

BUDGET:

The total amount payable to the Entity under this Agreement, including gross receipts
tax and expenses, shall not exceed ($10,000.00). This amount is a maximum and not a
guarantee that the work assigned to Entity under this Agreement to be performed shall
equal the amount stated herein. '

The DOH shall pay to the Entity in full payment for services satisfactorily performed at the
dollars ($10,000.00) BASED UPON DELIVERABLES, such compensation not to exceed
($10,000.00) (as set forth in Paragraph A) including gross receipts tax if applicable. Payment
is subject to availability of funds as appropriated by the Legislature to the DOH and to any
negotiations between the parties from year to year pursuant to Article 2, Scope of Work. All
invoices MUST BE received by the DOH no later than fifteen (15) days after the termination
of the Fiscal Year in which the services were delivered. Invoices received after such date
WILL NOT BE PAID. Invoices shall be submitted quarterly. The Entity shall submit to the
DOH at the close of each quarter a signed invoice reflecting the total allowable costs incurred
during the preceding month. No invoices will be reimbursed unless submitted within thirty
(30) days after the last day of the quarter in which services were performed.

The Entity must submit a detailed statement accounting for all services performed and
expenses incurred. If the DOH finds that the services are not acceptable, within thirty days
after the date of receipt of written notice from the Entity that payment is requested, it shall
provide the Entity a letter of exception explaining the defect or objection to the services and
outlining steps the Entity may take to provide remedial action. Upon certification by the
DOH that the services have been received and accepted, payment shall be tendered to the
Entity within thirty days after the date of acceptance. If payment is made by mail, the
payment shall be deemed tendered on the date it is postmarked. However, the DOH shall not
incur late charges, interest, or penalties for failure to make payment within the time specified
herein,

TASK
#

DELIVERABLES BUDGET FUNDING
AMOUNT SOURCE

1

Signature- Single Planning Jurisdiction letter of
agreement

$800.00 DOHBT?2213

Jointly organized Annual DOH/BHEM and CRI
Jurisdictional Partners Training-sign in sheet

$1,500.00

DOHBT2213

Quarterly call-down, assembly, and/or activation drills-
copy of results

$1,000.00

DOHBT2213

Quarterly tests of all redundant communication systems-
copy of results

$1,000.00

DOHBT2213

Participate in an Orientation session/s for the (ORR)
Operational Readiness Review w/SNS coordinator

$1,000.00

DOHBT2213

Attend the annual DOH Partners in Preparedness

' Conference. (PIP)

$1,500.00

DOHBT2213

Participate in at least 9 of 12 monthly teleconferences-roll
call maintained

$1,200.00

DOHBT2213

Provide a revised POD plan to include vaccination, AFN
and pandemic updates

$2,000.00

DOHBT2213

Total

$10,000.00




10.

MOA# 23752

PROPERTY
The parties understand and agree that property acquired under this Agreement shall be the property of

. the DOH.

- CLIENT RECORDS AND CONFIDENTIALITY

A. The Entity shall protect the confidentiality, privacy and security of all confidential
information and records and shall not release any confidential information to any other third
party without the express written authorization of the client when the record is a client record,
or the DOH.

FUNDS ACCOUNTABILITY

The Entity shall maintain detailed time and expenditure records, which indicate the date, time, nature,
and cost of services rendered during the Agreement term and retain them for a period of three (3)
years from the date of final payment under the Agreement. The records shall be subject to inspection
by the DOH, the Department of Finance and Administration and the Office of the State Auditor. The
DOH shall have the right to audit billings both before and after payment; payment under this
Agreement shall not foreclose the right of the DOH to recover excessive or illegal payments.

LIABILITY
As between the parties, each party will be responsible for claims or damages arising from personal
injury or damage to persons or tangible property to the extent they result from negligence of its

employees, subject in all cases to the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Clalms Act,
Section 41-4-1, et seq., NMSA 1978, as amended.

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement may be terminated by either of the parties hereto upon written notice delivered to the
other party at least thirty (30) days prior to the intended date of termination. Except as otherwise
allowed or provided under this Agreement, the DOH’s sole liability upon such termination shall be to
pay for acceptable work performed prior to the Entity’s receipt of the notice of termination, if the
DOH is the terminating party, or the Entity’s sending of the notice of termination, if the Entity is the
terminating party; provided, however, that a notice of termination shall not nullify or otherwise affect
either party’s liability for pre-termination defaults under or breaches of this Agreement. The Entity
shall submit an invoice for such work within thirty (30) days of receiving or sending the notice of
termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be terminated immediately upon
written notice to the Entity if the Entity becomes unable to perform the services contracted for, as
determined by the DOH or if, during the term of this Agreement, the Entity or any of its officers,
employees or agents is indicted for fraud, embezzlement or other crime due to misuse of state funds
or due to insufficient appropriation by the Legislature to the DOH. THIS PROVISION IS NOT
EXCLUSIVE AND DOES NOT WAIVE THE STATE’S OTHER LEGAL RIGHTS AND REMEDIES
CAUSED BY THE ENTITY'S DEFAULT/BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT.

APPLICABLE LAW :

The laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern this Agreement, without giving effect to its choice
of law provisions. Venue shall be proper only in a New Mexico court of competent jurisdiction in
accordance with NMSA 1978 Section 38-3-1(G). By execution of this  Agreement, the Entity
acknowledges and agrees to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of New Mexico over any and all
lawsuits arising under or out of any term of this Agreement. The parties agree to abide by all state
and federal laws and regulations.

4



11.

12.

MOA# 23752

PERIOD OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be effective upon approval of both parties, whichever is later and shall
terminate on 6/30/2022 or as stated in ARTICLE 9, Termination of Agreement. Any and all
amendments shall be made in writing and shall be agreed to and executed by the respective parties
before becoming effective.

FEDERAL GRANT OR OTHER FEDERALLY FUNDED AGREEMENTS.

A.

Lobbying. The Entity shall not use any funds provided under this Agreement, either directly
or indirectly, for the purpose of conducting lobbying activities or hiring a lobbyist or lobbyists
on its behalf at the federal, state, or local government level, as defined in the Lobbyist
Regulation Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 2-11-1, et. seq., and applicable federal law. No
federal appropriated funds can be paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Entity, or any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Department, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, or the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, -
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. If any funds
other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Department, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
of any applicable Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Entity shall
complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in
accordance with its instructions. ‘
Suspension and Debarment. For contracts which involve the expenditure of Federal funds,
each party represents that neither it, nor any of its management or any other employees or
independent Entities who will have any involvement in the services or products supplied
under this Agreement, have been excluded from participation in any government healthcare
program, debarred from or under any other Federal program (including but not limited to
debarment under the Generic Drug Enforcement Act), or convicted of any offense defined in
42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7, and that it, its employees, and independent Entities are not
otherwise ineligible for participation in Federal healthcare or education programs. Further,
each party represents that it is not aware of any such pending action(s) (including criminal
actions) against it or its employees or independent Entities. Each party shall notify the other
party immediately upon becoming aware of any pending or final action in any of these areas.
Political Activity. No funds hereunder shall be used for any partisan political activity or to
further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office.

Grantor and Entity Information.

. If applicable, funding under this agreement is from the Catalog of Federal Domestic

Assistance (CFDA) Program:

i, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA): 93.069- ,

ii. Program Title: Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Cooperative Agreement

iii. Agency/Office: Department of Health and Human Services - Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC) Office of Financial Resources

iv. Grant Number: 6 NU90TP922050-03

. Entity’s Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering System Number (DUNS Number) is

095746517,

Entity Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement to Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (Sept. 2013) [Federal Grant funded projects only].

5



MOA# 23752
. This Agreement and employees working on this Agreement will be subject to the
whistleblower rights and remedies in the pilot program on Entity employee whistleblower
protections established at 41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense
Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. 1..112-239) and FAR 3.908.

. The Entity shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the
workforce, of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as
described in section 3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

. The Entity shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (3), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

For contracts and subgrants which involve the expenditure of Federal funds for amounts in
excess of $150,000, requires the Entity to agree to comply with all applicable standards,
orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be
reported 'to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental

" . Protection Agency (EPA).

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352) — For contracts which involve the
expenditure of Federal funds, Entities that apply or bid for a contract exceeding $100,000
must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has
not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with
obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each
tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection
with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the
non-Federal award.

For contracts which involve the expenditure of Federal funds, Entity must comply with
section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in
guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the
value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring
solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery;
and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials .
identified in the EPA guidelines.



MOA# 23752
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this AGREEMENT at Santa Fe, New Mexico. The

effective date is upon approval of both parties, whichever is later.

New Mexico Department of Health Torrance County

By: By:

Authorized Signature Designee

Date: Date:

Certified for Legal Sufficiency:

By: By:
Department of Health
Assistant General Counsel

Date: . Date:




A genda Item
No. 12-F



EXTENSION OF AGREEEMENT FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES
between the
COUNTY OF TORRANCE
and the
ESTANCIA VALLEY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY

This is a three (3) month Extension to the current Agreement for solid waste collection services
between the County of Torrance and the Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority which expires on
June 30, 2021. :

All terms and conditions of the current Agreement remain unchanged, other than the expiration
date. '

This extension will terminate on the date of a fully executed new Agreement for solid waste
- collection services or on September 30, 2021, whichever occurs first.

TORRANCE COUNTY

BY:

NAME: RYAN SCHWEBACH
TITLE: CHAIR, TORRANCE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

DATE:

EVSWA

BY:

NAME:

TITLE:

DATE:




Agenda Item
No. 13-4



Torrance County Board of Commissioners

Meeting 6/23/2021 Department: Manager’s Office

- Item 13A Prepared By: Philip Tenorio
. Reviewed by: Janice Barela

Title: Discuss the process and options for getting the county buildings on a self-sustaining
electric solar system.

Sponsor:
Managers Office

Action: , |

ICIP Group has explored the options of getting the buildings on Solar Power. The ICIP group
has collected 12 months of electric bills for all of the buildings that County owns and shortlisted
the buildings that make financial sense to get on an electric solar system.

Summary: , |
- Positive Energy is a CES contractor that has worked with multiple other counties and
government agencies and can provide the County options for solar with no upfront costs.

Significant Issues:

® Positive Energy will provide different finance options for the Solar System.

* Positive Energy will provide a Break-Even analysis for the solar system and show overall
cost savings for the county. _ '

* A Solar Power Purchase Agreement is another finance option. (SPPA) is a financial
arrangement in which a third-party developer owns, operates, and maintains the
photovoltaic (PV) system, and a host customer agrees to site the system on its property
and purchases the system's electric output from the solar services provider for a
predetermined period. - '

o Positive Energy will explore all State and Federal tax credits available for the solar
systems. B

Financial: |
* Short listed 3 solar Companies whose expertise lie in commercial building solar systems.
e Cost per KW comparison:
o LTS Solar $3.09/KW
o Titan $3.22/ KW
o Positive Energy Solar $2.67/KW

Staff Recommendation: . -
Gather information through open discussion and negotiate contract with a solar company that is
the most fiscally responsible for the County.



Agenda Item
No. 13-B



- Agenda Item
No. 13-C



Agenda Item
No. 14



Agenda Item
No. 15 |



@

Agenda Item

16

No.



Agenda Item
No. 17



